FY 2013 STATE OF ILLINOIS

ANNUAL TAX INCREMENT FINANCE
REPORT COMPTROLLER
JUDY BAAR TOPINKA

Name of Municipality  Village of Tinley Park Reporting Fiscal Year: 2013
County: Cook Fiscal Year End: April / 30 /2013
Unit Code: 016/575/32

TIF Administrator Contact Information
First Name: Brad Last Name: Bettenhausen
Address: 16250 Oak Park Avenue Title: Treasurer
Telephone: 708-444-5000 City Tinley Park Zip 60477
Mobile N/A E-mail bbettenhausen@tinleypark.org
Mobile Bestwayto __ X__ Email ___X__Phone
Provider  N/A contact Mobile __X__ Mail

| attest to the best of my knowledge, this report of the redevelopment project areas in: City/Village of

is complete and accurate at the end of this reporting Fiscal year under the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act

[65 IL 1-74.4-3 sea. Orth In Jobs Recoverv Law [65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-10 et. sea.l
Written signature of TIF Administator Date

Section 1 (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (1.5) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (1.5)%)
FILL OUT ONE FOR EACH TIF DISTICT
Name of Redevelopment Project Area Date Designated Date Terminated

Main Street South TIF District (#3) 4/1/2003 12/31/2027

*All statutory citations refer to one of two sections of the lllinois Municipal Code: the Tax Increment Allocation
Redevelopment Act [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 et. seq.] or the Industrial Jobs Recovery Law [65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-10 et. seq.]



SECTION 2 [Sections 2 through 5 must be completed for each redevelopment project area listed in Section 1.]
FY 2013

Name of Redevelopment Project Area: Main Street South (#3)
Primary Use of Redevelopment Project Area* Combination/Mixed
If "Combination/Mixed" List Component Types Res./Comm./Retail

Under which section of the lllinois Municipal Code was Redevelopment Project Area designated? (check one)
Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act  x Industrial Jobs Recovery Law

No

Were there any amendments to the redevelopment plan, the redevelopment project area, or the State
Sales Tax Boundary? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 {d) (1) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (1)]

If ves. blease enclose the amendment labeled Attachment A X
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of the municipality that the municipality has complied with all
of the requirements of the Act during the preceding fiscal year. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (3) and 5/11-74.6
22/(d) (3)]

Please enclose the CEO Certification labeled Attachment B

Opinion of legal counsel that municipality is in compliance with the Act. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (4) and
5/11-74.6-22 (d) (4)]

Please enclose the Leaal Counsel Opinion labeled Attachment C

Were there any activities undertaken in furtherance of the objectives of the redevelopment plan,
including any project implemented in the preceding fiscal year and a description of the activities
undertaken? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 {d) (7) (A and B) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7} (A and B)]

If yes, please enclose the Activities Statement labeled Attachment D

Were any agreements entered into by the municipality with regard to the disposition or redevelopment
of any property within the redevelopment project area or the area within the State Sales Tax Boundary?
[65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (C) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (C)]
If ves, please enclose the Agreement(s) labeled Attachment E
Is there additional information on the use of all funds received under this Division and steps taken by the
municipality to achieve the objectives of the redevelopment plan? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (D) and
5/11-74.6-22 {d) (7) (D}]
If ves. please enclose the Additional Information labeled Attachment F X
Did the municipality’s TIF advisors or consultants enter into contracts with entities or persons that have
received or are receiving payments financed by tax increment revenues produced by the same TIF? [65
ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (E) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (E)]
If yes, please enclose the contract(s) or description of the contract(s) labeled Attachment G X
Were there any reports or meeting minutes submitted to the municipality by the joint review board? [65
ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (F) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (F)]
If ves, please enclose the Joint Review Board Report labeled Attachment H
Were any obligations issued by municipality? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (8) (A) and
5/11-74.6-22 (d) (8) (A)]

i Attachment |
Was analysis prepared by a financial advisor or underwriter setting forth the nature and term of
obligation and projected debt service including required reserves and debt coverage? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-
5 (d) (8) (B) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (8) (B)]
If yes, please enclose the Analysis labeled Attachment J
Cumulatively, have deposits equal or greater than $100,000 been made into the special tax allocation
fund? 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (2) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (2)
If yes, please enclose Audited financial statements of the special tax allocation fund
labeled Attachment K
Cumulatively, have deposits of incremental revenue equal to or greater than $100,000 been made into
the special tax allocation fund? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (9) and 5/11-74 6-22 (d) (9)]
If yes, please enclose a certified letter statement reviewing compliance with the Act labeled
Attachment L
A list of all intergovernmental agreements in effect in FY 2010, to which the municipality is a part, and an
accounting of any money transferred or received by the municipality during that fiscal year pursuant to
those intergovernmental agreements [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (10)]
If yes, please enclose list only of the intergovernmental agreements labeled Attachment M

* Types include: Central Business District, Retail, Other Commercial, Industrial, Residential, and Combination/Mixed

Yes



SECTION 3.1 - (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (5) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (5))
Provide an analysis of the special tax allocation fund.

FY 2013
TIF NAME: Main Street South TIF District (#3)

Fund Balance at Beginning of Reporting Period

Revenue/Cash Receipts Deposited in Fund During Reporting FY:
Property Tax Increment

State Sales Tax Increment

Local Sales Tax Increment

State Utility Tax Increment

Local Utility Tax Increment

Interest

Land/Building Sale Proceeds

Bond Proceeds

Transfers from Municipal Sources

Private Sources

Other (identify source if multiple other sources, attach
schedule)

Total Amount Deposited in Special Tax Allocation
Fund During Reporting Period

Cumulative Total Revenues/Cash Receipts

Total Expenditures/Cash Disbursements (Carried forward from Section 3 2)
Distribution of Surplus

Total Expenditures/Disbursements

NET INCOME/CASH RECEIPTS OVER/(UNDER) CASH DISBURSEMENTS

FUND BALANCE, END OF REPORTING PERIOD*

S 2,426,179

Reporting Year Cumulative*

S 221,262 S 5,316,789
S 16,470 $ 232,907
comp
populated
S 237,732

S 5,549,696

S 25,202
S 25,202
S 212,530

S 2,638,709

* if there is a positive fund balance at the end of the reporting period, you must complete Section 3.3

Total Amount Designated (Carried forward from Section 3 3)

S (62,146,611)

% of Total
96%
0%
0%
0%
0%
4%
0%
0%
0%
0%

0%



SECTION 3.2 A- (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (5) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (5))
FY 2013
TIF NAME: Main Street South TIF District (#3)

ITEMIZED LIST OF ALL EXPENDITURES FROM THE SPECIAL TAX ALLOCATION FUND
{by category of permissible redevelopment cost, amounts expended during reporting period)

FOR AMOUNTS SECTION 3.2 B MUST BE COMPLETED
of Redevelopment [65ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 (q) and 65 5/11-74.6-
10 Amounts Reporting Fiscal Year
1 Costs of studies, administration and professional services—Subsections (q)(1} and (0) (1)
Audit 2,035
TIF Consultant 11,402
Legal 1,794
$ 15,231
2. Cost of marketing sites—Subsections (q)(1.6) and (0)(1.6)
$

3 Property assembly, demolition, site preparation and environmental site improvement costs
Subsection (g)(2}, (0)(2) and (0)(3)

$
Subsection and

$
5 Costs of construction of public works and improvements Subsection (q)(4) and (0)(5)

$

6 Costs of removing contaminants required by environmental laws or rules (0){6) - Industrial Jobs
Recovery TIFs ONLY



SECTION 3.2 A

PAGE 2
programs
nd

$

8 Financing costs. Subsection (q) (6) and (0)(8)
Wells Fargo 2010 Bond 9,971

$ 9,971
9. Approved capital costs. Subsection (a)(7) and (0)(9)

3
10. Cost of Reimbursing school districts for their increased costs caused by TIF assisted housing
proiects. Subsection (a)(7 5) - Tax Increment Aliocation Redevelopment TIFs ONLY

$
11 Relocation costs. Subsection (g)(8) and (0)(10)

$
12 Payments in lieu of taxes Subsection ()(9) and (0)(11}

$

13 Costs of job traning, retraning advanced vocational or careel education proviaea by otner
taxina bodies Subsection (a)(10) and (0)(12)



SECTION 3.2A
PAGE 3

14, Costs of reimbursing private developers for interest expenses incurred on approved
redevelooment proiects. Subsection (@)(11)(A-E) and (0)}{(13)(A-E)

15. Costs of construction of new housing units for low income and very low-income households.
Subsection (Q)(11)(F) - Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment TIFs ONLY

186. Cost of day care services and operational costs of day care centers. Subsection (g) (11.5) - Tax
Increment Allocation Redevelooment TIFs ONLY

TOTAL ITEMIZED EXPENDITURES



Section 3.2 B
FY 2013
TIF NAME: Main Street South TIF District (#3)

List all vendors, including other municipal funds, that were paid in excess of $10,000 during the current
reporting year.

There were no vendors, including other municipal funds, paid in excess of
$10,000 during the current reporting period.

Name Service Amount

Ehlers & Associates Consulting S 11,402.00



SECTION 3.3 - (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (5) 65 ILCS 11-74.6-22 (d) (5))
Breakdown of the Balance in the Special Tax Allocation Fund At the End of the Reporting Period

FY 2013
TIF NAME: Main Street South TIF District (#3)

FUND BALANCE, END OF REPORTING PERIOD

1. Descri of Debt Obl ations
General Obligation bonds, Series 2010 (part)
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 (MSS Portion)

Total Amount Designated for Obligations
2. Des of Costs to be Paid
Land Acquisition

Public Improvements
Development Assistance

Total Amount Designated for Project Costs

TOTAL AMOUNT DESIGNATED

SURPLUS*/(DEFICIT)

S 2,638,709

Amount of Original

Issuance Amount Designated

$ 152,000 $

$ 121,792 ¢ 185,320

$ 273,792 § 185,320
S 1,350,000
S 48,250,000
S 15,000,000
S 64,600,000
$ 64,785,320
S (62,146,611)

* NOTE: If a surplus is calculated, the municipality may be required to repay the amount to overlapping taxing



SECTION 4 [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (6) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (6)]
FY 2013

TIF NAME: Main Street South TIF District (#3)
Provide a description of all property purchased by the municipality during the reporting fiscal year within the
redevelopment project area.

X__ No property was acquired by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area

Property Acquired by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area

Property (1)

Street address

Approximate size or description of property:
Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property (2)

Street address

Approximate size or description of property:
Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property (3)

Street address

Approximate size or description of property:
Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property (4):

Street address

Approximate size or description of property
Purchase price:

Seller of property:



SECTION 5 - 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (G) and 65 ILCS 5§/11-74.6-22 (d) (7} (G)
PAGE 1
FY 2013
TIF NAME: Main Street South TIF District (#3)

SECTION 5 PROVIDES PAGES 1-3 TO ACCOMMODATE UP TO 25 PROJECTS. PAGE 1 MUST BE INCLUDED WITH TIF
REPORT. PAGES 2-3 SHOULD BE INCLUDED ONLY IF PROJECTS ARE LISTED ON THESE PAGES

Check here if NO projects were undertaken by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area:

ENTER total number of projects undertaken by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area
and list them in detail below*. 7
Estimated Investment
for Subsequent Fiscal  Total Estimated to

TOTAL: 11/1/99 to Date Year Complete Project
Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions) $ 8,413,000 $ $ 40,413,000
Public Investment Undertaken $ 5,041,553 $ $ 43,591,641
Ratio of Private/Public Investment 1 2/3 89/96

Project 1: *IF PROJECTS ARE LISTED NUMBER MUST BE ENTERED ABOVE
Bettenhausen Motor Sales

Private Investment Undertaken {See Instructions) $ 2.000.000 $ 2,000,000
Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0
Project 2:

Lakeview Townhomes (6 units)

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions) $ 1,213,000 $ 1.213.000
Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0
Project 3:

Boston Blackies Restaurant

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions) $ 900,000 $ 900.000
Public Investment Undertaken $ 115.641 $ 115,641
Ratio of Private/Public Investment 7 18/23 7 18/23
Project 4:

Tinlev Park Place mixed-use development

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions) $ 1.500.000 $ 1,500,000
Public Investment Undertaken $ 300,000 $ 300.000
Ratio of Private/Public Investment 5 5
Project 5:

Former School Site Redevelopment
Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken $ 1.350.000 $ 1,350,000
Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0
Project 6:

The Boulevard at Central Station

Private Investment Undertaken {See Instructions) $ 2.800.000 $ 34,800,000
Public Investment Undertaken $ 1,050,000 3 6.826.000

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 2 2/3 5 5/51



Project 7:

Public Parkina Structure and Community Park
Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)
Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 8:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 9:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)
Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 10:

Private Investment Undertaken {See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 11

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 12:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 13

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 14:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 15:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken
Ratio of Private/Public Investment

PAGE 2

2.225.912
0

35,000,000
0



Project 16

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)
Public Investment Undertaken
Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 17

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)
Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 18:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)
Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 19:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)
Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 20:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)
Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 21

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)
Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 22:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)
Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 23:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)
Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 24:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)
Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 25

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken
Ratio of Private/Public Investment

PAGE 3



Optional: Information in the following sections is not required by law, but would be helpful in evaluating the performance
of TIF in lllinois. *even though optional MUST be included as part of complete TIF report

SECTION 6

FY 2013

TIF NAME: Main Street South TIF District (#3)

Provide the base EAV (at the time of designation) and the EAV for the year reported for the redevelopment project area
Year redevelopment

project area was Reporting Fiscal Year
designated Base EAV EAV

2003 $ 2 743 S

List all overlapping tax districts in the redevelopment project area
If overlapping taxing district received a surplus, list the surplus.

__X__ The overlapping taxing districts did not receive a surplus.

Surplus Distributed from redevelopment
Overlapping Taxing District project area to overlapping districts

Y Y ¥ Y Y Y Y Y R Y R 2R Vo SR Vo R 7, A 7,5

SECTION 7
Provide information about job creation and retention

vescript
Number of Jobs Number of Jobs (Tem
Retained Created Perman Total Salaries Paid
Information not gathered S
$
$
$
$
S
s
SECTION 8
Provide a neral on of the redevelopment areaust on m boundaries:
Oak Park Avenue from 172nd Street to 178th Street North and South Streets, 68th Ct. & 69th
Ave. south of 173rd PI., 173rd 66th Ave. and 67th Ct. south of 172nd St. ~71.7 acres
Optional Documents Enclosed
Legal description of redevelopment project area Previously Provided

Map of District Previously Provided



Attachment B

Certification of Chief Executive Officer



—
Tinleyg
Parl Attachment B

l_LINOIS

Village President
Edward J. Zabrocki

Village Clerk Certification of the Chief Executive Officer
Patrick E. Rea Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois

Village Trustees
David G. Seaman
Gregory J. Hannon

Brian S. Maher I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting presiding officer of the Village of

Thomas J. Staunton, Jr. Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, do hereby certify that said Village has

Patricia A. Leoni complied with all of the requirements of the Tax Increment Allocation

TJRGrady Redevelopment Act [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1 et. seq.], during the fiscal year ended April
30,2012

Village Hall

16250 5. Oak Park Ave, IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have placed my official signature this __17th___ day
Tinley Park, IL 60477 Of December , 20 1 3

Administration
(708) 444-5000
Fax: (708) 444-5099

Building & Planning w % {a/
(708) 444-5100 @
Fax: (708) 444-5199 A =z J
Village Presideht an
Public Works Chief E Officer/of the Village of Tinley Park
|

(708) 444-5500

Police Department
7850 W. 183rd St.
Tinley Park, IL 60477

{708) 444-5300/Non-emergency
Fax: (708) 444-5399

John T. Dunn

Public Safety Building
17355 S. 68th Court
Tinley Park, IL 60477

Fire Department &
Prevention

(708) 444-5200/Non-emengency
Fax: (708) 444-5299

EMA
(708) 444-5600
Fax: (708) 444-5699

Senior
Community Center
(708} 444-5150

www.tinleypark.org




Attachment C

Opinion of legal counsel



A+TAcumenT C

20 N. Wacker Drive, Ste 1660 15010 S. Ravinia Avenue, Ste 10
Chicago, lllinois 60606-2903 Orland Park, lllinois 60462-5353
T 312984 6400 F 312984 6444 T 708 349 3888 F 708 349 1506

312 984 6415

KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS, LTD tmbarnicle@ktjlaw.com www.ktjlaw.com

Attorneys at Law

December 18, 2013

State Comptroller

All Overlapping Taxing Districts
Joint Review Board

Main Street South TIF Project
c/o Village Hall

Village of Tinley Park

16250 South Oak Park Avenue
Tinley Park, Illinois 60477

Re: Main Street South TIF Pro t Statutorv Status Report

Dear Addressees

Please be advised that the undersigned, as attorney for the Village of Tinley Park,
Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, hereby certifies that upon my review of all relevant
redevelopment project documents and information provided by the Village, the Village of
Tinley Park is in compliance with the Tax Increment Redevelopment Allocation Act (65
[LCS 11-74.4-1,et seq.) with respect to the above-referenced Project.

Very truly yours,

KLEIN, THORPE AND JENKINS, LTD.

Terrence M. Barnicle
TMB/an

cc: Brad Bettenhausen,
Village Treasurer

320263 1



Attachment D

Description of Activities Undertaken



Attachment D

Main Street South TIF District
Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois
Statement of Activities

Fiscal year ended April 30, 2013

In accordance with 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5(d)(7)(A&B) and 5/11-74.6-22(d)(7)(A&B), the
following statement of activities is provided:

This TIF District was established by ordinance on 1 April 2003. Due to the necessity to
tax divide a parcel containing railroad right of way, the Cook County Clerk was unable
to certify the base year Equalized Assessed Value (EAV) until calendar 2004. The base
year EAV was certified on 7 December 2004 at $11,215,743 utilizing the EAV of the 2001
tax year. Tax increment has begun to be allocated to the Redevelopment Fund with the
2003 tax year (taxes payable in 2004). The life of the Redevelopment District has
automatically been extended for one year due to the delay in Certification. The
boundaries of the TIF district were expanded in 2006 to include additional properties.
The base year for these expansion parcels was frozen at their 2005 EAV values and
added approximately $2.3 million to the TIF base value.

Through the fiscal year ended April 30, 2013, the following projects have been
undertaken, in process, or completed:

Project 1 Bettenhausen Motor Sales expansion (completed 2004)

A local automobile dealership significantly remodeled and expanded its automotive
showroom, service garage, and offices.

No property tax increment funds are associated with this redevelopment project.

Project 2 Lakeview Townhomes Lakeview Townhomes (completed 2007)

A development of 16 single family attached townhomes was constructed at 178th Street
and Oak Park Avenue. The site overlooks a wet detention pond completed by the
Village in 2006. This detention facility removed approximately 550 adjacent properties
from designated flood plain with the Federal Emergency Management Agency Letter of
Map Revision in 2007. A portion of this development (6 units) is located in the Main
Street South TIF, with the remainder located in the adjacent Oak Park Avenue TIF.

No public financial assistance was required in conjunction with this development.



Project 3 Boston Blackies’s restaurant

A restaurateur acquired a building of local historical and architectural significance with
the intent of renovating the structure for another restaurant in their chain. The building
had been constructed in 1886 for Henry Vogt, Sr. for his general merchandise business
originally known as the Bremen Cash Store. It was the first commercial structure in the
community built of brick, and it also was one of the first buildings in the south suburban
area to incorporate an elevator (used for moving merchandise from storage areas in the
basement and upper floor). Henry Vogt was the first mayor for the Village of Tinley
Park and he and his family were significant civic leaders in the community for over a
century. In order to support their intended use, they owners found that they needed to
make significant structural improvements, and also proposed a historically compatible
addition to provide necessary kitchen and refrigeration spaces. After inadvertently
creating issues that compromised the structural integrity of the historic building, the
owners elected to demolish the structure with the intent to recreate the building’s
appearances with a new structure.

The Village had approved financial assistance in an amount not to exceed $550,000
toward the revised project.

During 2009, the lender acquired title to the property under foreclosure and the
restaurateur filed for bankruptcy protection. In light of these developments, the
proposed redevelopment will not occur.

Project 4 Tinley Park Place mixed-use development

Developers have proposed redevelopment of an entire block at the core of the Village’s
Historic District. Considered a transit-oriented development, the project includes
approximately 40,000 square feet of ground floor retail, an additional 20,000 square feet
in second floor office/retail space, an 11 screen movie theater complex, and 115
condominium units. The development is in close proximity to the Village’s Oak Park
Avenue Metra commuter rail depot providing daily rail service between Chicago and
Joliet. Access to Interstates 80 and 57 are nearby. The developers have requested
financial assistance with the project for a variety of TIF qualified costs associated with
the development in the amount of approximately $12,000,000. The Village is also
committed to other public improvements in the vicinity including construction of a
public parking facility which will serve both commuter and local business needs. The
Village has proceeded with planning for the parking structure and other public
improvements. The developers began to market pre-construction contracts on the
residential units while seeking financing to begin construction. Their efforts have been
hampered by the downturn in the housing market compounded by the fall-out in the
mortgage loan industry and other economic forces. A residential parcel owned by the
Village was demolished, but no redevelopment activity has occurred with the site to-
date and the future of the project would appear questionable.



Project 5 Former School Site

In May 2003, the Village of Tinley Park entered into an agreement with Community
Consolidated School District 146 to acquire the site of the former Central Middle School
consisting of approximately 3 acres. A new Central Middle School was completed in the
Fall of 2001 near the northwest corner of 183rd Street and Oak Park Avenue, partially
within the Tinley Park Oak Park Avenue TIF District (#1). The old school was
subsequently demolished, and the site cleared of all appurtenances except the
foundations. Under the terms of the agreement, the Village owed the School District
$350,000 at closing, which occurred in December 2003, with an additional $1,000,000
payment guaranteed by the end of five years. The site is anticipated to be used for
temporary commuter and public parking during construction of a parking facility along
North Street and adjacent to the commuter rail depot. It is expected that this site will
later be sold for residential development most likely consisting of row houses or
townhomes.

Project 6 The Boulevard at Central Station
South Street mixed-use development

A redevelopment project proposed for the majority of the block immediately south of
the Oak Park Avenue commuter rail depot on South Street has gone through several
evolutions since its first proposal.

The initial project was referenced by the concept name of Market Square due to its
location abutting the “Markt Platz” of the original plat for the Village of Bremen dating
to 1853. Traditional German towns centered around a central market place (Markt Platz)
which was incorporated into the original plan for the Village of Bremen presumably due
to the large number of individuals of German ancestry emigrating to and settling in this
area at that time. The project was proposed to include two mixed use buildings
containing a total of 69 residential condominiums built over first floor commercial space.
The commercial space was tentatively 32,700 square feet providing for approximately 23
tenant units. This plan was in keeping with the concepts for Transit Oriented
Development which would place higher density housing closer to the transit hub (the
commuter rail station).

The developer subsequently revised his development plan to a lower density project
consisting of 31 townhomes and approximately 24,000 square foot of first floor retail
along South Street after the developer was concerned about the marketing and sale of
the residential units. This project was referred to as The Promenade in reference to the
open common area created above the commercial spaces providing access to the
townhome units. The townhome units were originally proposed to have two car garage
units and individual elevator access to the three story townhome units. In 2007, the
Village formally approved $2.2 million in financial assistance as reimbursements for TIF
qualified costs. A tentative increase the financial assistance to $2.7 million based on
certain development enhancements requested by the Village was discussed but was not
formally approved by the Village Board. During this time, the Village acquired



additional property that is necessary for the overall project and the development site has
been cleared of all of the previously existing buildings and structures. However, due to
economic forces and other issues, this development plan was also abandoned. A portion
of the property continues to be used as a commuter parking lot in the interim.

In light of the economic recession, in 2010, the developer again retooled his development
plan. The development project referenced as The Boulevard at Central Station consists
of 167 one and two bedroom apartments and approximately 11,500 square foot of
commercial space. At the time of the developer’s proposal, financing appeared to be
more easily obtainable for residential rental development than for other types of
residential projects (fownhome or condominium). It is intended that the development
would be converted to no more than 151 condominium units in the future, with the one
bedroom units largely being absorbed into adjacent units to provide larger
condominium units when ultimately sold as condominiumes.

The project is estimated to cost $34.8 million. The Village approved a development
agreement in July 2012 including financial assistance. The Village will grant a Cook
County Class 8 property tax incentive for the property. The Village will reimburse the
developer up to a maximum of $3,776,000 in qualified TIF redevelopment costs.
Additionally, the Village will reimburse up to $2,000,000 in public improvements.
Finally, the Village will share 50% of sales taxes generated by the new commercial
establishments locating in the development for a period of ten years. Businesses
relocating to the development from other Tinley Park locations will be discounted for
the sales tax incentive calculation based on their prior sales tax activity. As of the end of
the fiscal year, the developers were still seeking the necessary bank financing for the
project. No other development activity has occurred at this time.

Project 7 Public Parking Facility and Community Park

The Village has architectural designs completed for a public parking facility adjacent to
the Oak Park Avenue Metra commuter rail depot that would provide additional parking
required to support the proposed Tinley Park Place (project 4) and other existing and
proposed developments in the area of the Oak Park Avenue depot. This parking facility
would replace the existing surface parking lots north of the railroad tracks that are used
primarily for commuter parking and provide additional parking to support adjacent
commercial developments. In conjunction with this facility, a portion of the parking
would be below grade with an urban style community park developed at surface level.
This park is expected to have a performance stage and a central fountain/water feature
that would also serve as an ice skating rink in the winter months. Funding to support
this development beyond the design phase has not currently been determined.

Based on several projects being proposed, the Village of Tinley Park contracted traffic
studies to determine the adequacy of the existing roadways within the development
area with specific consideration of the proposed developments. Village staff and
consultants have compiled a list of public and private infrastructure and other



improvements that will either be necessary or desirable as part of redevelopment within
the District and work continues on refining the cost estimates for these projects.
Additionally, the Village staff and consultants have been developing and refining
analysis of projected incremental revenues, and related developmental costs associated
with the redevelopment projects that are being proposed by developers and under
discussion.



Attachment E

Redevelopment agreements



























































































































































































































































































































WD
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Cook County Recorder of Deeds

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) Date: 10/23/2012 02:34 PM Pg: 1 of 16
COUNTYOFCOOK) SS
COUNTYOFWILL )

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE
I, PATRICK REA, the duly elected, qualified and acting Village Clerk of the

Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, do hereby certify that attached
hereto is a true and correct copy of the Resolution now on file in my office, entitled:

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-0-041

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT — THE BOULEVARD AT CENTRAL STATION

which was passed by the Board of Trustees of the Villag
meeting held on the 2™ day of October, 2012, at which m
and approved by the President of the Villa ;e of Tinley Pa

2012.

I further certify that the vote on the question of the passage of the said Resolution
by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park was taken by the Ayes and Nays
and recorded in the Journal of Proceedings of the Board of Trustees of the Village of
Tinley Park, and that the result of said vote was as follows, to-wit:

AYES: Seaman, Hannon, Maher, Staunton, Leoni, Grady

NAYS: None

ABSENT: None

I do further certify that the original Resolution, of which the attached is a true
copy, is entrusted to my care for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful keeper of the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set affixed  seal of
the Village of Tinley Park, this 2nd day of October, 20

Village Clerk
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ORDINANCE NO. 2012-0-041

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT — THE BOULEVARD AT CENTRAL STATION

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and
Will Counties, Illinois, have considered a First Amendment to Development Agreement-
The Boulevard at Central Station (the “First Amendment”) between the Village of Tinley
Park (“Village”), and South Street Development, LLC, an Illinois limited liability
company, a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof as
EXHIBIT 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and
Will Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of
Tinley Park that said First Amendment be entered into by the Village of Tinley Park.

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the President and Board of Trustees of
the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative

provisions of, this Ordinance as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley
Park hereby find that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its
residents that the aforesaid “First Amendment to Development Agreement-The

Boulevard at Central Station” be entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley

Park.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook
and Will Counties, Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and behalf of said Village

of Tinley Park the aforesaid First Amendment.
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Section 4: That this Ordinance shall take effect from and after its adoption

and approval as required by law.

ADOPTED this 2™ day of October, 2012, by the Corporate Authorities of the

Village of Tinley Park on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES: Seaman, Hannon, Maher, Staunton, Leoni, Grady

NAYS: None

ABSENT: None

APPROVED this 2™ day of October, 2012, by the President of the Village of

Tinley Park.

President

Village
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EXHIBIT 1

FIRST AMENDMENT TO
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT-THE BOULEVARD AT
CENTRAL STATION

This First Amendment to the Development Agreement-The Boulevard at Central
Station (this "First Amendment") is made and entered into as of the 24 day of
October~ , 2012 ("First Amendment Date") by and between the Village of Tinley
Park, lllinois, an lllinois municipal home rule corporation (the "Village"), and South
Street Development, LLC, an lllinois limited liability company, (the "Developer"), with its
principal office at 6665 South Street, Tinley Park, lllinois 60477. (The Village and the
Developer are sometimes referred to individually as a "Party”" and collectively as the
"Parties.")

RECITALS
The following Recitals are incorporated herein and made a part hereof.

A. The Parties have previously entered into that certain “Development
Agreement-The Boulevard at Central Station” dated the 17" day of July, 2012 (the
‘Agreement”).

B. The Parties wish to amend the Agreement to correct certain scrivener's
errors and to insert certain updated schedules.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants and
agreements herein contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties do hereby agree as

follows:

1. The third paragraph of Section 7.1 of Article Seven of the Agreement be and
is hereby amended to read as follows:

The common surface parking lot shall be constructed by the Developer in
accordance with final engineering plans approved by the Village. After
completion in accordance with the approved engineering plans and inspection
and approval by the Village, the Village thereafter shall fully maintain the
common surface parking lot to serve the retail component of the Project and
adjoining businesses. The Developer and Village shall enter into a cross-access
and parking agreement relating to the use of the common  surface parking lot,
such agreement to be in such form and substance satisfactory to the Village.
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2. Section 7.5 of Article Seven of the Agreement be and is hereby amended to
read in its entirety as follows:

7.5 Convevance of Land. The Village agrees to convey to the
Developer certain property owned by it which property is legally described on
Exhibit 9 attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof.

3. The first sentence of Section 8.4 of Article Eight of the Agreement be and is
hereby amended to read as follows:

Within three (3) months after satisfaction of the condition precedent as set
forth in Section 7.3, the Developer shall demonstrate to the Village's
satisfaction that Developer has sufficient funds to pay the costs of the Project.

4. Section 10.6(a) of Article Ten of the Agreement be and is hereby amended to
read in its entirety as follows:

(a) Subject to Section 10.13, the Developer shall commence construction
of the Project within sixty (60) days after it receives approval of its
construction financing, and shall not cause or permit the existence of
any violation of Village ordinances, including but not limited to the
Village's Building Code, Zoning Ordinance and Variation Ordinance,
Fire Code, Sign Ordinance, Landscaping Ordinance, and any and all
rules and regulations thereunder. The Developer shall have
substantially completed the entire Project on or before March 1, 2014
or by such later time as may be agreed by and between the Village
Manager and the Developer, with such substantial completion to be
evidenced by 1) copies of all paid invoices for the Project, 2) a
certificate of substantial completion signed by the Developer’s architect
or project manager, and 3) all such inspections and approvals as may
be required by the Village. If requested by the Developer, the Village
shall provide to Developer a written statement confirming such
substantial completion for the purposes of this Agreement.

5. Section 11.2 of Article Eleven of the Agreement be and is hereby amended to
read in its entirety as follows:

All real estate transactions, including conveyances, easements and
dedications, provided for herein shall be governed by and shall be closed in
accordance with the provisions of Exhibit 11 attached hereto and hereby made a
part hereof. The Party required to grant or make a conveyance, dedication or
easement shall be considered the "Seller” thereunder and the Party receiving the
conveyance, dedication or easement shall be considered the “Purchaser”
thereunder regardless of whether any monetary payment is due.
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6 That Exhibit 3 to the Agreement referred to in Section 6.3 of Article Six of the
Agreement be and is hereby replaced by the revised Exhibit 3 attached
hereto and hereby made a part hereof and also as a part of the Agreement
and the reference in said Section 6.3 shall be construed and deemed to refer
to the attached revised Exhibit 3.

7 That Exhibit 11 attached to the Agreement and referred to in Section 11.2 of
Article Eleven of the Agreement be and is amended and replaced by the
revised Exhibit 11 attached and hereby made a part hereof and also as a
part of the Agreement, and the reference in said Section 11.2 shall be
construed and deemed to refer to the attached revised Exhibit

8. That except as expressly otherwise stated in this First Amendment all the
remaining terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect.

9. Time is of the essence of this First Amendment.

10.This First Amendment may be executed in several counterparts, each of
which shall be considered an original and all of which shall constitute but one
and the same First Amendment.

11.The Parties agree to record a memorandum of this First Amendment,
executed by the then current owners of the Property in the appropriate land or
governmental records. Developer shall pay the recording charges.

12.1f any provision of this First Amendment, or any Section, sentence, clause,
phrase or word, or the application thereof, in any circumstance, is held to be
invalid, the remainder of this First Amendment shall be construed as if such
invalid part were never included herein, and this First Amendment shall be
and remain valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

13. This First Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of lllinois.

14.This First Amendment and the Agreement (together with the exhibits attached
thereto) combined constitute the entire contract between the Village and
Developer relating to the subject matter hereof and may not be modified or
amended except by a written instrument executed by the Parties hereto.

15.Nothing in this First Amendment, whether expressed or implied, is intended to
confer any rights or remedies under or by reason of this First Amendment on
any other person other than the Village and Developer, nor is anything in this
First Amendment intended to relieve or discharge the obligation or liability of
any third persons to either the Villager or Developer, nor shall any provision
give any third parties any rights of subrogation or action over or against either
the Village or Developer. This First Amendment is not intended to and does
not create any third party beneficiary rights whatsoever.

16.Any Party to this First Amendment may elect to waive any right or remedy it
may enjoy hereunder, provided that no such waiver shall be deemed to exist
unless such waiver is in writing. No such waiver shall obligate the waiver of
any other right or remedy hereunder, or shall be deemed to constitute a
waiver of other rights and remedies provided pursuant to the Agreement or
this First Amendment.
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17.This First Amendment and the rights and obligations hereunder, may not be
assigned by Developer prior to completion of the Project unless the Village in
the exercise of its sole and absolute discretion consents in writing to such

assignment.

18.The Effective Date for this First Amendment shall be the day on which this
First Amendment is fully executed pursuant to a duly enacted Village
ordinance authorizing the execution of and adoption of this Agreement as set
forth on Page 1 hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be
executed on or as of the day and year first above written.

Village of Tinley Park,
an lllinois m icipal corporation

Vi Clerk Vil

DEVELOPER:
South Street Development, LLC, an lllinois
limited liability company

By:
Ma er/Member Its; ember
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ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

State of lllinois
SS

County of Cook

|, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY that Edward Zabrocki, personally known to me to be the Village
President of the Village of Tinley Park, and Patrick Rea, personally known to me to be
the Village Clerk of said municipal corporation, and personally known to me to be the
same persons whose names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared
before me this day in person and severally acknowledged that as such Village President
and Village Clerk, they signed and delivered the said instrument and caused the
corporate seal of said municipal corporation to be affixed thereto, pursuant to authority
given by the Village Board of Trustees of said municipal corporation, as their free and
voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act and deed of said municipal corporation,

for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and official seal, this -D\ day of OW
2012

Mhrp

OFFICIAL SEAL potery Publie
LAURA J GODETTE
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:09/14/15
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State of lllinois

SS
County of Cook
|, the undersigned, a in and for the County and State aforesaid,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY that 22A personally known to me
to the ager/Member of South  Street Development, LLC,
and personally known to me to be a Member of said lilinois

limited liability company, and personally known to me to be the same persons whose
names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in
person and severally acknowledged that as such Manager/Member and Member, they
signed and delivered the said instrument, pursuant to authority given by the Members of
said lllinois limited liability company, as their free and voluntary act, and as the free and
voluntary act and deed of said lllinois limited liability company, for the uses and

purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and official seal, this lr:-) day of O -
2012
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EXHIBIT 11
REAL ESTATE SALE PROVISIONS

TITLE

Title Commitment Title Policv. At the time of any required conveyance,
dedication or grant of easement (all a “conveyance” or ‘conveyed”), the
respective "Seller" shall cause to be furnished, at Purchaser's expense, to the
respective "Purchaser" a commitment for an ALTA Form B Owner's Policy of Title
Insurance ("Commitment") issued by a duly licensed lllinois title company ("Title
Company"), covering the property to be conveyed (the "Parcel"), together with
true and legible copies of all documents creating or establishing easements,
restrictions, and other items referred to as exceptions in Schedule "B" and
Schedule "C" of the Commitment ("Title Documents") and an ALTA Survey for

the Property.

Objections Purchaser shall have thirty (30) days following receipt of the
Commitment, Title Documents and Survey to review the Commitment, Title
Documents and Survey and to provide to Seller in writing a specific list of
Purchaser's objections to any of them ("Title Objections"). Any item constituting
an encumbrance upon or adversely affecting title to the Parcel (except for
Consensual Liens) which is not objected to by Purchaser in writing by such time
shall be deemed approved by Purchaser and shall constitute a Permitted
Exception (as hereinafter defined). Any mortgages, security interests, financing
statements, or any other lien recorded against the Parcel following the
Agreement Date with the consent or acquiescence of Seller are collectively
referred to as the "Consensual Liens" and none of such Consensual Liens shall
constitute, be or become Permitted Exceptions. Seller shall cause all
Consensual Liens to be paid and discharged in full at Closing. The phrase
"Permitted Exceptions" shall mean those exceptions to title set forth in the
Commitment, Title Documents and Survey and accepted or deemed approved by
Purchaser pursuant to the terms hereof except Consensual Liens as provided
above, which shall not constitute Permitted Exceptions.

Cure. Seller shall have the right, but not the obligation for a period of fourteen
(14) business days after receipt of Purchaser's Title Objections (the "Cure
Period"), to cure (or commit to cure at or prior to Closing) by delivery of written
notice thereof to Purchaser within the Cure Period any or all Title Objections
contained in Purchaser's notice. f any such Title Objections are not cured (or, if
reasonably capable of being cured, Seller has not committed to cure same at or
prior to Closing) within the Cure Period, or if Seller sooner elects not to cure such
Title Objection by written notice to Purchaser, Purchaser shall have until the
earlier of the expiration of the Cure Period or fourteen (14) business days after
19



the receipt of such written notice within which to give Seller written notice that
Purchaser elects either (i) to waive all such uncured objections (in which case the
uncured objections shall become Permitted Exceptions); or (ii) terminate the
Agreement and the First Amendment. If Purchaser does not deliver such written
notice within the above period, Purchaser shall be deemed to have waived its
objections and all uncured Title Objections shall be Permitted Exceptions (except
Consensual Liens, which shall not constitute Permitted Exceptions). If Purchaser
terminates the Agreement or the First Amendment in accordance with the
foregoing, the Agreement and the First Amendment shall immediately and
automatically terminate, and neither party shall have any further obligations to
the other hereunder (except any obligations which the Agreement provides
survive termination).

2. CLOSING DELIVERIES

a Seller. Closing shall occur on the Closing Date provided all the conditions
precedent described herein have been satisfied. At Closing, Seller shall deliver or
cause to be delivered to Purchaser, in form and substance reasonably
acceptable to Purchaser, each of the following documents:

Deed. Special Warranty Deed, Grant of Easement or Plat of Dedication
conveying the Parcel to Purchaser (or Purchaser's assignee or nominee)
free and clear of all liens, claims and encumbrances except for the
Permitted Exceptions.

ii. Possession Exclusive possession of the Parcel

iii. Title Policy. At Closing, Seller shall provide Purchaser, at Purchaser's
expense, with an ALTA Form B Owner's Policy of Title Insurance for the
Parcel, dated as of the date of the Closing, in the amount of the fair
market value of the Parcel, insuring title (either fee simple or permanent
easement) to be in Purchaser (or Purchaser's nominee or assignee) in
indefeasible fee simple, or permanent easement, subject to no exceptions
other than Permitted Exceptions with extended coverage (the "Title
Policy").  Purchaser shall pay the additional premium charged for
extended coverage, and pay for any endorsements required by Purchaser
or its Lender.

iv. Closing Statement. A Closing Statement conforming to the prorations
and other relevant provisions of this Agreement

V. Entity Transfer Certificate. If required, an Entity Transfer Certification

confirming that the Seller is a "United States Person" within the meaning
of Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
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3.

Vi Other. Such other documents and instruments as may reasonably be
required by the Title Company as necessary to consummate this
transaction and to otherwise effect the agreement of the parties hereto
and not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement and the First
Amendment, including but not limited to: (1) an Affidavit of Title, and (2) an
A.L.T.A. Statement.

Purchaser. At Closing, Purchaser shall deliver or cause to be delivered to Seller
the following, in form and substance reasonably acceptable to Seller:

i Closing Statement. A Closing Statement conforming to the proration and
other relevant provisions of this Agreement.

ii. Corporate Resolutions/Authorizations. Such corporate, partnership,
limited liability company and/or limited partnership resolutions and
authorizations reasonably satisfactory to the Title Company evidencing
Purchaser's authority to enter into and consummate this transaction and
the acceptance of the conveyance of the Parcel, pursuant to this
Agreement.

m Other. Such other documents and instruments as may reasonably be
required by the Title Company to consummate this transaction and to
otherwise effect the agreement of the parties hereto and not inconsistent
with the terms of this Agreement.

PRORATIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS. In relation to conveyances, only by deed

and/or plat of dedication, (but not applicable to grants of easement) the following shall
be prorated and adjusted between Seller and Purchaser as of Closing, except as
otherwise specified:

a
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Seller will pay the basic premium for the Title Policy and any premiums for
extended coverage; one-half of the escrow fee and New York closing fee
charged by the Title Company; the costs to prepare the Deed; the costs to
obtain, deliver, and record releases of all liens to be released at Closing; the
costs to record all documents to cure Title Objections agreed to be cured by
Seller; the costs to obtain the Survey; the cost of state and county transfer
stamps, if any, and Seller's expenses and attorney's fees. Purchaser will pay
one-half of the escrow fee and New York closing fee charged by Title Company;
the costs to obtain, deliver, and record all documents other than those to be
recorded at Seller's expense; the costs of any work required by Purchaser to
have the Survey reflect matters other than those required under this Agreement;
the costs to obtain financing of the Purchase Price, including the incremental
premium costs of mortgagee's title policies and endorsements and deletions
required by Purchaser or Purchaser's lender; the cost of municipal transfer
stamps and Purchaser's expenses and attorney's fees. All assessments, general
or special, which are due and payable in arrears after the Closing, and
21



293365 1

assessments for improvements completed prior to such Closing but payable after
such Closing shall be prorated at such Closing based on each party's period of
ownership. Ad valorem real estate taxes for the Parcel for the calendar year of
such Closing will be prorated at 105% of most current available assessed value,
equalization factor and tax rate between Purchaser and Seller as of the Closing
Date. If the tax bills for the phase being conveyed includes other property, taxes
shall be prorated based on the square footage of the phase being conveyed as a
portion of the square footage of all the property included in said tax bills. Seller's
portion of the prorated taxes will be paid to Purchaser at closing. If the
assessment(s) for the year of closing and/or prior years are not known at the
Closing Date, the prorations will be based on taxes for the previous tax year.
Seller will promptly notify Purchaser of all notices of proposed or final tax
valuations and assessments that Seller receives after the Agreement Date and
prior to such Closing. If this sale or Purchaser's use of the Parcel after such
Closing results in the assessment of additional taxes for periods prior to Closing,
Purchaser will pay the additional taxes. All taxes due as of Closing will be paid at
Closing. Such other items that are customarily prorated in transactions of this
nature, if any, shall be ratably prorated.

For purposes of calculating prorations, Purchaser shall be deemed to be in title to
each phase on the applicable Closing Date. All such prorations shall be made on
the basis of the actual number of days of the year and month which shall have
elapsed as of such Closing Date. The amount of the ad valorem real estate tax
proration shall be adjusted in cash after such Closing as and when the final tax
bill for such period(s) becomes available. Seller and Purchaser agree to
cooperate and use their diligent and good faith efforts to make such adjustments
no later than thirty (30) days after such information becomes available.
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MINUTES OF THE JOINT REVIEW BOARD MEETING
MAIN STREET SOUTH TIF DISTRICT
June 20, 2012
3:35P.M.

The meeting of the Oak Park Avenue TIF Joint Review Board was called to order by Chairman
Rea at 3:56 p.m. in the Village Hall of Tinley Park, Council Chambers.

Joint Review Board Members Present and responding to Roll Call:
Patrick E. Rea, Village of Tinley Park, Clerk & Chairman of the Joint Review Board
Andre Garner, Cook County
Bill Kendall, Bremen High School District 228
Jeff Stawick, Elementary School District 146
John Curran, Director of Parks and Recreation, Tinley Park Park District
Michael Clark, Public Member

Joint Review Board Members Absent:
Bremen Township
South Suburban Community College District 510

Others Present:
Michael Mertens, Assistant Village Manager
Brad Bettenhausen, Village Treasurer
Mike Kowski, Senior Planner
Thomas Bayer, Village Attorney
James Eaton, Prairie State Community College District No. 515
Barbara Suggs Mason, Elementary School District 159
Melody Ellington, Elementary School District 159
Laura Godette, Deputy Village Clerk

Motion was made by John Curran, Tinley Park Park District, seconded by, Michael Clark, Public
Member, to approve and place on file the minutes of the February 9, 2011, meeting of the Main Street
South TIF District (hereinafter the “TIF District”) Joint Review Board. Bill Kendall, Bremen High
School District 228 noted that Mr. O’Malley’s name was placed incorrectly in the February 9, 2011
minutes; his name is Tom not Tim. Vote by voice call. Chairman Rea declared motion carried
unanimously, subject to the noted amendment.

Chairman Rea provided an overview of the Joint Review Board meeting.

Chairman Rea asked if there were any questions at this point. No one came forward.
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At this time Mike Mertens, Assistant Village Manager, presented an overview of the boundaries of
the TIF District and presented an overview of the projects taking place in this TIF District.

Mr. Mertens presented an overview of the following projects:

1. Boulevard at Central Station
a. This project includes 167 units with 137 enclosed parking spaces and 73 surface
parking lot spaces. Also included will be 24,000 square feet of commercial space.
b. This project is scheduled to begin in the fall of 2012 with the ground work. The
building will begin to be built next year.
2. Old Central Middle School Site
a. This property can be used for a full parking lot with 397 spaces, or a partial parking lot
with 220 spaces and 20 residential units.
3. Garden Gallery & Studio
a. This property has undergone fagade improvements, and has eliminated its front
parking. It is part of the Downtown Core District.
4. Bailey’s Bar & Grill
a. This property has also undergone fagade improvements, and has benefited from TIF
Funds. It too has eliminated its front parking. It is part of the Neighborhood General
District.

At this time Chairman Rea asked if there were any questions.

Bill Kendall asked how many children they estimate to be living at the Boulevard at Central Station.
Mike Mertens noted that a study was done on this project, and it did not reflect the number of
children that might be living there.

Mike Clark asked if the developer of the Boulevard at Central Station would be looking to receive an
inducement. Mr. Mertens noted that the Village is working with the developer a on Class 8 real estate
tax designation and working with the developer on a sale tax sharing incentive for up to 10 years.

Chairman Rea recognized Brad Bettenhausen, Village Treasurer, who presented a recap of the TIF
District Equalized Assessed Valuation from 2001 to 2010, although the TIF District was formed in
2003. There was a decrease in the equalized assessed valuation of this TIF District this year.
Chairman Rea noted that this TIF District will end in 2026.
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There being no further questions, Chairman Rea called for a motion to adjourn. Motion was made by
Michael Clark, Public Member, seconded by Bill Kendall, Bremen High School District 228, to
adjourn the meeting of the TIF District Joint Review Board. Vote by voice call: Chairman Rea
declared motion carried unanimously and adjourned the meeting at 4:31 p.m.
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FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED JUNE §, 2013

NEW ISSUE: Book-Entry Only Standard and Poor’s Investment Rating: AA+
Non Bank Qualified

Subject to compliance by the Village with certain covenants, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, under present law,
interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes, is not
included as an item of tax preference in computing the federal alternative minimum tax for individuals and
corporations. Interest on the Bonds is not exempt from present State of Illinois income ftaxes. See "TAX
EXEMPTION" herein for a more complete discussion.

$11,340,000
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook and Will Counties, Illinois
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: December 1, see inside cover

The $11,340,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 (the “Bonds”) of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and
Will Counties, lllinois (the “Village”) will be issued in fully registered form in the denomination of $5,000 or
authorized integral multiples thereof. Semi-annual interest shall be payable on each December 1 and June I,
commencing December 1, 2013. The Bond Registrar and Paying Agent for this issue is Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.,
Chicago, Illinois (the "Bond Registrar and Paying Agent"). The Bonds will be issued only in fully registered form and
will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York
("DTC"). DTC will act as the securities depository of the Bonds. Individual purchases will be made in book-entry
form only in denominations of $5,000 principal amount or any authorized integral multiple thereof. Purchasers of the
Bonds will not receive certificates representing their interest in the Bonds purchased. (See "THE BONDS - Book-
Entry Only System.").

The Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity. See “THE BONDS - Redemption Prior to
Maturity” herein.

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to (i) currently refund the Village’s outstanding Taxable
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2010 (Build America Bonds-Direct Payment) (the “2010 Bonds”) and (ii) pay
certain expenses relating to the issuance of the Bonds. See “THE FINANCING — Purpose of the Bonds™ herein.

The Bonds are secured by ad valorem taxes levied against all of the taxable property in the Village without
limitation as to rate or amount, except that the rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds
may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, reorganization and other similar laws relating to the
enforcement of creditors’ rights and by equitable principles, whether considered at law or in equity, including the
exercise of judicial discretion. See “THE BONDS — Security™ herein.

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only. It is not a summary for the Bonds.
Investors must read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed
investment decision.

The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued by the Village and received by Mesirow Financial, Inc. (the
“Underwriter”), subject to prior sale, withdrawal or modification of the offer without notice and to the approval of
legality by Chapman and Cutler LLP, Chicago, Iilinois, Bond Counsel. It is expected that the Bonds will be available
for delivery through the facilities of DTC on or about June 20, 2013.

Underwriter:

Mesirow Financial, Inc.

Financial Advisor:

BAIRD



MATURITY SCHEDULE, AMOUNTS, INTEREST RATES, YIELDS AND CUSIPs

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013

$4,535,000 Serial Bonds
Maturing Interest cusip
December 1 Amount Rate Yield (Base: 887547)
2014 $405,000 3.000% 0.500% PA9
2015 425,000 4.000 0.625 PB7
2016 445,000 4.000 0.900 PC5
2017 470,000 4.000 1.250 PD3
2018 500,000 4.000 1.500 PE1
2019 525,000 4.000 1.875 PF38
2020 555,000 4.000 2.150 PG6
2021 585,000 4.000 2.400 PH4
2022 625,000 4.000 2.625 PJO

$6,805,000 Term Bonds
$1,370,000* 5.000% Term Bonds Due December 1, 2024 (Priced to Yield 2.950%) CUSIP(" 887547PL5
$1,570,000* 5.000% Term Bonds Due December 1, 2026 (Priced to Yield 3.200%) CUSIP'" 887547PN1
$1,795,000* 5.000% Term Bonds Due December 1, 2028 (Priced to Yield 3.375%) CUSIP'" 887547PQ4
$2,070,000* 5.000% Term Bonds Due December 1, 2030 (Priced to Yield 3.500%) CUSIP"" 887547PS0

%ubjectmnandatory redemption. See “THE BONDS-Redemption Prior to Maturity” herein.
) CUSIP data herein is provided by Standard & Poor’s CUSIP Bureau Service, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc.



Certain information contained in this Official Statement has been obtained by the Village of Tinley Park (the
“Village”) from DTC and other sources that are deemed to be reliable. No representation or warranty is made, however, as
to the accuracy or completeness of such information by the Village or the Financial Advisor. Nothing contained in this
Official Statement is or shall be relied on as a promise or representation by the Financial Advisor. This Official Statement
is being used in connection with the sale of securities as referred to herein and may not be used, in whole or in part, for any
other purpose. The delivery of this Official Statement at any time does not imply that information in it is correct as of any
time subsequent to its date.

No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the Village or by the Financial Advisor to give any
information or to make any representations other than those contained herein, and if given or made, such other information
or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing. This Official Statement does
not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of any offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds, by any person
in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale.

Robert W. Baird & Co., in its role as Financial Advisor, assisted the Village in preparing the Official Statement. The
Financial Advisor obtained information from the Village and other sources that it believed was reliable but cannot
guarantee the accuracy or completeness of the information in this Official Statement.

The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this
Official Statement nor any other sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has
been no change in the affairs of the Village.

The tax advice contained in this Official Statement is not intended or written by the Village, its Bond Counsel, or any
other tax practitioner to be used, and it cannot be used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding penalties that may be
imposed on the taxpayer. The tax advice contained in this Official Statement was written to support the promotion or
marketing of the Bonds. Each taxpayer should seek advice based on the taxpayer’s particular circumstances from an
independent tax advisor.

In connection with the offering of the Bonds, the Underwriter may overallot or effect transactions that stabilize or
maintain the market price of the Bonds at a level above the level that might otherwise prevail in the open market. Such
stabilizing, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time without notice. The prices and other terms respecting the
offering and sale of the Bonds may be changed from time to time by the Underwriter after the Bonds are released for sale,
and the Bonds may be offered and sold at prices other than the initial offering prices, including sales to dealers who may
sell the Bonds into investment accounts.

IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF
THE VILLAGE AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISK INVOLVED.
THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED BY ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES
COMMISSION OR REGULATORY AUTHORITY. FURTHERMORE, THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES HAVE
NOT CONFIRMED THE ACCURACY OR DETERMINED THE ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT. ANY
REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT
of the
Village of Tinley Park
Cook and Will Counties, Illinois
Relating to its
$11,340,000
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement, including the cover page hereof and the appendices hereto, is provided by the Village of
Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois (the “Village™) for the purpose of setting forth information to all who may
become registered owners of the Village’s $11,340,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 (the “Bonds) as
authorized in an ordinance adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village (the “Board”) on June 4, 2013 (as
supplemented by the Bond Order executed in connection with the sale of the Bonds, the "Ordinance").

THE FINANCING

Purpose of the Bonds

The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of (i) currently refunding the Village’s outstanding Taxable General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2010 (Build America Bonds-Direct Payment) dated December 22, 2010 (the “2010 Bonds”),
maturing in the years 2013 through and including 2030 (the “Bonds to be Refunded”) and (ii) paying certain expenses
relating to the issuance of the Bonds. See “The Refunding” and the “The Bonds to be Refunded”, herein.

The Refunding

On the delivery date of the Bonds, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Chicago, Illinois (the “Prior Paying Agent”) will receive a
portion of bond proceeds and $510,000 of cash on hand. Such amount will be sufficient to pay principal of and interest on
the Bonds to be Refunded on the redemption date. Proceeds of the Bonds not being used to pay principal of and interest on
the Bonds to be Refunded will be used to pay costs of issuance of the Bonds.



The Bonds to be Refunded

The following schedule sets forth the principal of the Bonds to be Refunded, which will be paid from the Escrow
Account along with accrued interest.

Taxable General Obligation Bonds, Series 2010 (Build America Bonds-Direct Payment)

Outstanding Refunded Redemption Redemption
Maturities Amount Amount Price Date

December 1, 2013 $ 510,000 $ 510,000 100% July 8, 2013
December 1, 2014 520,000 520,000 100% July 8, 2013
December 1, 2015 535,000 535,000 100% July 8, 2013
December 1, 2016 550,000 550,000 100% July 8,2013
December 1, 2017 565,000 565,000 100% July 8, 2013
December 1, 2018 590,000 590,000 100% July 8,2013
December 1, 2019 615,000 615,000 100% July 8, 2013
December 1, 2020 640,000 640,000 100% July 8,2013
December 1,2021 670,000 670,000 100% July 8, 2013
December 1, 2022 ¥ 705,000 705,000 100% July 8,2013
December 1, 2023 745,000 745,000 100% July 8, 2013
December 1, 2024 780,000 780,000 100% July 8,2013
December 1, 2025 825,000 825,000 100% July 8,2013
December 1,2026 ¢ 865,000 865,000 100% July 8,2013
December 1,2027 ¥ 915,000 915,000 100% July 8,2013
December 1, 2028 970,000 970,000 100% July 8, 2013
December 1, 2029 1,030,000 1,030,000 100% July 8,2013
December 1, 2030 1,090,000 1.090.000 100% July 8,2013

$13,120,000 $13,120,000

()" Represents sinking fund payment.
Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds

Estimated Sources of Funds

Par Amount of the Bonds ..........cocoovviiiininee. $ 11,340,000.00
Transfer from Prior Debt Service Fund................ 510,000.00
Original Issue Premium ..., 1,522.158.50
Totalsmumisamm s N $ 13.372,158.50
Estimated Uses of Funds
To Redeem the Bonds to be Refunded ................. $ 13,186,856.17
Costs of Issuance M., 185.302.33
TOtAL.oiiiiie et $ 13.,372,158.50

(1) 1 1 1 o 1 . o . 1. Yo s 20 . .
" Includes bond registrar and paying agent fees, financial advisor fees, underwriter’s discount, legal fees, rating agency

fees, printing and other miscellaneous costs of issuance.



THE BONDS
Authorization

The Bonds are issued pursuant to the Village’s home rule powers as provided by Article VII, Section 6 of the 1970
Constitution of the State of Illinois (the “State”), the Illinois Municipal Code, as amended, the Local Government Debt
Reform Act of the State, as amended, and pursuant to the Ordinance as duly authorized by the Board.

Security

The Bonds are secured by ad valorem taxes levied against all of the taxable property in the Village without limitation as
to rate or amount (the “Full Faith and Credit Taxes”), except that the rights of the owners of the Bonds and the
enforceability of the Bonds may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, reorganization and other similar laws
relating to the enforcement of creditors' rights and by equitable principles, whether considered at law or in equity, including
the exercise of judicial discretion,

Redemption Prior to Maturity

Optional Redemption: The Bonds maturing on or after December 1, 2024, are subject to redemption prior to maturity at
the option of the Village from any available funds on December 1, 2023, and any date thereafter, in whole or in part, and if
in part, in any order of their maturity as determined by the Village (less than all of the Bonds of a single maturity to be
selected by the Bond Registrar) at a redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption: The Bonds maturing December 1, 2024, December 1, 2026, December 1, 2028
and December 1, 2030 (the “Term Bonds”) are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in integral multiples of
$5,000 selected by lot by the Registrar, on December 1 of each of the years and in the amounts set forth below at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date.

Term Bond Due December 1, 2024

Principal

Redemption Dates Amounts

December 1, 2023 $665,000

December 1, 2024(maturity) 705,000
Term Bond Due December 1, 2026

Principal

Redemption Dates Amounts

December 1, 2025 $760,000

December 1, 2026{maturity) 810,000
Term Bond Due December 1, 2028

Principal

Redemption Dates Amounts

December 1, 2027 $865,000

December 1, 2028(maturity) 930,000
Term Bond Due December 1, 2030

Principal

Redemption Dates Amounts

December 1, 2029 $1,000,000

December 1, 2030(maturity) 1,070,000

The principal amounts of Bonds to be mandatorily redeemed in each year may be reduced through the earlier optional
redemption thereof, with any partial optional redemptions of such Bonds credited against future mandatory redemption
requirements in such order of the mandatory redemption dates as the Village may determine. In addition, on or prior to the
60th day preceding any mandatory redemption date, the Registrar may, and if directed by the Village Board shall, purchase
Bonds required to be retired on such mandatory redemption date. Any such Bonds so purchased shall be cancelled and the
principal amount thereof shall be credited against the mandatory redemption required on such next mandatory redemption
date.



General: The Village will, at least 45 days prior to any optional redemption date (unless a shorter time period shall be
satisfactory to the Bond Registrar), notify the Bond Registrar of such redemption date and of the principal amount and
maturity or maturities of Bonds to be redeemed. For purposes of any redemption of less than all of the outstanding Bonds of
a single maturity, the particular Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by lot by the Bond Registrar
from the Bonds of such maturity by such method of lottery as the Bond Registrar shall deem fair and appropriate (except
when the Bonds are held in a book-entry system, in which case the selection of Bonds to be redeemed will be made in
accordance with procedures established by DTC or any other book-entry depository); provided that such lottery shall
provide for the selection for redemption of Bonds or portions thereof in principal amounts of $5,000 and integral multiples
thereof.

Unless waived by any holder of Bonds to be redeemed, notice of the call for any redemption will be given by the Bond
Registrar on behalf of the Village by mailing the redemption notice by first-class U.S. mail at least 30 days and not more
than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to each registered owner of the Bonds to be redeemed at the address
shown on the Register or at such other address as is furnished in writing by such registered owner to the Bond Registrar.

Unless moneys sufficient to pay the redemption price of the Bonds to be redeemed are received by the Bond Registrar
prior to the giving of such notice of redemption, such notice may, at the option of the Village, state that said redemption
will be conditional upon the receipt of such moneys by the Bond Registrar on or prior to the date fixed for redemption. If
such moneys are not received, such notice will be of no force and effect, the Village will not redeem such Bonds, and the
Bond Registrar will give notice, in the same manner in which the notice of redemption has been given, that such moneys
were not so received and that such Bonds will not be redeemed. Otherwise, prior to any redemption date, the Village will
deposit with the Bond Registrar an amount of money sufficient to pay the redemption price of all the Bonds or portions of
Bonds which are to be redeemed on that date.

Subject to the provisions for a conditional redemption described above, notice of redemption having been given as
described above and in the Ordinance, dand notwithstanding failure to receive such notice, the Bonds or portions of Bonds
so to be redeemed will, on the redemption date, become due and payable at the redemption price therein specified, and from
and after such date (unless the Village shall default in the payment of the redemption price) such Bonds or portions of
Bonds shall cease to bear interest. Upon surrender of such Bonds for redemption in accordance with said notice, such
Bonds will be paid by the Bond Registrar at the redemption price.

Registration, Payment and Transfer

The Bonds are issuable only as fully registered Bonds without coupons, and when issued, will be registered in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York. DTC will act as
securities depository for the Bonds. Purchases of beneficial interests in the Bonds will be made in book-entry only form, in
the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their
beneficial interest in Bonds purchased. So long as Cede & Co. is the Bondholder, as nominee for DTC, references herein to
the Bondholders or registered owners shall mean Cede & Co., as aforesaid, and shall not mean the Beneficial Owners (as
hereinafter defined) of the Bonds. See “THE BONDS — Book-Entry Only System™ herein.

The Bonds will be issued in the original aggregate principal amounts as shown on the inside cover of this Official
Statement. The Bonds will be dated the date of delivery and will bear interest from the later of that date or from the most
recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for. Interest on the Bonds shall be payable
semiannually on December 1 and June 1 of each year commencing on December 1, 2013. Interest on the Bonds shall be
computed using a 360-day year and twelve 30-day months and the Bonds will mature on the dates and in the principal
amounts and will bear interest at the rates as set forth on the inside cover of this Official Statement. The Bonds will be
registered Bonds in the denominaticn of $5,000 or multiples thereof not exceeding for each maturity the principal amount
of such maturity. The principal and interest shall be payable at the office maintained for the purpose by Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A., Chicago, Illinois (the “Bond Registrar and Paying Agent”) or such other paying agent as the Village may hereafter
designate by notice mailed to the Bondholders. So long as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the Bondholder, such
payments will be made directly to DTC. Disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of
DTC Participants and Indirect Participants (both as hereinafter defined), as more fully described below. Interest shall be
paid when due by check or draft mailed to the registered owners of Bonds as shown on the registration books as of the
fifteenth day of the calendar month preceding the payment date for each interest payment or at the request of a registered
owner, by wire transfer to the registered owner’s instructions.



Book-Entry Only System

The information in this section has been furnished by DTC. No representation is made by the Village, Bond
Counsel, Local Counsel, Financial Advisor, or the Registrar and Paying Agent as to the completeness or accuracy of
such information or as to the absence of material adverse changes in such information subsequent to the date hereof.
No attempt has been made by the Village, Bond Counsel, Local Counsel, Financial Advisor, or the Registrar and
Paying Agent to determine whether DTC is or will be financially or otherwise capable of fulfilling its obligations.
Neither the Village nor the Registrar and Paying Agent will have any responsibility or obligation to DTC
participants, indirect participants or the persons for which they act as nominees with respect to the Bonds, or for
any principal or interest payment thereof.

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered bonds registered in the
name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative
of DTC. One fully-registered Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, in the aggregate principal
amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York
Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal
Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing
agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”). DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues,
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments from over 100 countries that DTC’s participants
(“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales
and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges
between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct
Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations,
and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation
(“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing
Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.
Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks,
trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant,
either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC is rated “AA+” by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services. The
DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”).
More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit
for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in
turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written
confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations
providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be
accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.
Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event that use
of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of
DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.
The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not affect
any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records
reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the
Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on
behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements
among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners
of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the
Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example, Beneficial
Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and



transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and
addresses to the Registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are being redeemed, DTC’s
practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds unless
authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an
Omnibus Proxy to the Village as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s
consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date
(identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’
accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detailed information from the Village or Registrar, on payable
date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners
will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with bonds held for the accounts of
customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC,
the Registrar, or the Village, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be
requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Village or the Registrar, disbursement of such
payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial
Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving
reasonable notice to the Village or the Registrar. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor securities
depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The Village may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor securities
depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from DTC, and the
Village takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

The Village will have no responsibility or obligation to any Securities Depository, any Participants in the Book-Entry
System or the Beneficial Owners with respect to (i) the accuracy of any records maintained by the Securities Depository or
any Participant; (ii) the payment by the Securities Depository or by any Participant of any amount due to any Beneficial
Owner in respect of the principal amount or redemption price of, or interest on, any Bonds; (iii) the delivery of any notice
by the Securities Depository or any Participant; (iv) the selection of the Beneficial Owners to receive payment in the event
of any partial redemption of the Bonds; or (v) any other action taken by the Securities Depository or any Participant.

Transfer Qutside Book-Entry Only System

In the event the book-entry only system is discontinued, the following provisions would apply to the Bonds. The Bond
Registrar and Paying Agent will act as transfer agent and bond registrar and shall keep the registration books for the Bonds
(the “Bond Register”) at its principal office maintained for the purpose. Subject to the further conditions contained in the
Ordinance, the Bonds may be transferred or exchanged for one or more Bonds in different authorized denominations upon
surrender thereof at the principal office maintained for the purpose by the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent by the
registered owners or their duly authorized attorneys; upon surrender of any Bonds to be transferred or exchanged, the Bond
Registrar and Paying Agent shall record the transfer or exchange in the Bond Register and shall authenticate replacement
bonds in authorized denominations. The Bond Registrar and Paying Agent shall not be required to transfer or exchange any
Bond during the period of 15 days preceding the giving of notice of redemption of the Bonds or to transfer or exchange any
Bond all or a portion of which has been called for redemption. The Village and Bond Registrar and Paying Agent shall be
entitled to treat the registered owners of the Bonds, as their names appear in the Bond Register as of the appropriate dates,
as the owner of such Bonds for all purposes under the Ordinance. No transfer or exchange made other than as described
above and in the Ordinance shall be valid or effective for any purposes under the Ordinance.



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
General Information

The Village of Tinley Park is located approximately 30 miles southwest of downtown Chicago. Its present
incorporated boundaries cover approximately 16 square miles and include properties in Bremen, Orland, and Rich
Townships in Cook County, and Frankfort Township in Will County. The Village has evolved over time from a rural
commerce center and farm community to a progressive suburb of Chicago. Although primarily a residential community, it
also has a diverse economic base with a variety of retail stores and shops, offices, light industry, and manufacturing. The
proximity and easy access to the Chicago metropolitan area will continue to provide the Village with opportunities for
further residential and commercial development.

The community was originally platted as the Village of Bremen (but was commonly known as New Bremen after its
post office) in 1853 on the path of the Chicago, Rock Island and Pacific Railroad. The railroad played a prominent role in
the growth and development of the community, and the Village quickly became a center of commerce and industry in the
area. The Village was renamed in 1890 after the first railroad station agent, Samuel Tinley, Sr., who served the community
in that capacity for over 25 years. It is believed that Mr. Tinley had also been the community’s longest resident at that time.
The citizens’ election to incorporate as the Village of Tinley Park became official on June 28, 1892. Under the provision of
the 1970 Illinois constitution, the Village automatically became a Home Rule Unit in 1980 when its population exceeded
25,000 and may exercise virtually any power and perform any function pertaining to its governmental affairs.

The Village of Tinley Park’s population grew at a modest rate in the first half of this century, increasing from 300 in
1900 to 2,326 in 1950. After recording a population of 6,392 at the 1960 Census, the Village’s population increased
dramatically over the next three decades, increasing to 12,382 at the 1970 Census, 26,171 at the 1980 Census, and 37,121 at
the 1990 Census. The Village’s population has continued to steadily increase since 1990, with a Special Census recording
39,679 in 1992, 42,328 in 1995, 45,194 in 1998 and the 2000 Census recorded 48,401 residents (45,887 persons in Cook
County and 2,514 in Will County). The 2010 decennial census reflected a population of 56,703 and the Chicago
Metropolitan Agency for Planning (“CMAP) has projected a population of 82,934 in 2040.

The Village’s municipal neighbors include Orland Park and Orland Hills to the north and west and Oak Forest to the
north and east. Cook County Forest Preserves serve as the eastern boundary of the Village. The Village has boundary
agreements with its municipal neighbors to the south, including Frankfort, Mokena, and Matteson. Tinley Park has
cooperated with surrounding communities in planning for the development of the “I-80 Corridor”, part of which is in the
southern part of the Village. The growth along the 1-80 Corridor is primarily focused on industrial and commercial
developments which continue to add to the Village’s economic and employment bases. Since 1995, nearly 950 lodging
rooms have become available in the community with the construction of nine hotels between the Harlem Avenue and
LaGrange Road interchanges of 1-80. A full service Holiday Inn hotel with over 200 rooms is connected to the Village of
Tinley Park’s Convention and Conference Center which opened in October 2000. Located near Interstate 80 at the Harlem
Avenue exit, the Convention and Conference Center just completed a major expansion in June of 2011. The Convention
and Conference Center has 58,000 square feet of net contiguous exhibition space, 18 flexible “breakout” rooms ranging in
size from 750 to 4,000 square feet, a business center for conventioneers, state of the art high-speed internet access and
audio-visual equipment and 1,500 free parking spaces. The convention center is managed by the operator of the Holiday
Inn hotel. With the completion of the expansion, the Convention and Conference Center is classified by industry
publications as a “major exhibit hall.” The expanded facilities can accommodate approximately 70% of all the meetings,
conferences, conventions and trade shows held nationwide which greatly expands its potential markets.

The Village’s transportation links have been, and will continue to be, instrumental in its growth. The Village is located
near the intersection of two major interstate highways, Interstate 57 (north-south) and Interstate 80 (east-west) which offer
convenient access to the other Chicago metropolitan expressways and tollways. Two interchanges on 1-80 (north-south
Routes 45 and 43) lie within the Village boundaries. Daily commuter rail service to and from Chicago is provided by
Metra (Metropolitan Rail Service of the Regional Transportation Authority). The Metra commuter rail service reaches
downtown Chicago in approximately 50 minutes from two commuter stations located in Tinley Park. O’Hare International
Airport is approximately 30 miles north of the Village, Chicago’s Midway Airport is 15 miles northeast, and small aircraft
can be accommodated at the airport in Frankfort, just south of Tinley Park.

The Village has also received the following recognitions. In November of 2009, the Village was identified by Business
Week Magazine’s fourth annual survey “America’s Best Places to Raise Your Kids” as the number one place in both
Illinois and the Nation. In the April of 2010, Chicago Magazine recognized the Village among their list of “20 Best Towns
and Neighborhoods in Chicago and the Suburbs.” The Village is a national winner for Economic Development Excellence
(Urban and Suburban Category) by the U.S. Department of Commerce EDA. The Village received the Award for



Municipal Excellence in Economic Development from the National League of Cities. The Village was placed in the top
twelve cities in the United States for Leadership and Innovation in Economic Development from CoreNet Global
Association of Real Estate Executives. Finally, the Village received the award for Top Ten Mayors in the United States
from the World Mayor Project in London, England.

Population

The following table shows the population of the Village for the last six U.S. Censuses.

U.S. Census Population Percent Change
1960 6,392 174.8%
1970 12,382 93.7
1980 26,171 111.4
1990 37,121 41.8
2000 48,401 304
2010 56,703 17.2

Source: U.S. Census Bureau.

The following table shows the age distribution of the Village’s population based on the 2007-2011 American
Community Survey by the U.S. Census Bureau, as compared to the Counties and the State.

Category The Village Cook County Will County The State
Under S Years................... 6.3% 6.6% 7.4% 6.6%
5-9 Years...ooovevevireneeiennnn, 6.8 6.4 8.3 6.7
10-14 Years.....cccoovnevenn.... 6.4 6.6 84 6.9
15-19 Years....ooeeeeeeenn.n. 6.6 6.9 7.7 7.2
20-24 Years....ccocovvvereenenens 5.2 7.1 54 6.9
25-34 Years....ocooeveveeeenenns 134 16.0 12.5 13.8
35-44 YearS..oooviviecniiieeinns 14.0 13.8 16.3 13.7
45-54 Years....cooovoeveveann... 15.3 13.8 15.0 14.5
55-59 Years.....ooooevveerennn, 79 5.9 5.5 6.2
60-64 Years......c.ccoovveeen... 5.8 4.8 4.4 5.0
65-74 Years.......ccovuveennn... 6.2 6.2 52 6.5
75-84 Years........coceve.. 43 4.0 2.7 4.1
85+ Years......coooeoneveinennnn, 1.7 1.7 1.1 1.8
Median Age....cccccoceeveennnn, 38.8 Years 35.2 Years 35.2 Years 36.4 Years

Source: U.S. Census Bureau. 2007-2011 American Community Survey 5-year estimates.



Village Government

The Village of Tinley Park is governed by a President (Mayor) and Board of six trustees, all of whom are elected on an
at large basis to four-year overlapping terms. Below is list of the Village’s President and Board of Trustees.

First
Elected/Appointed Term Expires

President: Edward J. Zabrocki 1981 May 2017
Village Clerk:  Patrick E. Rea 2009 May 2017
Village Trustees

David G. Seaman .......... 1984 May 2017
Gregory J. Hannon ...... 1987 May 2015
Thomas J. Staunton, Jr 2007 May 2015
Brian S. Maher ...... 1999 May 2017
Patricia Leoni 2009 May 2015
T.J. Grady 2010 May 2017

An appointed Village Manager (position created in 1974) is charged with the day-to-day responsibility of administering
Board policy and supervising the Village’s employees. The following is a list of all Village Department heads:

Position Department Head Start Date
Village Manager Scott R. Niehaus 2003
Village Treasurer........ Brad L. Bettenhausen 1984
Police Chief........ Steven Neubauer 2012
Fire Chief ........c.c.ocee. Kenneth C. Dunn 2004
Emergency Management...........cccovennn Patrick Carr 2005
Public Works Director.........ccoceeeveiiennnnn. Dale Schepers 2004
Planning Director Amy Connolly 2007
Economic Development Director............ Ivan Baker 2003
Human Resources Director ..........ccc...... Gerry Horan 2001
Marketing Director........cccoovvciiniinnnnn, Donna Framke 1998

REAL PROPERTY ASSESSMENT, TAX LEVY AND COLLECTION PROCEDURES
Tax Assessments — Cook County

The County Assessor (the “County Assessor”) is responsible for the assessment of all taxable real property within
Cook County (the “County™), including real property within the Village, except for certain railroad property and pollution
control facilities which are assessed directly by the 1llinois Department of Revenue (the “Department of Revenue”). For
triennial reassessment purposes, Cook County is divided into three sections: west and south suburbs, north and northwest
suburbs, and the City of Chicago. The Village is located in the west and south suburbs and was reassessed for the 2008 tax

levy year.

Real property in the County is separated into classifications for assessment purposes. After the County Assessor
establishes the fair market value of a parcel of property, that value is multiplied by the appropriate classification percentage
to arrive at the assessed valuation (the “Assessed Valuation”) for the parcel. The classification percentages effective for tax
years through 2008 range from 16% for certain residential; industrial and commercial property to 36% and 38%,
respectively, for other industrial and commercial property. Beginning with tax year 2009, the classification percentages
have generally been reduced to 10% for all vacant land and residential properties, and 25% for all industrial and
commercial properties.

Detailed information covering property tax assessment and collections can be found in the Statute 35 ILCS 200. For
additional information on the Cook County tax assessment process please reference Chapter 74 of the Cook County Code
of Ordinances at or visit the website of the Cook County

Clerk at www.cookcountyclerk.com.




Tax Assessments — Will County

Local Assessment Officers at the Township level determine the assessed valuation of taxable real property and railroad
property not held or used for railroad operations. The Illinois Department of Revenue (the “Department”) assesses certain
other types of taxable property, including railroad property held or used for railroad operations. Local Assessment
Officers’ valuation determinations are subject to review at the county level and then, in general, to equalization by the
Department. Such equalization is achieved by applying to each county’s assessments a multiplier determined by the
Department.  The purpose of equalization is to provide a common basis of assessments among counties by adjusting
assessments toward the statutory standard of 33-1/3% of fair cash value. Farmland is assessed according to a statutory
formula which takes into account factors such as productivity and crop mix. Taxes are extended against the assessed values
after equalization.

General Tax Assessment Process

Property tax levies of each taxing body are filed in the office of the county clerk of each county in which territory of
that taxing body is located. The county clerk computes the rates and amount of taxes applicable to the taxable property
subject to the tax levies of each taxing body and determines the dollar amount of taxes attributable to each respective parcel
of taxable property. The county clerk then supplies information to the appropriate collecting officials within the county to
bill the attributable taxes to the individual parcels. After the taxes have been paid, the collecting officials distribute to the
respective share of taxes collected to the various taxing bodies. Taxes levied in one calendar year are due payable in two
installments during the next calendar year. Taxes that are not paid when due, or that are not paid by mail and postmarked
on or before the due date, are subject to a penalty of 1-1/2% per month until paid. Unpaid property taxes, together with
penalties, interest and costs constitute a lien against the property subject to the tax.

Exemptions

State Statutes provide for exemptions for owner occupied residential property (Homeowner’s Exemption). The
maximum assessment deduction for counties with less than 3,000,000 inhabitants is $5,000 for tax year 2007 payable in
2008, $5,500 for tax year 2008 payable in 2009 and $6,000 for tax year 2009 payable in 2010 and thereafter. This
exemption may be granted on a pro-rated basis for newly constructed homes based upon the number of days in the tax year
the home was occupied by the taxpayer. An additional exemption is provided for homeowners aged 65 or over in the
amount of $4,000 beginning tax year 2008. Additionally, senior citizens may qualify for their assessment to be [rozen al its
current value if certain income conditions are met. Other more specialized exemptions exist under State Statutes, but have
limited general applicability. In addition, certain property is exempt from taxation on the basis of ownership and/or use,
such as property owned by Federal, State, or local governments that is used for public purposes and certain not-for profit
organizations such as churches or cemeteries. Detailed information covering property tax exemptions can be found in the
State Statute 35 ILCS 200/4.

Property Valuations
The following table sets forth the Village’s EAV and estimated market value for the last five fiscal years

Property Valuations

Collection Fiscal Estimated Percent
Levy Year Year Year EAV Market Value Change
2007 2008 2009 $1,596,468,368 $4,789,405,104 7.03%
2008 2009 2010 1,761,707,602 5,285,122,806 10.35
2009 2010 2011 1,796,096,943 5,388,290,829 1.95
2010 2011 2012 1,812,100,741 5,436,302,223 0.89
2011 2012 2013 1,607,862,763 4,823,588,289 (11.27)
Per Capita 2011 EAV e, ..$28,355.87
Per Capita 2011 Estimated Market Value V................... ..$85,067.60

M Based on the Village's 2010 census population of 56,703
Source: The Village



The following table sets forth the Village’s EAV by use for the tax levy year 2007 through 2011

Equalized Assessed Valuation by Use

Classification 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Residential ....... $1,191,691,159  $ 1,290,068,906 $ 1,401,077,313 § 1,398,487,405  § 1,230,479,660
Commercial ..... 308,859,009 311,456,800 265,886,915 276,491,870 251,173,100
Industrial.......... 95,726,455 159,990,610 183,585,081 137,016,739 126,102,615
Other........ccoou... 191,745 191,286 108,047 104,727 107,388
Total ........... $ 1,596,468,368 $ 1,761,707.602 $ 1,850,657,356 § 1,812,100,741  $ 1,607,862,763

Source: The Cook and Will County Clerk’s Offices.
Property Tax Rates

The Village’s property tax rates expressed as a dollar for each $100 of EAYV, for the tax levy years 2007 through 2011
are as follows:

Tax Rates by Purpose Per $100 of Equalized Assessed Valuation M

Levy Years
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

COrPOrate ....oreeveereececiit e $ 0466 $ 0462 $ 0497 $§ 0524 § 0.642
Social Security and IMRF........................ 0.106 0.102 0.105 0.102 0.115
Audit .. 0.002 0.002 0.002 0.002 0.002
Fire Protection........cocvvverveeeeeeiieeeeeeneees 0.081 0.075 0.077 0.099 0.112
Police Protection .........cocovveeeeecccnveeenennen 0.081 0.076 0.076 0.076 0.085
Emergency Management Agency ............ 0.052 0.048 0.049 0.038 0.042
Liability Insurance .........cccoeeeevviniriirnnnn 0.047 0.053 0.057 0.050 0.056
Police Pension.........cocovvvvvvvieeieiiieeiieaennne 0.082 0.078 0.085 0.113 0.129
BONAS ..o 0.016 0.015 0.021 0.020 0.023

Total Village Purposes..........c.c.ce..e. $ 0933 $ 0910 § 0969 $ 1.024 $ 1.207

() Stated rates are for Cook County only, which represents the majority of the Village’s tax base.
Source: The Cook County Clerk’s Office.

The Village’s property tax rates and those levied by other units of government expressed as a dollar for each $100 of
EAV, for the tax levy years 2007 through 2011 are as follows:

Representative Property Tax Rates
Per $100 Equalized Assessed Valuation

Levy Years
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Village of Tinley Park .......cccccooonenininin $ 0933 $§ 0910 $§ 0969 $§ 1.024 §$§ 1.207
COOK COUNLY .ot 0.446 0415 0.415 0.228 0.462
Metropolitan Water Reclamation District........... 0.263 0.252 0.261 0.274 0.320
Consolidated H.S. District No. 230 .................... 1.926 1.801 1.764 1.812 2.180
Kirby School District No. 140 ..o, 3.649 3.654 3.564 3.710 3.910
Moraine Valley Comm. College No. 524 ........... 0.262 0.247 0.247 0.256 0.311
Tinley Park Park District ..o, 0.376 0.351 0.353 0.359 0.411
Tinley Park Library «.....ccocoevceiviiiinni, 0.294 0.288 0.301 0317 0.357
AlLOher.....coooiiieiecee e 0.168 0.144 0.145 0.343 0.197

Total Vo $ 8316 $ 8062 $ 8019 $§ 8323 § 9355

M Tax rate applicable to the largest tax code in the Village
Source: The Village and the Cook County Clerk’s Office.
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Tax Collections and Extensions

The Village adopts an itemized budget upon which hearings are held (typically in April of each year). The Village
adopts a tax levy upon which a hearing is held if the Truth in Taxation Act applies (typically in December of each year). A
tax levy amount must be filed by the Village with the respective Counties by the last Tuesday of December. Property taxes
are collected by the County Treasurers who distribute to the Village its share of the collections. Taxes levied for
expenditures of any year become due and payable in the following year. Real estate taxes are by statute payable in two
installments during the year.

The first installment in Cook County is due March 1 and estimated based on the prior year’s total tax bill. Beginning in
tax year 2009, the first installment equals 55% of the prior year’s total tax bill. This change was enacted to aid in leveling
out the two installments. The second installment is due by statue on August 1. Tax year 2011 was the first time in 34 years
that the second installment bill was issued in accordance with the statutory provided date.

The property tax bill in Will County is divided into two equal installments. The first installment is due on June 1 and
the second installment is due September 1. The Village receives tax distributions from the County in five installments.

If an arrearage remains after the second payment is due, a Treasurer's tax sale occurs, usually within six months.
Participants in this sale are not purchasing the actual property, but merely the taxes owed. Detailed procedures covering the
sale of property for delinquent taxes are prescribed in 35 ILCS 205/238 et seq.

If no tax sale is made, taxes on real estate which are now delinquent for two years or more can be offered for sale at the
"Scavenger" sale. The bidding at the scavenger sale is in ascending fixed dollar amounts and the highest bid is in
satisfaction of the full amount of all delinquent taxes.

Upon sale of the Bonds an ordinance is filed with each County Clerk. In addition to the repayment terms of the Bonds,
the ordinance levies the exact amount of taxes that must be collected each tax year to fully pay principal and interest on the
Bonds. A tax rate based on the total equalized assessed valuation is annually established for the Village and taxes are
extended and collected in the same manner as described above.

The following table sets forth the Village’s tax levy and collections for the last five fiscal years and the levy for the
current fiscal year.

Tax Levy and Collections

Levy Collection Total Taxes Total Cumulative Collections
Year Year Extended Amount Percent
2007 2008 $ 14,875,727 $ 14,632,732 98.4%
2008 2009 16,047,938 15,713,150 97.9
2009 2010 17,214,585 16,967,547 98.6
2010 2011 18,323,980 18,177,289 99.2
2011 2012 18,844,966 18,610,237 98.8
2012 2013 19,391,281 (In process of collection)

Source: The Village
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Principal Taxpayers

The top ten taxpayers of the Village, their type of business and 2011 Equalized Assessed Value are as follows:

2011 Equalized Percent of

Taxpayers Type of Business Assessed Valuation Total
New Plan Excel Prop.......c.ccoccvveeeeeiianas Retail Shopping Center .............covunivininnnns $ 14,052,206 0.87%
Panduit Corporation ........ccoceecevveceinnnn, Manufacturing — Plastic Components ......... 9,565,025 0.59
Holiday Inn Select......c.covvviricrrrrinnne, )5 C010=] FUUTT U UUPo 9,255,513 0.58
Inland Real Estate .....cccocoveveeccinnnercianns Real EState...cuuueeerrvrereersrmrresressmeeesnssessasenees 8,818,954 0.55
K-Mart Corporation.........c..c.coeerererrcnnen. Retail Shopping Center ..........ccoevriniinnnene 8,644,776 0.54
Intercontinental ........cccovvvriiiceiniareeeniennns 5 01 7<) FOT TR PPN 8,354,083 0.52
DDR Brookside LLC @ ........c..ccovvvvveee Retail PrOPEILY ..vvvveeeesscsecosssensessssesiasseneas 7,878,358 0.49
Neja GrOUP .vvverervereneenrereeneesenmeiceinsiees Outdoor Amphitheater ...........ccovvicvinnnians 6,838,066 0.43
International Imports.......ccevveeriininronnnns AUO SAlES .ovveeireieeeer e 6,461,052 0.40
Southwest Naper LTD Partnership @.... Office BUilding......ooc.ovuivieriurisinsisimsisiannens 6,401,268 0.40

Total Ten Largest TAXPAYETS ....covveeeerriemmariariesieramsiessssssessssssssssissiassassesamsasassns $86,269,301 5.37%

M Based on the Village’s 2011 EAV of $1,607,862,763.
@ The Will County Clerk’s Office.
Source: The Cook County Clerk’s Office.

OTHER REVENUE
Other revenue includes grants, aid, revenue sharing and other entitlements from Federal and State government.
Annually recurring intergovernmental revenue consists primarily of the 1% municipal portion of the retailer’s occupation,
service occupation and use tax, the Illinois motor vehicle fuel tax, and the Village’s share of the State income tax.

Sales Tax

The Village receives a portion of the Illinois State sales tax collected in the Village. The following table sets forth the
total sales tax receipts of the Village for the fiscal years ended April 30, 2009 through 2013.

Retailer’s Occupation, Service Occupation and Use Tax

Fiscal Year Sales Tax
__Ended: April 30 Distributions Annual Change
2009 $ 10,326,457 B4)%
2010 9,692,069 6.1)
2011 10,598,680 9.4
2012 11,211,714 5.8
2013 11,985,716 6.9

Source: The Village.



Illinois Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax

The following table sets forth the motor fuel vehicle tax revenue received from the State for the fiscal years ended
April 30, 2009 through April 30, 2013.

Hlinois Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax

Fiscal Year Motor Fuel Tax
Ended: April 30 Allocation Annual Change
2009 $ 1,536,049 (6.1)%
2010 1,461,856 4.8)
2011 1,481,605 1.4
2012 1,416,490 (4.4)
2013 1,362,813 (3.8)

Source: The_\/illage.
Illinois State Income Tax

The following table sets forth the Illinois State income tax revenue received for the fiscal years ended April 30, 2009
through April 30, 2013,

Illinois State Income Tax

Fiscal Year State Income Tax
Ended: April 30 Revenue Annual Change
2009 $ 5,314,089 (1.0)%
2010 4,632,234 (12.8)
2011 4,547,250 (1.8)
2012 4,634,318 1.9
2013 5,110,104 10.3

Source: The Village.



VILLAGE DEBT
Debt Limitations

The Village has no general obligation debt limitation. It became a home rule unit of government under Article VII of
the 1970 Illinois Constitution in 1980. On October 18, 2011 the Village adopted a Fiscal Policies Manual which enacted a
debt limit of 8.625% of EAV which is comparable to the statutory limit for non home rule municipalities in the State. In tax
year 2012, the Village abated 86% of its general obligation bond debt service. The highest abatement percentage was n
2001 and 2002 at 88.6%. The Village maintains an ongoing program of abating property taxes for debt service which are
able to be paid through other revenue streams. Over the 31 years of the practice of abating debt service, the average was
81%.

Village’s Retirement Schedule of Outstanding General Obligation Debt W
Fiscal Year Series Serics Series Serics Series Series Series Bonds to be Total Cunwlative Retirement

April 30 2008 2000 2009A 2010® 2011 2009 203?%  Refunded _Principal Amount  Percent
2014 $495000  $780,000  $1,615,000 $510,000  $465000  $610,000 ($510,000)  $3,965,000 $3,965000  903%
2015 §515000  $685000  $2,280,000 $520,000  $485,000  $750,000 $405,000 ($520,000)  $5,120,000 $9,085,000 20 69%
2016 $535000  $705000  $1,965,000 $535000  $485000  $765,000 $425,000 ($535000)  $4,880,000  $13965000 3180%
2017 $555000  $715000  $2,685,000 $550,000  $505000  $780,000 $445,000 ($550,000)  $5,685,000  $19,650,000 44 75%
2018 $580,000  $750,000  $2,865,000 $565,000  $530,000  $790,000 $470,000 ($565,000)  $5985000  $25635000 5838%
2019 $1,000,000 §590,000  $560,000  $725,000 $500,000 ($590,000)  $2,785,000  $28420,000 64.72%
2020 $1,050,000 $615,000  $585,000  $760,000 $525,000 (5615,000)  $2,920,000  $31,340,000 7137%
2021 $1,050,000 $640,000  $610,000 $555,000 ($640,000)  $2,215000  $33555000 7642%
2022 $1,070,000 $670,000  $610,000 $585,000 (8670,000)  $2,265000  $35820,000 81 58%
2023 $705000  $660,000 $625,000 ($705,000)  $1,285,000  $37,105000 84 50%
2024 $745,000 §665,000 ($745,000) §665.000  $37,770,000 86 02%
2025 $780,000 $705,000 (5780,000) §705000  $38475000 8762%
2026 $825,000 $760,000 ($825,000) $760,000  $39,235000 8935%
2027 $865,000 $810,000 ($865,000) $810,000  $40.045000 9120%
2028 $915,000 $865,000 ($915,000) $865,000  $40910,000 93 17%
2029 $970,000 $930,000 ($970,000) $930,000  $41.840,000  9529%
2030 $1,030,000 $1,000,000  ($1,030,000)  $1,000,000  $42.840,000 97 56%
2031 1,090,000 §1,070,000  (51,090000)  $1,070,000  $43,910,000 100 00%

$2,680.000 $7,805,000 $11,410,000 $13,120,000 $5,495,000 $5,180,000 $11,340,000  ($13,120,000) $43,910,000

Debt information as of the delivery date of the Bonds. Includes the Bonds and excludes the Bonds to be Refunded.
@ Approximately 33.7% of the debt service is supported by the Water and Sewer Fund and 9.7% by a dedicated portion
of the Local Share of Income Tax received from the State.
®) Approximately 40% of the debt service is supported by Hotel/Motel Taxes, 42.9% by a dedicated portion of the Local
Share of Income Tax received from the State, 14.3% by the Water and Sewer Fund, 1.8% by the Stormwater Management
Fund and 1.1% by the Main Street South TIF Fund.
@ Approximately 50.3% of the debt service is supported by the Water and Sewer Fund, 30% by the Stormwater
Management Fund and 19.7% by a dedicated portion of the Local Share of Income Tax received from the State.
Source: The Village.



Detailed Statement of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Indebtedness

Total Debt
Outstanding Self-Supporting
General Obligation Bonds @ ............cocco....... $ 43,910,000 $ 0
Waterworks and Sewerage Revenue Bonds. 0.000 560.000
Totals $ 44,470,000 § 560,000
Per Capita Direct Bonded Debt @ ..............coooevvveirnn.,
Percent of Direct Bonded Debt to 2011 EAV® ...
Percent of Direct Debt to estimated 2011 Market Value ©.
Outstanding
Overlapping Bonded Debt: Bonds Percent %
School Districts
Elementary School Districts
Community Consolidated School District #146................. $ 25,185,000 56.12%
Summit Hill School District #161 (Will County) ................... 68,194,997 © 39.19%
Elementary School District #159 ...........coooveveeeeerreeerrerean. 32,324,576 O 17.92%
Arbor Park School District #145........ccccovveemrreroerrereecreensnnn, 28,102,139 © 8.29%
School District #160 ...........vvverreennn. 11,639,064 © 0.30%
High School Districts
Consolidated High School District #230 ......ocoevvvveveeeeeennna, 57,515,000 16.16%
Bremen Community High School District #228.........c..co....... 15,770,000 20.66%
Lincolnway High School District #210 (Will County)............ 269,794,161 © 9.25%
Rich Township High School District #227 ........ccovvevevverrnnn. 43,730,000 7 7.03%
Community College Districts
Moraine Valley Community College #524 ........c.cocecevirenne... 77,670,000 7.61%
South Suburban Community College #510............ccocovevvnn... 14,998,297 © 8.20%
Joliet Community College #525 (Will County)........cocovvenn.... 87,185,000 1.78%
Prairie State Community College #515 .......cocvvcvvverrveeeen. 11,022,040 © 2.29%
Other than Schools
Cook County (Includes Forest Preserve District)...........cccc........ 3,804,385,000 0.85%
Will County (Includes Forest Preserve District) ............occo....... 192,512,082 @ 1.74%
Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago... 2,238,816,507 0.87%
Park Districts
Tinley Park Park DiStriCt .....oo.oviveeeeeereeeeeeeeeoeeees oo 14,347,000 99.87%
Frankfort Square Park DisStrict..............cccoevvevorerevrerenreennn. 3,020,632 90 35.64%
Mokena Park District.......ccooovviiiiiiiieiieeceecee e, 4. 22.000 5.62%
Total Overlapping Bonded Debt: ..............ccococoeinvennenn. $7.000,733,495

Per Capita Overlapping Debt @ ._...........o.coooooreeeoreecee,
Percent of Overlapping Debt to 2011 EAV ™. ...
Percent of Overlapping Debt to estimated 2011 Market Value ©

Total Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt: ..o,

Per Capita Direct and Overlapping Debt @ ..........oooooovoroooeeoeee .
Percent of Direct and Overlapping Debt to 2011 EAV ™ ... s
Percent of Direct and Overlapping Debt to estimated 20] | Market Value @ ...

Net
$ 43,910,000
0

Amount

$ 14,133,822
26,725,619
5,792,564
2,329,667
34,917

9,294,424
3,258,082
24,955,960
3,074,219

5,910,687
1,229,860
1,551,893

252,405

32,337,273
3,349,710
19,477,704

14,328,349
1,076,553
254,136

$ 169,367,845

$2,986.93
10.53%
3.51%

$213,277,845

$3,761.32
13.26%
4.42%

" Debt information for overlapping and direct debt is as of May 1, 2013 and the dated date of the Bonds, respectively.

@ Includes the Bonds and excludes the Bonds to be Refunded.

88,289

ation Capital Appreciation Bonds.

lternate Revenue Source) Bonds which are expected to be paid from

sources other than general taxation.
Sources: The Village and the Cook and Will County Clerk’s Offices.



Debt History
There is no record of default on obligations of the Village.
Short Term Borrowing

In November 2008, the Village authorized a $7 million Taxable General Obligation Line of Credit Note with First
Midwest Bank which expired on November 6, 2011. The Village did not draw on the Line of Credit.

Future Financing
The Village does not anticipate issuing additional debt in the next twelve months.
LABOR CONTRACTS
The Village has 184 full time employees and approximately 265 part time and seasonal employees. Approximately

55.4% of the full time employees are represented by labor organizations. The following table illustrates the labor
organizations that represent the Village employees, the number of members and the expiration date of the present contracts.

Contract
Labor Unions Membership Expiration Date
Police Officersummumssucsusmssmmimssmsinsosiemss 61 April 30,2012 "
Public Works EmpIoyees .....cccccoumvinrrisvirinsirasnnas 41 April 30,2014

TOtAl .o s TS TR Ay R 102

) New Police contract still in negotiation.
Source: The Village

PENSION PLANS "
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Plan Descriptions

The Village’s defined pension plan for regular employees provides retirement and disability benefits, post retirement
increase, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The Village is a participating employer with the Illinois
Municipal Retirement Fund (“IMRF”), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions are established by statute and
may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained online at www.imrf.org.

Funding Policy

As set by statute, the Village’s regular plan members are required to contribute 4.5% of their annual covered salary. The
statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance the
retirement coverage of its own employees. The Village’s actual contribution rates for calendar years 2012 and 2011 used by
the Village were 13.81% and 13.88%, respectively, of annual covered payroll. The Village also contributes for disability
benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates
for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is
set by statute.

" "Source: The Village’s Audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2012.



Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year 2012, the Village’s annual pension cost of $1,568,325 was equal to the required and actual contributions.

Fiscal Year
Ending
April 30, 2012
April 30,2011
April 30,2010

Trend Information

Annual Percent of
Pension Cost APC
(APC) Contributed
$1,568,325 100.00%
1,499,834 100.00%
1,364,158 100.00%

Net Pension
Obligation

The required contribution for calendar year 2011 was determined as part of the December 31, 2009, actuarial valuation
using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at December 31, 2009 included (a) 7.5%
investment rate of return (net of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 4.0% per
year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.4% to 10.0% per year depending on
age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) post retirement benefit increases of 3.0% annually. The actuarial
value of the Village’s regular plan assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in
the market value of investments over a five-year period with a 20.0% corridor between the actuarial and market value of
assets. The Village’s regular plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability (“UAAL”) at December 31, 2009 is being
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open 30 year basis.

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the regular plan was 61.35% funded. The actuarial
accrued liability (“AAL”) for benefits was $30,024,056 and the actuarial value of assets was $18,420,498, resulting in a
UAAL of $11,603,558. The covered payroll for calendar year 2011 (annual payroll of active employees covered by the
plan) was $11,294,717 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 103.0%.

The schedule of funding progress below presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial liability for benefits,

Schedule of Funding Progress
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as
Actuarial Liability Unfunded a % of
Actuarial Valuation Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets Entry-Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
December 31, 2011 $18,420,498 $30,024,056 $£11,603,558 61.35%  $11,294,717 102.73%
December 31, 2010 16,896,654 28,116,663 11,220,009 60.09 10,904,953 102.89
December 31, 2009 15,476,915 27,121,699 11,644,784 57.06 11,050,083 105.38

Police Pension Plan

Police sworn personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan which is a defined single-employer pension plan.
Although this is a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee and employer contribution levels are
governed by Illinois Compiles Statutes and may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. The plan provides retirement
benefits as well as death and disability benefits. The Village presents the plan as a Pension Trust Fund within this report.
No separate report is issued for the pension trust fund.

Covered employees are currently required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Police Pension Plan. The
member rate is determined by State Statute. The Village is required to contribute at an actuarially determined amount. The
employer rate for fiscal year ended April 30, 2012, was 24.74% of covered payroll. The employer contribution is funded by
property taxes. The combination of employee contributions, employer contribution (tax levy) and investment earnings
collectively provide for the plan benefits and expenses. Contributions and benefits are recognized when due and payable
pursuant to formal commitments, as well as statutory or contractual requirements rather than the period in which employee
services are performed. Refunds are recognized as paid.



The Village’s annual pension cost and net pension (asset) of the Plan for the year ended April 30, 2012, were as follows:

Annual required CONTIDULION .......ev.vveviterenececasisscnssrsesseassss s eeessenscnscseensens 9 1,964,280
Interest on net pension ObIIZAtION .........coiiioiiiiiiie (60,007)
Adjustments to annual required cONtribUtion ... 553.903
Annual pension oSt (APC).....c.civimmeimrieimmeeraen ettt e b 2,458,176
ContribUIONS MAQE ...vevviveieieieneeert et ettt 2,204,188
Increase in Net PENSION ASSEL ... eveiviriurimsrsiurressimriersnsssssrsessnnre s ssases s st 253,988
Net pension (asset), beginning of YEar .......c.vcuereeiiiiiiieins s (1.411.147)
Net pension (asset), end of YEAr ......co.ccovviiiiniiiiec s $(1,157,159)

The annual required contribution for the year ended April 30, 2012, was determined as part of the April 30, 2011,
actuarial valuation report using the entry age normal cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.0% investment
rate of return, (b) projected salary increases of 5.5%, (¢) 3.0% per year cost of living adjustments. Both (a) and (b) included
an inflation component of 3.0%. The actuarial value of Police Pension assets was determined using techniques that smooth
the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period. The Police Pension Plan’s
UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at April 30,
2012, was 21 years.

Trend Information — Schedule of Employer Contributions

Annual Annual Percent of Net Pension
Fiscal Year Pension Cost Contributions APC Obligation
Ending (APC) Made Contributed (Asset)
April 30,2012 $2,458,176 $2,204,188 89.7% $(1,157,159)
April 30,2011 1,941,556 1,584,771 81.6% (857,244)
April 30,2010 1,447,429 1,441,809 99.6% (1,213,868)

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of April 30, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Police Pension Plan was 72.3% funded. The AAL for
benefits was $65,231,327 and the actuarial value of assets was $47,187,633, resulting in a UAAL of $18,043,694. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $6,731,721 and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 284.9%.

The schedule of funding progress below presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial liability for benefits.

Schedule of Funding Progress
Police Pension Fund

UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded a % of
Valuation Actuarial Value  Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Date of Assets Entry-Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
April 30,2012 $46,050,458 $65,231,327 $19,180,869 70.6%  $6,731,721 284.9%
April 30,2011 43,497,563 60,478,664 16,981,101 71.92 6,405,212 265.11
April 30,2010 38,532,632 56,117,025 17,584,393 68.66 6,522,884 269.58
April 30,2009 32,559,551 52,118,070 19,558,519 62.47 6,242,342 31332
Membership in the plan consisted of the following as of April 30, 2012:
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits. ... 38
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits ..o, 2
Active vested plan MEMDETS. ...cvoieiiririrr i ettt 52
Active nonvested plan MEMDEIS.. ... s 22
TOUAL . psseesmsrrsnsonssnsstosssnsssnssansssssnsssansasasssrsmsssonesnessorso g et ety sareagsnsrm g SR E I TS Em s RS ora e A SRY 114

19



OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Descriptions

The Village provides limited health care insurance coverage for its eligible retired employees. Dependent coverage is
available to eligible retired employees at an additional cost to the retiree. This is a single-employer plan. The Retiree Health
Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.

Funding Policy

The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. Retirees receive coverage under
the Village’s health plan with a limited employer contribution rate applied toward the premiums for the coverage elected by
the employee. For fiscal year 2012, the Village contributed $527,276 to the plan.

Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation

The Village’s annual other postemployment benefit (“OPEB™) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required
contribution (“ARC”), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The
ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and
amortize any UAAL (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years.

The following table shows the components of the Village’s annual OPEB cost for the year ended April 30, 2012, the
amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Village’s net OPEB obligation to the plan:

Annual required CONtHIbULION ovvvoveeeeececeeees $1,164,685
Interest on net OPEB obligation.........cccceee. e 128,973
Adjustments to annual required contribution. (85.982)
Annual OPEB cost (€Xpense)...cccocvvvveveeceess 1,207,676
Contributions made.....c.cccoovvmvciciiiees 527276
Increase in net OPEB obligation .......cocc..... 680,400
Net OPEB liability, beginning of year ... .. 2,579.451
Net OPEB liability, end 0f Year ........ccocooiiiiiiiicic e $3,259,851

The Village’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for 2012 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Percentage of

Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB

Year Ending OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
April 30,2012 $1,207,676 43.7% $3,259,851
April 30,2011 1,331,407 24.5% 2,579,451
April 30,2010 1,266,628 41.6% 1,573,706

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of April 30, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was not funded. The AAL for benefits was
$15,236,208, and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in a UAAL of $15,236,208. The covered payroll (annual
payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $17,061,005, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was
89.30%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality,
and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the ARC of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the
future.

Source: The Village’s Audited Financial Statements for the (iscal year ended April 30, 2012.
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The schedule of funding progress below presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial liability for benefits.

Schedule of Funding Progress
Postemployment Healthcare Plan

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL asa
Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded % of
Valuation Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets Entry-Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payrol}
April 30,2011  § $15,236,208 $15,236,208 0.00%  $17,061,005 89.30%
April 30,2010 14,285,906 14,285,906 0.00 16,459,219 86.80
April 30, 2009 14,108,935 14,108,935 0.00 14,999,067 94.07

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the
employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in AALs and the
actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the April 30, 2012 actuarial valuation (the most recent available), the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 5.0% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is the expected
long-term investment returns on the employer’s own investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the
valuation date, 5.0% projected salary increases, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8.0% initially, reduced by
decrements to an ultimate rate of 6.0%. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that spread the
effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period. The UAAL is being amortized as
a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at April 30, 2012 was 30 years.

SUMMARY OF HISTORICAL FINANCIAL OPERATIONS

Budget Process

The Village typically starts its annual budget preparation near the end of each calendar year, preparing projections of
expected revenues for both the current and upcoming fiscal years; obtaining operating budget expenditure projections for
the current year; as well as operating budget and capital expenditure requests for the ensuing fiscal year from Village
department heads. The Treasurer and Village Manager review these requests and provide recommendations to the Village
Board committees on the various departmental budgets, based on the requests and the expected revenue sources to support
the activities. The Village Board then meets to review the proposed budgets in their entirety, generally during the month of
March. It is the Village Board’s policy that the primary operating and enterprise funds reflect a balanced budget prior to
approval. Most of the other Village funds including capital projects and special revenue funds are not subject to this
requirement since they are generally designed to accumulate funds for later expenditure. The budget details are finalized
and presented at a Public Hearing, and adopted by the Village Board, typically during the month of April, so that the budget
is completed and approved prior to the start of the new fiscal year. The Village did not adopt any budget amendments
applicable to fiscal year 2012 or 2013.
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Summary of Financial Information

The following tables are summaries and do not purport to be the complete audits, copies of which are available upon

request.
General Fund - Balance Sheet
Fiscal Years Ended April 30, 2009 Through 2012
2009 2010 2011 2012
Assets:
Cash and equivalents .........cccooviviiniiiiiciiiniiiiiniininen, $ 8,935232 $ 9,653,715 $ 12,876,558 $ 19,406,700
Receivables
Property taxes. cusisiisa s svsonis v Geiiiiai 10,498,850 10,740,398 11,160,909 11,467,189
ACCOUNTS iciasiimivsisissasinsumonisaiiansaas 342,041 419,019 444,445 684,282
Intergovernmental .........c.ccooiveniiiiinsionenininnenn, 3.891.373 4.588.316 4422208 5.279.605
Total aSSEts cmmmmmiveantrimssestim sttt e $ 23.667.496 $ 25401.448 $ 28.904.120 $ 36.837.776
Liabilities:
Accounts payablewsmmeeasmnmmss e $ 848,763 $ 786,530 $ 1,049,824 $ 1,261,026
Accrued payroll ...t s 807,034 612,349 18,000 79,561
DEPOSILS cuvierrenerieireessiansensesieersesasesasssseesscssressessssssssnie 5,629 2,044 6,666 5,197
Due to other funds ........cccceriviiivinnioieomimmereiiasesns 88,456 0 0 29,921
Advance from other funds ........coooviviiriiiiiiciiiinien, 0 0 0 2,423,498
Unearned FEVENUE ............c.oeorvrervrerrrresrosessssssmsssssesnses 15,342,602 17,814,667 0 0
Deferred revenue .............occovemvvicniireiiisssissssseeses 18,780,035 19.426.927
Total HabilTtEs ...vveecieeeiiris s s evceses s ernesie s $ 17,092,485 $ 19.215,590 $ 19,854,525 $ 23,226,130
Fund Balances:
Unassigned/UNreServed .......oovuoveeeoreeveciverssseesnnnne $ 6,575,011 $ 6,185,858 $ 9,049,595 $ 8,679,443
ASSIZNEA ..ottt r st en et e s 0 0 0 4.932.203
Total fund balance...........c..ooovivieeveecrieirericinines $ 6,575,011 $ 6,185,858 $ 9.049,595 $ 13,611,646
Total liabilities and fund balance.......................... $ 23667496 $ 25,401,448 $ 28,904,120 $ 36,837,776

Source: The Village’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal years 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012.
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General Fund - Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances

Fiscal Years Ended April 30, 2009 Through 2012

2009 2010 2011 2012

Revenues:
Program:

Charges fOr SErVICES wouuimmimiviiiumreimiesesieraieramnes $ 479,046 $ 284934 § 249,097 $ 1,212,089

Licenses, permits and fees.....cccocovvveevcnniinirnniaan, 2,250,019 1,842,159 1,932,931 2,362,163

Intergovernmental ..........ccoiiceniiniienicsiecniinnie 5,624,525 3,665,383 5,065,752 5,337,424

Fines, forfeitures and reimbursements................ 944,587 991,793 1,141,023 1,235,729
General:

Property 1aXeS e sismsasismsssusisenssronssnsnsansassssssssns 14,567,561 16,068,095 17,181,481 18,428,532

Other tAXES. ..veevvveeeerireeseestieereesneseesreesneeseeseeneees 11,331,420 10,836,238 12,211,389 13,763,745

TNEETESE coveeeeereirsisiescerere e seebs e ene b bas s st siaereres 284,646 194,891 136,999 174,710

MiSCEIANEOUS c.vvivviiiecieeririiiirie e srsenessee e sreernes 343,601 328467 419,650 722.626
Total FEVENUES .....cvvveeeeeiiecrieeeree et $ 35825405 $ 34211960 § 38338322 § 43237018
Expenditures:
General GOVEINMENT ........coerurusrieresesierssissasssssssssnses $ 2468780 $ 2408113 $§ 2821870 $ 3,819,595
General overhead .........cccocviviiniiininnninin e 2,370,968 2,143,671 1,834,249 1,982,874
POLICE. euviiuiiriii et s 14,213,405 14,228,341 14,791,900 15,840,062
FIIE ottt st s s s 3,612,339 3,366,651 3,537,261 3,939,515
Emergency management agency (EMA) .................. 940,193 946,120 832,658 802,958
Road and Brid@e ......ccoveeeevsiemrresesmmemnmmssnes s 3,904,176 3,504,827 3,396,081 3,163,606
ELeCtriCal .vovuveeivieiee et sraeseesieevae e e s senas 958,486 904,966 1,012,108 1,043,256
Municipal building and grounds .............. ceeeereeee 703,259 613,593 686,568 659,885
Community development............ccovecremecriiciniiins 1,235,150 1,227,885 1,273,282 1,381,718
Boards, commissions and committees.........cc.ovuverneen. 146,978 117,520 129,062 175,254
SENIOr BUS SEIVICES ...uvuiiiiiiiiiiiirerssisrneiinsnnresrsesssrnseeens 96,904 76,789 78,864 79,569
Village bus SErvices ......coccevemrerciernieniciinieiiiininen, 27,320 37,986 37,932 40,333
Economic INCENtIVES ...evvvvveeieeeriecciieceeiveee e 744,183 807,392 1,336,331 1,528,621
DEDL SEIVICE .uvicuveeriavneuraeresrnerressreesiessessmeeseecrnssessenss 0 0 0 77,873
Capital OUtIaY .coveeerieer i 0 0 0 355.251
Total eXpenditures... .o iireiercereses i eses s $ 31422141 $ 30383854 $ 31.768.166 § 34.890.370
Excess of revenues over

EXPENAILUIES voviviriererienirrmrnsseeess v enens $ 4403264 $ 3.828,106 $ 6.570.156 $  8.346.648
Other financing sources (uses):

Bond issuance.........ccoeeeveevvennenn e e $ 0 3 0 $ 0 $ 1,570,500

Premium on bond iSSUaNCE.......eeirivrerionvereenrnnrnrns 0 0 0 60,443

Transfers INu....ooeeeoreeceeeecvireeerrereseneeesnarrennas 26,532 114,754 293,885 222,670

Transfers (out)....... et an st arsamsrar e i (5,186,836) (4,332,013) (4,000,304) (7,141,252)

Payment to escrow agent.........oocovvvercencceccenennen. o 0 0 0 (1.552,500)
Total other financing sources (US€s)........ooureerveerereeres $ (5.160.304) $ (4.217259) § (3.706419) §$ (6.840.139)
Changes in fund balance ............ccccceeevioiicciiicinne. (757,040) (389,153) 2,863,737 1,506,509
Fund balance — beginning of year (May 1,2011) .. 7332051 6,575,011 6.185.858 12,105,137
Fund balance — end of year (April 30, 2012).......... $ 6575011 § _6,185858 § 9,049,595 § 13.611.646

" Includes an adjustment of $3,055.542 as a result of implementing GASB 45, Certain funds, which were previously reported as
special revenue funds, no longer meet the criteria for reporting as such and are now reported as part of the General Fund. These funds
include Storm Water Management, Hotel/Motel Tax, Main Street Development, Local Road Improvements, Train Station Operation and

Maintenance. and Fire Alarm.
Source:
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ECONOMIC PROFILE
Employment
The employment opportunities available to residents in the Village and the surrounding metropolitan area have
contributed to a very favorable employment rate for the Village. The following table sets forth the rates of unemployment
for the Village, the Counties, the State and the United States for the last five years and the most recent month available in

2013.

Comparative Unemployment Rates

Cook Will
Year The Village County County The State United States
2008 4.9% 6.4% 6.1% 6.4% 5.8%
2009 8.6 10.4 10.1 10.0 9.3
2010 9.5 10.8 10.7 10.4 9.6
2011 8.6 10.3 10.1 9.7 8.9
2012 17 93 9.0 8.9 8.1
2013 M 8.8 10.5 11.0 10.5 8.1

M as of February 2013.
Source: Illinois Department of Employment Security, Department of Economic Information and Analysis.

According to the 2007-2011 American Community Survey by the U.S. Census Bureau, Village residents have a wide
variety of occupations. The following table categorizes occupations for employed residents 16 years of age and older for the
Village, the Counties and the State.

Occupational Categories

Cook will

Occupational Category The Village County County The State
Management, professional, and related occupations ................... 38.4% 37.1% 35.5% 35.9%
SEIvice 0CCUPALIONS ...cveviivieiiceiiececee e 13.3 17.5 14.7 16.7
Sales and office 0CCUPALIONS........cccoviveieeieciieeveee e 27.7 25.4 26.9 25.6
Natural resources, construction, and maintenance occupations.... 8.0 6.7 9.3 7.9
Production, transportation and material moving occupations...... 12.7 13.4 13.7 14.0

TOtaAl.coei e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2007-2011 American Community Survey 5-year estimates.
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According to the 2007-2011 American Community Survey by the U.S. Census Bureau, Village residents work in a
variety of industries. The following table categorizes the industries that residents (16 years of age and older) are employed

by for the Village, the Counties and the State.

Industry Category
The Cook Will The
Industry Category Village  County  County State
Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting, and mining............cciiiiniinn 0.1% 0.2% 0.5% 1.1%
CONSTUCHION o zuiinmossivsisa i s s s s L e e e B S v oSS 6.4 5.1 7.0 5.7
Manufacturing iz ot e el by s sae e T s 10.6 11.0 12.3 12.8
Whoesale trade ssmsssss st e i i e et Vs R i e 35 3.1 2.9 3.8 33
Rl trad e ittt s it nis i s i S oo s e s s St S0 S O B it 13.5 9.9 11.8 10.9
Transportation and warehousing, and ULIIHES .....covvvieiimiiiimim e 5.8 6.3 7.6 5.9
I LTI A O N4 i o o e L S B s e L R o W S A A SAS0E 1.3 2.5 2.1 2.2
Finance, insurance, real estate, and rental and 1€asing........c..ccccecvivniinrninciincninnncnennns 9.5 8.7 7.3 7.7
Professional, scientific, management, administrative, and waste management services .. 9.5 13.3 10.5 11.0
Educational services, health care and social aSSIStANCE ......coiimviviiiiiiviniinisiie s sins 23.6 21.8 21.2 22.1
Arts, entertainment, recreation, accommodation and food services ... 7.4 9.5 7.9 8.7
Other services (except public administration) ..o 4.8 5.0 44 4.8
Public adminiStration s esisissmieis iossiss s iisias asbisnsmsirs sassnassisssviassrvivssiussivsins 4.3 3.8 37 3.9
TOURAN it it sy aas B s B b G SRR T A T B R P SRR MO 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2007-2011 American Community Survey 5-year estimates.

The following table reflects the diversity of the major employers in the Village by the products manufactured or

services performed and the approximate number of employees.

Representative Large Employers

Company Business Product
Comcast Corporation ... veerieeneneneenenes Customer Service Call Center.......ccoceevcinrecrenecnn
Kirby School District 140 KON Elementary School District ..........cccoovevivinneniienn.
Village of Tinley Park V_.........cc..coovocircrrenene. Municipal GOVernment ..........occeeeeieninimvinseisnnenes
Springfield Service Corp ................................. Call Center ........ vt s AT an s amseass
Target... RN 11 ¢: 1| I (41 ¢ Iy A MR SRS e oot
Panduit Corporatlon ........................................ Manufacturer — Networking and Electrical............
St. Coletta’s of I1HNOIS .....ocveeiviercieiicciicinee Not-for-profit foundation ..........cccoveeecenrrerecinnnen.
American Sale......cooooviiiiiciii e Swimming Pools, Spas, Christmas ...........ccccceeeeree
Consolidated High School District 230........... High School District .........coviciiciiniiniiinnn.
Consolidated School District 146 ..........cce.. School DISITICE .eeuveeeeeeceeeceeeie b
Menards .. erronsrnrranrnsnsen RETAT STOTE L iiiiiimm b
Southwest Commumty Serv1ce ....................... Contract Packaging & Assembly .......ccccocviviuenens

(1) Includes full-time and part-time employees.
Sources: Phone canvass of employers and 2013 Illinois Services and Manufacturers Directories.
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588
449
350
325
300
300
300
264
254
230
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Education

The educational background of Village residents as compared to the Counties and the State is illustrated in the following

table:

Education Levels For Persons 25 Years of Age And Older

Cook Will
Educational Attainment The Village County County The State
Less than 9™ grade .......ocoovovvesuesriveriososinns 3.1% 7.9% 4.1% 5.8%
9" or 12" grade, no diploma ... 4.0 8.3 5.8 7.5
High school graduate ... 27.9 24.7 28.1 27.6
Some college, no degree ..........coccecevnriivinninn. 23.2 19.2 22.9 21.1
Associate degree .....covveeeeriniecnniciisesisireans 9.6 6.2 7.8 7.3
Bachelor's degree ........cooeevvvivieeeciicreicsiiininns 22.0 20.5 20.2 19.1
Graduate or professional degree..................... 10.3 13.2 11.1 11.6
Percent high school graduate or higher.......... 92.9 83.7 90.2 86.6
Percent bachelor's degree or higher................ 322 33.7 31.3 30.7

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2007-2011 American Community Survey 5-year estimates.

Estimated Retail Sales

The following table reflects the breakdown of retail sales according to major purchase categories for the Village, the
Counties and the State for the calendar year ended 2012.

General Merchandise
Food
Drinking and Eating Places
Apparel
Furniture and Radio
Lumber and Building Hardware
Automolive and Gas Stations
Drugs and Miscellaneous Relail
Agriculture and All Others
Manufacturers

Totals

Source:

2012 Comparative Retail Sales By Classification

Village of Tinley Park Cook County Will County State of 1llinois

Retail Percent of Retail Percent of Retail Percent of Retalil Percent of

Sales Total Sales Total Sales Total Sales Total
$97.609,331 12.49% $6,739,231,330 11.06% $1,080,297.060 13,99% $20,733,160,619 12.95%
79,932,664 10.23% 8,419,221,663 13.81% 799,209,277 10.35% 20,039,884,170 12.51%
78,224,578 10.01% 9,767,032,872 16.03% 777,227,652 10,07% 19,393,712,304 12.11%
9.754,724 1.25% 3,301,345,750 5.42% 137,839,122 1.79% 5,994,201,569 3.74%
8,904,857 1.14% 2,950,910,773 4.84% 363,553,697 4.71% 7,189,768,053 4.49%
33,621,390 4.30% 2,474,282,817 4.06% 491,541,339 6.37% 7,718,024,120 4.82%
341.210,856 43.67% 11,706,952,001 19.21% 1,942,990,900 25.17% 35,836,192,341 22.37%
93,132,928 11.92% 9,316,729,123 15.29% 1,185,687,553 15.36% 24,308,647,928 15.18%
35.275.602 4.52% 5,219,604,475 8.56% 766,800,665 9.93% 16,053,676.578 10.02%
3,595,852 0.46% 1,049,292 421 1.72% 175,379,149 2.27% 2,895.646,767 1.81%
$781,262,782 100.00% $60,944,603,225  100.00% $7,720,526.414  100.00% $160,162,914,449 100.00%

Hllinois Department of Revenue.
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Housing and Construction

A history of building permits in the Village for the last five calendar years is as follows

Single Family
Year  Number of Units
2008 21 $
2009 3
2010 7
2011 9
2012 12

Source: The Village.

Building Permits

Multi-Family
Value Number of Units Value
5,661,770 9 $ 1,540,000
710,000 4 512,000
1,494,900 2 244,000
1,828,800 0
2,886,800 0

)
$

ther Value
90,609,082
30,090,802
29,770,008
42,915,781
32,292,098

Total Value
$ 97,810,852
31,312,802
31,508,908
44,744,581
35,178,898

According to the 2007-2011 American Community Survey by the U.S. Census Bureau, 86.5% of the 20,728 occupied
housing units in the Village were owner-occupied. The median home value of owner occupied homes in the Village was
$249,100. Selected home value data relative to values of owner-occupied housing units in the Village compared with the

Counties and the State are provided in the table below.

Value of Specified

Owner-Occupied Units
Under 50,000 ..............
$50,000 to $99,999 .....
$100,000 to $149,999 .
$150,000 to $199,999 .
$200,000 to $299,999 .
$300,000 to $499,999 .
$500,000 to $999,999 .
$1,000,000 or more.....

Median Home Value......

The Village

1.0%
1.1
5.7
20.7
38.5
31.0
1.9
0.2

$249,100

Median Home Values

Cook County

2.8%

5.0
10.0
15.7
26.9
26.2
10.9

2.6

$256,900

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2007-2011 American Community Survey 5-year estimates.

Income

2.2
34
10.4
20.1
33.0
24.2
6.2
0.5

Will County

%

$236,300

The State

6.7%
13.8
14.2
15.8
22.1
18.7

7.2

1.6

$198,500

The following table sets forth the distribution of household income derived from the 2007-2011 American Community
Survey by the U.S. Census Bureau for the Village compared with the Counties and the State.

Household Income

Under $10,000..........cceeeene
$10,000 to $14,999................
$15,000 to $24,999................
$25,000 to $34,999................
$35,000 to $49,999...............
$50,000 to $74,999..............
$75,000 to $99.999................
$100,000 to $149,999.............
$150,000 t0 $199,999............
$200,000 or more .......cceeuveee

Median Household Income
Median Family Income .....
Per Capita Income .............

The Village

2.3%
24
6.5
94
10.3
17.8
18.0
203
8.4
4.5

$77,097
590,482
$32,986

Income Statistics

Cook County

8.1%
4.9
10.4
9.7
13.0
17.8
12.4
13.0
5.1
5.6

$54,598
$65,842
$29,920

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2007-2011 American Community Survey S-year estimates.
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Will County

3.1%

2.7
6.7
7.0
10.7
18.9
16.3
20.7
8.5
5.5

$76,4
$86,3
$30,1

53
72
99

The State
6.8%
4.7

10.1
9.7
13.2
18.5
13.2
13.7
5.1
5.0

$56.576
$69,658
$29,376



BOND RATING

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., has assigned its rating of “AA+”
to the Bonds. There is no assurance that such rating will prevail for any given period of time or that they will not be revised
downward or withdrawn entirely by such rating agency if, in its judgment, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward
revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. Any rating assigned
represents only the view of the rating agency. The definitions furnished by the rating agency for its rating may be obtained
from the rating agency.

TAX EXEMPTION

Federal tax law contains a number of requirements and restrictions which apply to the Bonds, including investment
restrictions, periodic payments of arbitrage profits to the United States, requirements regarding the proper use of bond
proceeds and the facilities financed therewith, and certain other matters. The Village has covenanted to comply with all
requirements that must be satisfied in order for the interest on the Bonds to be excludable from gross income for federal
income tax purposes. Failure to comply with certain of such covenants could cause interest on the Bonds to become
includible in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds.

Subject to the Village’s compliance with the above-referenced covenants, under present law, in the opinion of Bond
Counsel, interest on the Bonds (i) is excludable from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax
purposes, (ii) is not included as an item of tax preference in computing the federal alternative minimum tax for individuals
and corporations but Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to whether interest on the Bonds is taken into account in
computing adjusted current earnings, which is used in determining the federal alternative minimum tax for certain
corporations.

In rendering its opinion, Bond Counsel will rely upon certifications of the Village with respect to certain material facts
within the Village’s knowledge. Bond Counsel’s opinion represents its legal judgment based upon its review of the law and
the facts that it deems relevant to render such opinion and is not a guarantee of a result.

Ownership of the Bonds may result in collateral federal income tax consequences to certain taxpayers, including,
without limitation, corporations subject to the branch profits tax, financial institutions, certain insurance companies, certain
S corporations, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits and taxpayers who may be deemed
to have incurred (or continued) indebtedness to purchase or carry tax-exempt obligations. Prospective purchasers of the
Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to applicability of any such collateral consequences.

The issue price (the “Issue Price”) for each maturity of the Bonds is the price at which a substantial amount of such
maturity of the Bonds is first sold to the public. The Issue Price of a maturity of the Bonds may be different from the price
set forth, or the price corresponding to the yield set forth, on the inside cover page hereof.

If the Issue Price of a maturity of the Bonds is less than the principal amount payable at maturity, the difference
between the Issue Price of each such maturity, if any, of the Bonds (the “OID Bonds™) and the principal amount payable at
maturity is original issue discount.

For an investor who purchases an OID Bonds in the initial public offering at the Issue Price for such maturity and who
holds such OID Bonds to its stated maturity, subject to the condition that the Village complies with the covenants discussed
above, (a) the full amount of original issue discount with respect to such OID Bonds constitutes interest which is excludable
from the gross income of the owner thereof for federal income tax purposes; (b) such owner will not realize taxable capital

gain or market discount upon payment of such OID Bends at its stated maturity; (c) such origina! issue discount is not
mcluded as an item of tax preference in computing the alternative minimum tax for individuals and corporations under the
Code; (d) such original issue discount is not taken into account in computing an adjustment used in determining the
alternative minimum tax for certain corporations under the Code, as described above; and (e) the accretion of original issue
discount in each year may result in certain other collateral federal income tax consequences in each year even though a
corresponding cash payment may not be received until a later year. Based upon the stated position of the Illinois
Department of Revenue under Illinois income tax law, accreted original issue discount on such OID Bonds is subject to
taxation as it accretes, even though there may not be a corresponding cash payment until a later year. Owners of OID
Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the state and local tax consequences of original issue discount
on such OID Bonds.
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Owners of Bonds who dispose of Bonds prior to the stated maturity (whether by sale, redemption or otherwise),
purchase Bonds in the initial public offering, but at a price different from the Issue Price or purchase Bonds subsequent to
the initial public offering should consult their own tax advisors.

If a Bond is purchased at any time for a price that is less than the Bond’s stated redemption price at maturity or, in the
case of an OID Bond, its Issue Price plus accreted original issue discount (the “Revised Issue Price”), the purchaser will be
treated as having purchased a Bond with market discount subject to the market discount rules of the Code (unless a
statutory de minimis rule applies). Accrued market discount is treated as taxable ordinary income and is recognized when a
Bond is disposed of (to the extent such accrued discount does not exceed gain realized) or, at the purchaser’s election, as it
accrues. Such treatment would apply to any purchaser who purchases an OID Bond for a price that is less than its Revised
Issue Price. The applicability of the market discount rules may adversely affect the liquidity or secondary market price of
such Bond. Purchasers should consult their own tax advisors regarding the potential implications of market discount with
respect to the Bonds.

An investor may purchase a Bond at a price in excess of its stated principal amount. Such excess is characterized for
federal income tax purposes as “bond premium” and must be amortized by an investor on a constant yield basis over the
remaining term of the Bond in a manner that takes into account potential call dates and call prices. An investor cannot
deduct amortized bond premium relating to a tax-exempt bond. The amortized bond premium is treated as a reduction in
the tax-exempt interest received. As bond premium is amortized, it reduces the investor’s basis in the Bond. Investors who
purchase a Bond at a premium should consult their own tax advisors regarding the amortization of bond premium and its
effect on the Bond’s basis for purposes of computing gain or loss in connection with the sale, exchange, redemption or
early retirement of the Bond.

There are or may be pending in the Congress of the United States legislative proposals, including some that carry
retroactive effective dates, that, if enacted, could alter or amend the federal tax matters referred to above or affect the
market value of the Bonds. It cannot be predicted whether or in what form any such proposal might be enacted or whether,
if enacted, it would apply to bonds issued prior to enactment. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own
tax advisors regarding any pending or proposed federal tax legislation. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any
pending or proposed federal tax legislation.

The Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) has an ongoing program of auditing tax-exempt obligations to determine
whether, in the view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is includible in the gross income of the owners
thereof for federal income tax purposes. It cannot be predicted whether or not the Service will commence an audit of the
Bonds. If an audit is commenced, under current procedures the Service may treat the Village as a taxpayer and the holders
of the Bonds may have no right to paiticipate in such procedure. The commencement of an audit could adversely affect the
market value and liquidity of the Bonds until the audit is concluded, regardless of the ultimate outcome.

Payments of interest on, and proceeds of the sale, redemption or maturity of, tax-exempt obligations, including the
Bonds, are in certain cases required to be reported to the Service. Additionally, backup withholding may apply to any such
payments to any Bond owner who fails to provide an accurate Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and
Certification, or a substantially identical form, or to any Bond owner who is notified by the Service of a failure to report
any interest or dividends required to be shown on federal income tax returns. The reporting and backup withholding
requirements do not affect the excludability of such interest from gross income for federal tax purposes.

Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to the treatment of interest expense for financial institutions owning the Bonds
for purposes of Section 265(b)(7) of the Code. Financial institutions should consult their tax advisors concerning such
treatment.

Interest on the Bonds is not exempt from present State of [llinois income taxes. Ownership of the Bonds may result in
other state and local tax consequences to certain taxpayers. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such
collateral consequences arising with respect to the Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax
advisors regarding the applicability of any such state and local taxes.

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Bonds are subject to the approving legal
opinion of Chapman and Cutler LLP, Chicago, Illinois, as Bond Counsel (the “Bond Counsel”) who has been retained by
and acts as Bond Counsel to the Village. Bond Counsel has not been retained or consulted on disclosure matters and has
not undertaken to review or verify the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of this Official Statement or other offering
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material relating to the Bonds and assumes no responsibility for the statements of information contained in or incorporated
by reference in this Official Statement, except that in its capacity as Bond Counsel, Chapman and Cutler LLP has, at the
request of the Village, reviewed only those portions of this Official Statement involving the description of the Bonds, the
security for the Bonds (excluding forecasts, projections, estimates or any other financial or economic information in
connection therewith), and the description of the federal tax exemption of interest on the Bonds. This review was
undertaken solely at the request and for the benefit of the Village and did not include any obligation to establish or confirm
factual matters set forth herein.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The Village will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the “Undertaking”) for the beneficial owners of the
Bonds to send certain information annually and to provide notice of certain events to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking
Board (the “MSRB”) pursuant to the requirements of Section (b)(5) of Rule 15¢2-12 (the “Rule”) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. The information to be provided on an annual basis pursuant to the Undertaking, the types of events
which will be noticed on an occurrence basis and a summary of other terms of the Undertaking, including termination,
amendment and remedies, are set forth below under “The Undertaking.”

A failure by the Village to comply with the Undertaking will not constitute a default under the Bond Resolution and
beneficial owners of the Bonds are limited to the remedies described in the Undertaking. See “The Undertaking—
Consequences of Failure of the Village to Provide Information.” A failure by the Village to comply with the Undertaking
must be reported in accordance with the Rule and must be considered by any broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer
before recommending the purchase or sale of the Bonds in the secondary market. Consequently, such a failure may
adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their market price.

The Village failed to file its audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended April 30, 2010 and April 30, 2011
within the time periods specified in a prior continuing disclosure undertaking. The Village has filed such audited financial
statements. The Village is establishing procedures to ensure that such audited financial statements will be filed in a timely
manner in the future.

Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to whether the Undertaking complies with the requirements of Section (b)(5) of
the Rule.

THE UNDERTAKING

The following is a brief summary of certain provisions of the Undertaking of the Village and does not purport to be
complete. The statements made under this caption are subject to the detailed provisions of the Undertaking, a copy of
which is available upon request from the Village.

Annual Financial Information Disclosure

The Village covenants that it will disseminate its Annual Financial Information and its Audited Financial Statements, if
any (as described below) annually to the MSRB in such manner and format and accompanied by identifying information as
is prescribed by the MSRB or the Commission at the time of delivery of such information. The Village is required to
deliver such information within 210 days after the last day of the Village’s fiscal year (currently April 30). MSRB Rule
G-32 requires all EMMA filings to be in word-searchable PDF format. This requirement extends to all documents to be
filed with EMMA, including financial statements and other externally prepared reports.

"Annual Financial Information" means the financial information and operating data consistent with the information
contained in the Official Statement under the sections: “REAL PROPERTY ASSESSMENT, TAX LEVY AND
COLLECTION PROCEDURES” and “VILLAGE DEBT” (excluding Overlapping Debt).

“Audited Financial Statements” means the combined financial statements of the Village prepared in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Reportable Events Disclosure

The Village covenants that it will disseminate in a timely manner (not in excess of ten business days after the
occurrence of the Reportable Event) Reportable Events Disclosure to the MSRB in such manner and format and
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accompanied by identifying information as is prescribed by the MSRB or the Commission or the State at the time of
delivery of such information. MSRB Rule G-32 requires all EMMA filings to be in word-searchable PDF format. This
requirement extends to all documents filed with EMMA, including financial statements and other externally prepared
reports. The “Events” are:

e Principal and interest payment delinquencies

e Non-payment related defaults, if material

e Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties

e  Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties

o Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform

e  Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability,
Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax
status of the security, or other material events affecting the tax-exempt status of the security

e Modifications to the rights of security holders

e Bond calls, if material, and tender offers

e Defeasances

e Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the securities, if material

e Rating changes

e Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Village*

e The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Village or the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Village, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to
undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement to any such actions, other than pursuant to its
terms, if material

e Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material

* This event is considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the
Village in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or
governmenial authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business ol the Village, or if such jurisdiction has
been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a
court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Village.

Consequences of Failure of the Village to Provide Information

The Village shall give notice in a timely manner to the MSRB of any failure to provide disclosure of Annual Financial
Information and Audited Financial Statements when the same are due under the Undertaking.

In the event of a failure of the Village to comply with any provision of the Undertaking, the beneficial owner of any
Bond may seek mandamus or specific performance by court order to cause the Village to comply with its obligations under
the Undertaking. A default under the Undertaking shall not be deemed a default under the Ordinance, and the sole remedy
under the Undertaking in the event of any failure of the Village to comply with the Undertaking shall be an action to
compel performance.

Amendment; Waiver

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Undertaking, the Village by resolution authorizing such amendment or
waiver, may amend the Undertaking, and any provision of the Undertaking may be waived, if:

(a)(i) The amendment or the waiver is made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in
legal requirements, including, without limitation, pursuant to a “no-action” letter issued by the Commission, a change in
law, or a change in the identity, nature, or status of the Village, or type of business conducted; or

(i) The Undertaking, as amended, or the provision, as waived, would have complied with the requirements of the
Rule at the time of the primary offering, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as
any change in circumstances; and

(b) The amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds, as
determined by parties unaffiliated with the Village (such as Bond Counsel).

In the event that the Commission or the MSRB or other regulatory authority approves or requires Annual Financial
Information or notices of a Reportable Event to be filed with a central post office, governmental agency or similar entity
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other than the MSRB or in lieu of the MSRB, the Village shall, if required, make such dissemination to such central post
office, governmental agency or similar entity without the necessity of amending the Undertaking.

Termination of Undertaking

The Undertaking shall be terminated if the Village shall no longer have any legal liability for any obligation on or
relating to repayment of the Bonds under the Ordinance. The Village shall give notice to the MSRB in a timely manner if
this paragraph is applicable.

Additional Information

Nothing in the Undertaking shall be deemed to prevent the Village from disseminating any other information, using the
means of dissemination set forth in the Undertaking or any other means of communication, or including any other
information in any Annual Financial Information or Audited Financial Statements or notice of occurrence of a Reportable
Event, in addition to that which is required by the Undertaking. If the Village chooses to include any information from any
document or notice of occurrence of a Reportable Event in addition to that which is specifically required by the
Undertaking, the Village shall have no obligation under the Undertaking to update such information or include it in any
future disclosure or notice of occurrence of a Reportable Event.

Dissemination of Information; Dissemination Agent

When filings are required to be made with the MSRB in accordance with the Undertaking, such filings are required to
be made through its Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) system for municipal securities disclosure or through
any other electronic format or system prescribed by the MSRB for purposes of the Rule.

The Village may, from time to time, appoint or engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations
under the Undertaking, and may discharge any such Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent.

LITIGATION

There is no controversy or litigation of any nature now pending against the Village, or to the knowledge of its officers,
threatened, seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the Bonds, or in any way contesting or
affecting the validity of the Bonds or any proceedings of the Village taken with respect to the issuance or sale thereof, or
the pledge or application or any moneys or security provided for the payment of the Bonds or the existence of the Village or
any of its powers, or the use of the proceeds of the Bonds.

There is no other controversy of any nature now pending against the Village, or to the knowledge of its officers,
threatened, which, if successful, would materially adversely affect the operations or financial condition of the Village.

UNDERWRITING

The Bonds have been purchased at a public, competitive sale by Mesirow Financial, Inc. (the “Underwriter”) at a price
of $12,777,108.50 (par plus a reoffering premium of $1,522,158.50 less an Underwriter’s discount of $85,050.00). The
Underwriter is committed to take and pay for all of the Bonds if any are taken. The Underwriter has represented to the
Village that the Bonds have been subsequently re-offered to the public initially at the prices set forth on the inside cover of
the Official Statement. The Underwriter reserves the right to join with other dealers and other underwriters in offering the
Bonds to the public.

FINANCTAT, ADVISOR

Robert W. Baird & Co., Naperville, [llinois (the “Financial Advisor”), has been retained by the Village to provide
certain financial advisory services to the Village. The Financial Advisor’s fees are expected to be paid from Bond
proceeds.

MISCELLANEOUS

Any statements made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or of estimates, whether or not so
expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no representation is made that any of the
estimates will be realized. Bond Counsel has not participated in the preparation of this Official Statement and will not pass
on its accuracy, completeness or sufficiency. Bond Counsel has not examined or attempted to examine or verify any of the
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financial or statistical statements or data contained in this Official Statement, and will express no opinion with respect
thereto. The execution and delivery of this Official Statement by its President has been duly authorized by the Village.

In accordance with SEC Rule 15¢2-12, the Preliminary Official Statement is deemed Final.
OFFICIAL STATEMENT AUTHORIZATION

The Village will provide to the Underwriter at the time of delivery of the Bonds, a certificate confirming to the
Underwriter that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, the Official Statement with respect to the Bonds, together with any
supplements thereto at the time of delivery of the Bonds, was true and correct in all material respects and did not at any
time contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated, where necessary to
make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

This Official Statement has been duly executed and delivered by the Village.
Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois

By: /s/ Edward J. Zabrocki
Its: President
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Appendix A

Village of Tinley Park
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND RELATED NOTES
Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2012

This appendix contains the general purpose financial statements (excluding supplemental financial information) and related
notes for the Village's fiscal year ended April 30, 2012, The general purpose financial statements and related notes were
prepared by the Village in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and were audited by McGladrey LLP.
The Village did not request the approval of McGladrey LLP, and did not include in this appendix its independent auditor's
report dated December 28, 2012. The Village's Treasurer has advised, and will certify to the Underwriter, that the
information contained in this appendix fairly represents the financial condition of the Village and there has been no material
adverse change in the financial condition of the Village from the date of the independent auditor's report to the date of
delivery of the Bonds. The supplemental financial information for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2012 is available from
the Village.
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McGladrey LLP

McGQGladrey

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Village of Tinley Park, lllinois, as of and for the year ended April 30, 2012, which
collectively comprise the Village's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the Village of Tinley Park, lllinois. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village
of Tinley Park, lllinois, as of April 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash
flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1, as of May 1, 2011, the Village adopted the reporting and disclosure requirements
of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 28,
2012 on our consideration of the Village of Tinley Park’s internal control over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

Maenbar of the RSMIBemational netwerk of independent accounting, tax ansd consulting frms,



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis (pages 3 - 16), schedules of funding progress (pages 66 — 69) and budgetary
schedules (pages 70 — 93) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements that
collectively comprise the Village of Tinley Park’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual
fund financial statements and other schedules as listed in the table of contents as supplementary
information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Village of Tinley Park’s basic financial statements. The accompanying introductory and
statistical sections, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

%’% Lo

Chicago, lllinois
December 28, 2012
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Management’s Discussion And Analysis (MD&A)



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

April 30, 2012

The Village of Tinley Park's (the "Village”) management discussion and analysis (MD&A) is designed to
(1) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (2) provide an overview of the Village’s
financial activity, (3) identify changes in the Village's financial position (its ability to address the next and
subsequent year challenges), (4) identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved
budget), and (5) identify individual fund issues or concerns.

Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year's
activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Transmittal
Letter (beginning on page i) and the Village’s financial statements (beginning on page 17).

Using the Financial Section of this Comprehensive Annual Report

For more than 20 years, the primary focus of local governmental financial statements had been
summarized fund type information on a current financial resource basis. This approach was modified by
the Government Accounting Standards Board, and beginning with the fiscal year ended April 30, 2004,
the Village's financial statements present two kinds of statements, each with a different snapshot of the
Village's finances. Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund) allow the user to address
relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year-to-year or government-to-government) and
enhance the Village's accountability.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (see pages 17-19) are designed to emulate the corporate
sector in that all governmental and business-type activities are consolidated into columns which add to a
total for the Primary Government. The focus of the Statement of Net Assets (the "Unrestricted Net
Assets”) is designed to be similar to bottom line results for the Village and its governmental and business-
type activities. This statement combines and consolidates the governmental funds’ current financial
resources (short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and long-term obligations using the
accrual basis of accounting and economic resources measurement focus.

The Statement of Activities (see page 19) is focused on both the gross and net cost of various activities
(including governmental and business-type), which are supported by the government's general taxes and
other resources. This is intended to summarize and simplify the user’s analysis of the cost of various
governmental services and/or subsidy to various business-type activities.

The Governmental Activities reflect the Village's basic services, including public safety (police, fire, and
emergency services), public works (road and bridge, and facilities maintenance), and administration.
Shared state sales and income taxes, and the local property tax finance the majority of these services.
The Business-type Activities reflect private sector type operations (Waterworks and Sewerage, and
Commuter Parking Lot), where the fee for service is typically expected to cover all or most of the cost of
operation, including depreciation.

Fund Financial Statements

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the Fund Financial Statements
presentation more familiar. However, the focus is on Major Funds rather than fund types of the previous
reporting model.



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Governmental Funds (see pages 20-23) are presented on a sources and uses of liquid resources
basis. This is the manner in which the financial plan (the budget) is typically developed. The flow and
availability of liquid resources is a clear and appropriate focus of any analysis of a government. Funds are
established for various purposes and the Fund Financial Statements allow the demonstration of sources
and uses and/or budgeting compliance associated therewith.

The Fund Financial Statements also allow the government to address its Fiduciary Funds (Police Pension
and certain Agency funds, see pages 29-30). While these Funds represent trust responsibilities of the
government, these assets are restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the
government. Therefore, these assets are not presented as part of the Government-Wide Financial
Statements.

While the Business-type Activities column on the Business-type Fund Financial Statements (see pages
24-28) is the same as the Business-type column on the Government-Wide Financial Statement, the
Governmental Funds Total column requires a reconciliation because of the different measurement focus
(current financial resources versus total economic resources) which is reflected on the page following
each statement (see pages 21 and 23). The flow of current financial resources will reflect bond proceeds
and interfund transfers as other financial sources as well as capital expenditures and bond principal
payments as expenditures. The reconciliation will eliminate these transactions and incorporate the capital
assets and long-term obligation (bonds and others) into the Governmental Activities column (in the
Government-wide financial statements).

Infrastructure Assets

Historically, a government’s largest group of assets (infrastructure — roads, bridges, storm sewers, etc.)
were not reported nor depreciated in governmental financial statements. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34) requires that these assets be valued and reported within
the Governmental column of the Government-Wide Financial Statements. Additionally, the government
must elect to either (1) depreciate these assets over their estimated useful life or (2) develop a system of
asset management designed to maintain the service delivery potential of such assets to near perpetuity. If
the government develops the asset management system (the modified approach) which periodically (at
least every third year), by category, measures and demonstrates its maintenance of locally established
levels of service standards, the government may record its cost of maintenance in lieu of depreciation.
The Village has chosen to depreciate assets over their useful lives. If a road project is considered
maintenance — a recurring cost that does not extend the road's original useful life or expand its capacity —
the cost of the project will be expensed. An “overlay” (resurfacing) of a road is considered maintenance
and thus expensed, whereas a "rebuild” (reconstruction) of a road will be capitalized.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Statement of Net Assets

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of
the Village, assets exceeded liabilities by $264 7 million as of April 30, 2012, for the primary government
(the "Village"), and by $9.5 million for its component unit, the Tinley Park Public Library (the “Library”). As
of April 30, 2011, assets exceeded liabilities by $247.1 million for the primary government (the “Village”),
and by $8 1 million for its component unit, the Tinley Park Public Library (the "Library”).

A significant portion of the Village’s net assets as of April 30, 2012 (71%) reflects its investment in capital
assets (i.e., land, land improvements, storm sewers, water mains, buildings, equipment, and vehicles),
less any related debt that is still outstanding which was used to acquire those assets. The Village uses
these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the Village's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Table 1 on the following page summarizes the Statement of Net Assets for the prior and current fiscal

years.

Current Assets

Other Assets

Capital Assets
Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets:
Invested in Capital
Assets, Net of
Related Debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

Current Assets

Other Assets

Capital Assets
Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets:
Invested in Capital
Assets, Net of

Net of Related Debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

For more detailed information see the Statement of Net Assets (pages 17-18).

Table 1
Statement of Net Assets
As of April 30, 2011
(In millions)

Governmental
Activities

$83.4

1.9
184.8
270.1

277
40.2
67.9

155.2
13.4
33.6

$202.2

Business-Type
Activities

Statement of Net Assets
As of April 30, 2012
(In millions)

Governmental
Activities

$85.6

0.2
196.7
282.5

26.9
37.3
64.2

Business-Type
Activities

Total Primary
Government

Total Primary
Government

$103.3
2.0

_ 2202
325.5

290.8
48.6
78.4

$106.4
1.6
230.7
338.7

28.8
45.2
74.0

187.2
12.5
65.0

$264.7



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued

The Village’'s combined net assets (the Village's equity) increased $17.6 million from $247.1 million to
$264.7 million. Net assets of the Village's governmental activities were $218.3 million and increased by
$16.2 million from the prior year. $12.0 million is represented by net additions to Capital Assets ($15.3
million of additions less $3.3 million in deletions). Other assets decreased $0.4 million, liabilities
decreased $3.0 million and current assets increased $3.1 million. The Village’s unrestricted net assets
for governmental activities, the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day operations, were
$44.6 million and increased by $11.0 million over the prior year. Due to the change in classification of
restricted assets under GASB 46, now only legally imposed restrictions by outside sources are shown.
The net assets of business-type activities were $46.4 million and increased by $1.5 million.

Normal Impacts
There are six basic (normal) transactions that will affect the comparability of the Statement of Net Assets
summary presentation.

) Net Results of Activities — will impact (increase/decrease) Current Assets and Unrestricted Net
Assets.

° Borrowing for Capital — will increase Current Assets and Non Current Liabilities (Long-Term
Debt).

Spending Borrowed Proceeds on New Capital — will reduce Current Assets and increase
Capital Assets. There is also a second impact, an increase in the Invested in Capital Assets
portion of Net Assets and an increase in Related Debt which will not change the Invested in
Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt.

° Spending of Non-borrowed Current Assets on New Capital — will (a) reduce Current Assets
and increase Capital Assets; and (b) will reduce Unrestricted Net Assets and increase Invested in
Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt.

° Principal Payment on Debt — will (a) reduce Current Assets and reduce Non Current Liabilities
(Long-Term Debt); and (b) reduce Unrestricted Net Assets and increase Invested in Capital
Assets, Net of Related Debt.

) Reduction of Capital Assets through Depreciation — will reduce Capital Assets and Invested
in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt.

Current Year Impacts

The Village's net assets increased by $17.7 million during the current fiscal year. Governmental activities
resulted in an increase in net assets of $16 2 million while Business-Type activities increased net assets
by $1.5 million. Capital outlay associated with governmental activities increased net assets by $15.3
million, and repayment of principal on outstanding debt decreased net assets by $5.9 million. Operating
income from Business-Type activities, inclusive of depreciation, increased net assets by $1.1 million, and
non-operating revenues and expenses increased net assets by $1 5 million.

Changes in Net Assets

The following Table 2 summarizes the revenues and expenses for the prior and current fiscal years and
highlights the Changes in Net Assets.



Village of Tinley Park, Illinois

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2011
(In millions)

Governmental Business-Type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
REVENUES
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $4.4 $16.4 $20.8
Operating and Capital
Grants & 3.8 0.2 4.0
Contributions
General Revenues
Property Taxes 22.8 - 22.8
Other Taxes 18.5 - 18.5
Miscellaneous 1.1 0.2 1.3
Total Revenues 50. 16.8 67.4
EXPENSES
General Government 8.1 - 8.1
Public Works 6.7 17.3 24.0
Public Safety 226 - 22.6
Social Services 3.1 - 3.1
Interest 1.0 - 1.0
Total Expenses 41.5 17.3 58.8
Excess (deficiency) before 91 (0.5) 8.6
transfers
Transfers 0.0 (0.0) 0.0
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 9.1 0.5) 8.6
ENDING NET ASSETS 202.2 $ 449 $247.1
2011 Governmental Activities Revenues 2011 Governmental Activities Expenses
B Charges for Services B Operating Grants 7 General Government B Public Works
OProperty Taxes O Other Taxes D Public Safety O Social Services

M Other B Interest



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVENUES
Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating and Capital
Grants &
Contributions
General Revenues
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues
EXPENSES
General Government
Public Works
Public Safety
Social Services
Interest
Total Expenses

Excess before transfers

Transfers

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

ENDING NET ASSETS

Table 2 (continued)

Governmental
Activities

Changes in Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2012

(In millions)
Business-type
Activities
$ 438 $17.9
6.5 04
24 .1 -
19.7 -
4.4 0.1
59.5 18.4
6.5 -
8.2 17.1
234 -
3.5 -
1.5 =
43.1 171
16.4 1.3
(0.2) 0.2
16.2 1.5
218.3 46.4

2012 Governmental Activities Revenues

>

Charges for Services B Operating Grants

OProperty Taxes
B Other

O Other Taxes

Total Primary
Government

$227
6.9
241

19.7
4.5

264,

:

2012 Governmental Activities Expenses

& General Government M Public Works

O Public Safety
M Interest

e
i L
-

i

O Social Services



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Normal Impacts
There are eight basic impacts on revenues and expenses as reflected below

Revenues:

¢ Economic Condition — which can reflect a declining, stable or growing economic environment
and has a substantial impact on state income, sales and utility tax revenue as well as public
spending habits for building permits, elective user fees and volumes of consumption.

e Increase/Decrease in Village Board approved rates — while certain tax rates are set by statute,
the Village Board has significant authority to impose and periodically increase/decrease rates
(water, wastewater, impact fees, building fees, home rule sales tax, etc.).

e Changing Patterns in Intergovernmental and Grant Revenue (both recurring and non-
recurring) — certain recurring revenues (state shared revenues, etc.) may experience significant
changes periodically while non-recurring (or one-time) grants are less predictable and often
distorting in their impact on year-to-year comparisons.

e Market Impacts on Investment income — the Village's investment portfolio is managed using a
similar average maturity to most governments. Market conditions may cause investment income
to fluctuate.

Expenses:

e Introduction of New Programs — within the functional expense categories (Public Safety, Public
Works, General Government, Social Services, etc.) individual programs may be added or deleted
to meet changing community needs.

e Increase in Authorized Personnel — changes in service demand may cause the Village Board
to increase/decrease authorized staffing.

e Salary Increases (annual adjustments and merit) — the ability to attract and retain human and
intellectual resources requires the Village to strive to approach a competitive salary range
position in the marketplace.

e Inflation — while overall inflation appears to be reasonably modest, the Village is a major
consumer of certain commodities such as supplies, fuels and parts. Some functions may
experience unusual commodity specific increases.

Current Year Impacts

Revenues:

For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2012, revenues from all activities totaled $77.9 million. The Village has
a diversified revenue structure and depends on several key revenue sources to help pay for the services
provided.

The property tax revenues derived from governmental activities increased approximately 5.7% over the
prior year.

Due to a unique set of circumstances, taxes generated within the Oak Park Avenue, Main Street North
and Main Street South Tax Increment Finance (TIF) Districts combined increased by approximately
$100,000 in comparison to the prior year (35.4 million in Fiscal Year 2012 and $5.3 million in Fiscal Year
2011) even though the overall tax base of the three TIF Districts decreased 15.3% between tax years
2010 and 2011. The Village of Tinley Park established these three TIF districts to encourage both new
development and redevelopment in certain targeted areas of the community with an objective to stabilize
and potentially increase the local tax base. Under TIF statutes, the taxable property values of each
parcel located within the boundaries of the district are frozen at the inception of the TIF for distribution of
taxes to the various taxing agencies that derive taxes from these properties. The property taxes
generated by any subsequent increase in taxable property values (the increment), are distributed to the
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Village to assist in making necessary public improvements, or undertake other activities to encourage and
promote development.

Even though the Village is a Home Rule community and does not have any restrictions as to the amounts
that can be requested from property taxes, the Village follows a formula for determining the annual
property tax levy that establishes a limit on the annual tax levy request. This formula limits the tax levy to
increase annually by no more than the rate of inflation plus new growth. The Tinley Park Public Library’s
annual property tax levy is determined using the same formula. The tax base of the Village decreased
11.3% from tax year 2010 to 2011, primarily in the three Cook County quadrants of the community
(13.2% decrease) as part of the regular triennial reassessment process. 2011 marks the first
reassessment cycle for the southern portion of Cook County since the recent Recession and this
reassessment reflects its effects on the real estate market. The Will County portion of the Village's tax
base decreased 3.6%, also attributable to the downturn in the economy and its effects on real estate.

The Cook County Board approved a change to the assessment classifications beginning with tax year
2009 whereby virtually all residential property is assessed at 10% of fair value, and commercial/industrial
property is assessed at 25% of fair value. When a classified system is used for assessments (where
property is assessed at different rates depending on use), under lllinois statutes, the property must still be
assessed at 1/3 of fair value overall. Because all property classes are now below this 1/3 (33.33%)
benchmark, this change contributed to a significant increase in the Cook County Equalization Factor. Any
change in the Equalization Factor (also referred to as the Multiplier) results in an increase or decrease of
the overall tax base without changing the underlying property assessments.

The Expanded Homeowner Exemption was introduced in tax year 2005 by the Cook County Assessor to
mitigate the impacts of large increases in property values arising from the triennial reassessment cycles.
The program was designed to spread the impact of reassessment over several years rather than all in
one year. As a result, many homeowners saw large annual increases in their taxes. The Expanded
Homeowner Exemption is being phased out and will return to a standard flat homeowner exemption in tax
year 2014. Reflecting the continued phase out, the total of all homeowner based exemptions decreased
by 51.8% from tax year 2010 to 2011 Similar to the Equalization Factor, the changes in the homeowner
exemptions results in an increase or decrease of the overall tax base without changing the underlying
property assessments.

Intergovernmental revenues increased in Fiscal Year 2012 when compared to the prior year primarily
from increases in per-capita revenue sharing received from the State of lllinois. This is discussed in
further detail below.

The State of Illinois distributes several tax items to municipalities based on population including Motor
Fuel, Income, and Use taxes. The Tinley Park Public Library (component unit) receives an annual Per-
Capita grant which is also based on population.

The Village established a policy beginning in 1989 to set aside a portion of the State income tax
distributions received to be used exclusively for major capital projects within the community. Under this
policy, 30.58% of all income tax receipts are segregated and earmarked for capital projects. The direct
effect of this policy is to limit the portion of income tax receipts that may be used to support general
operations of the Village to the State’s income tax distribution allocation levels that existed prior to the
1989 increase in income tax rates and the subsequent changes in the formula for State income tax
revenues distributable to municipalities through the Local Government Distributive Fund. This bold action
reflects the Village Board's fiscal restraint and long range financial planning. The earmarked share of the
income tax revenues is transferred to a Village Capital Projects fund annually at the end of the fiscal year.
Allowing these funds to remain in the General Fund throughout the fiscal year provides the Village the
opportunity to utilize this cash flow throughout the year, and minimize the need for short-term borrowing
or the establishment of a separate working cash fund.

In the past, the monthly income tax distributions were generally paid to municipalities within 30 days of
determination of the amounts due. Due to the State's own fiscal problems, the State began increasing
the lag time between determination of the per-capita distribution and the physical payment. This lag time
has been as much as six months, and was a four month lag at the end of fiscal year 2012. This delay has
impacted the revenue recognition for State income taxes due to the uncertainty of when the funds owed
will be distributed. The timing of the State distributions has been factor in the change in
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intergovernmental revenues between fiscal years 2011 and 2012. If the income tax distributions were
compared on a regular month to month basis without consideration of timing of the actual payment,
income tax revenues for fiscal year 2012 would have been 2% higher than the prior year as opposed to
the 34% increase reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

License revenues decreased 19.4% (over $141,000) overall in Fiscal Year 2012 over the prior year.
Cable franchise fees increased by 7.7% ($64,000) when compared to the prior year. Building permit
revenues increased 23.7% ($69,000) in relation to the prior year. Residential construction during the year
continued to be slow as a result of the economy. Calendar year 2011 saw only nine (9) new construction
residential building permits issued. This was on par with the prior calendar year. In over three decades
of building permit activity history, no year had fewer new construction residential permits issued than in
calendar 2009. Based on all building permits issued in calendar 2011, all types of building activity added
$44.7 million dollars of new construction and improvements to community.

Sales tax revenues (municipal occupation taxes) increased 4.3% (over $500,000) during Fiscal Year
2012 over the prior year. This increase more predominately reflects improved retail and automotive sales
due to improving local economic conditions.

The Village has continued to participate in a cooperative enforcement program with the U.S. Customs
Bureau and the Department of Justice whereby the Village receives a portion of assets seized under this
program. These funds are restricted for uses associated with police activities and public safety. The
cash flow from these seizure funds has slowed in recent years due to the extended legal process required
to authorize release of seized assets for distribution. Additionally, due to changes in the asset sharing
guidelines, the Village no longer receives a share of seizures that totai less than $2,500. Revenues
under the Customs Seizures program increased 195.2% ($119,000) over the prior fiscal year. Despite
these favorable statistics, the Customs Seizures revenue totaled a modest $159,000 in fiscal year 2012.

During Fiscal Year 2012, the Village’s earnings from investments decreased by 31.8% over the prior
fiscal year. This decrease was primarily due to declining interest rates throughout the year. Even with
overall investment earnings decreasing, the Village's effective yield continued to be in line with
established benchmarks. The Village of Tinley Park has traditionally considered investment earnings as
a supplement to the annual operating budgets of the various funds and not considered as an integral
component of operating revenues or essential to the support of budgeted expenditures during the fiscal
year.

The net assets of the Tinley Park Police Pension Fund increased $2.6 million (5.8%) during Fiscal Year
2012. There was a 15.0% increase in the employee contributions that would be primarily attributable to
wage increases. Investment gains for the current fiscal year in the Police Pension Fund totaled nearly
$600,000.

In the fall of 1999, the Pension Fund authorized investing in equity securities (stocks and insurance
contracts) to diversify its investment portfolio and to increase overall investment returns. The first ten
years of equity investment proved to be less than satisfying with the investment managers all too
frequently seemingly following a warped adage of “buy high and sell low.” The generally disappointing
performance of the equity sector of the portfolio has been a significant impact on the increase in the
actuarially determined “employer” contribution, which correspondingly places a greater burden on the
taxpayers of the Village to fund this defined benefit pension plan

Expenses:

The Village’s total expenses for all activities for the year ended April 30, 2012 were $60.2 million. Public
Works activities ($25.3 million) accounted for the largest share (39%) of the total expenditures. The
Village provides Lake Michigan water to its residents, as well as two other municipalities and a private
utility company (primarily serving a third municipality) through intergovernmental agreements and
contracts. The water supply is purchased from the Village of Oak Lawn. In turn, Oak Lawn obtains the
treated Lake Michigan water supply from the City of Chicago. The Village maintains its own wastewater
collection system, but the water reclamation and solid waste disposal (also commonly referred to as
sewerage treatment) is performed by other governmental agencies and a private utility company
Additionally, the Village operates and maintains storm water collection and storage facilities throughout
the community. The waterworks, sewerage and storm water management operations accounted for 65%
of the total Public Works activities for the fiscal year. The remaining public works activities relate to the
maintaining of Village streets, street lighting, commuter parking lots, municipal buildings, and related
facilities.
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Public safety expenses are related to the operations of the Police and Fire Departments, as well as the
Emergency Management Agency which accounted for $23.4 million (36%) of the total expenses. The

Village has an authorized strength of 81 full-time sworn police personnel and 72 of these positions are
currently filled. The patrol officers are members of the Metropolitan Alliance of Police (MAP) collective
bargaining unit and their current contract ends April 30, 2012.

The Village of Tinley Park participates in an insurance risk pool (Intergovernmental Risk Management
Agency — IRMA) which provides all liability and workers compensation coverage beyond a basic
deductible for each claim. The annual contribution (premium) is based on the participating agency’s prior
revenues, and further adjusted for prior claims experience. The Village's general liability insurance
contribution increased approximately $127,000 in the current fiscal year over the prior fiscal year. This
change was partially the result of a higher five year average of revenues which is used as the basis for
the annual contribution calculation. In addition, the Village received a credit for favorable claims
experience which also contributed to the reduction in the total contribution. The cost of providing
employee benefits (health insurance, etc.) continues to increase.

Financial Analysis of the Village’s Funds

Governmental Funds

At April 30, 2012, the governmental funds (as presented on the balance sheet on page 20, and the
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance on page 22) reported a combined
fund balance of $61.1 million. Revenues and other financing sources were more than expenditures and
other financing uses in Fiscal Year 2012 by $1.8 million. General Fund expenditures were approximately
$5 million under budget and reflect financial monitoring and controls implemented in regard to spending
as well as some lower than anticipated costs.

The Capital Improvements Fund intergovernmental revenues were less than projections by 39 3% ($2.6
million), primarily due to the timing of grant distributions not received from the Illinois Department of
Transportation. Expenditures constituted 43.4% ($9.9 million) of the budget. The annual Capital
Improvements Fund budget does include a number of contingency and reserve items that would only be
utilized in emergency situations. These unspent budgeted reserves contribute significantly to the
favorable budget to expenditure relationship that exists in this Fund. Additionally, due to a variety of
reasons, some of the departmental capital requests that had been approved and included in the adopted
budget were unable to be purchased or expended within the fiscal year. As the budgetary authority
lapses at fiscal year-end, these unspent capital requests generally must be re-requested and re-
authorized in the following fiscal year, should the department determine they are still necessary.

The Village of Tinley Park established a Storm Water Management Fund in April 2004, as well as
imposing a Storm Water Management Utility Fee based on water consumption to provide revenues
toward support of the operation and maintenance of the various storm water facilities and infrastructure
within the community; and toward construction of new storm water facilities and infrastructure. This action
was driven in large part by requirements imposed by the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) rules and regulations issued by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency which are designed
toward protecting our natural land and water resources including lakes, streams, and other waterways,
from erosion and storm water pollution. This new charge was first assessed beginning with August 2004
utility billing. At this time, a portion of the storm water management activities, including operation,
maintenance, and repair of existing storm sewers, detention and retention ponds and related facilities
continue to be funded through the General Fund and Capital Projects Funds. The revenues generated by
storm water management utility fees contribute only a small portion of the construction, operation and
maintenance of the existing storm water facilities located throughout the community. Accordingly, this
fund has been classified as a special revenue fund in this financial report.
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Proprietary Funds
The budget approved for the Waterworks and Sewerage Fund reflected expenditures in excess of
revenues by approximately $1.9 million, before depreciation and non operating revenues and expenses

The fiscal year financial activities included a number of capital improvements and scheduled
infrastructure replacements being funded from net assets accumulated in earlier years that were
components of this budgetary "loss.” The actual revenues for the fiscal year were 7.5% over budget for
the year primarily in the sale of water and sewer services and an increase in utility rates. Expenditures
were 23.1% ($4.2 million) under budget for the year. The budgetary savings in expenditures were
primarily in the area of capital projects that had been approved, but due to engineering, bidding, and other
timing considerations, were unable to be undertaken or completed within the fiscal year. For construction
projects with approved contractual obligations, the budget is re-authorized in the following fiscal year for
the remainder of the project. Budgeted projects that were not initiated or expended during the fiscal year
will be re-evaluated for inclusion in subsequent budgets.

The Village Board completed a utility rate study in 2009 to review the rate structures and assess the
adequacy to cover operating expenses and provide for necessary reserves to provide for future
rehabilitation or replacement of system components. A series of incremental rate increases have been
implemented as a result of this study to move the Waterworks and Sewerage Fund toward the
recommended and desired fiscal and financial objectives. Additionally, the City of Chicago announced a
series of annual rate increases impacting the Lake Michigan water supply beginning in 2012 and
continuing through 2015. These increases will be automatically incorporated into the Village's wholesale
and retail rates as they become effective. As noted, these increases contributed to the favorable
comparison of actual revenues to budgeted revenues.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Village typically starts its annual budget preparation near the end of each calendar year, preparing
projections of expected revenues for both the current and upcoming fiscal years; obtaining operating
budget expenditure projections for the current year; as well as operating budget and capital expenditure
requests for the ensuing fiscal year from Village department heads. The Treasurer and Village Manager
review these requests and provide recommendation to the Village Board committees on the various
departmental budgets, based on the requests and the expected revenue sources to support the activities.
The Village Board then meets to review the proposed budgets in their entirety, generally during the month
of March. It is the Village Board's policy that the primary operating and enterprise funds reflect a
balanced budget prior to approval. Most of the other Village funds including capital projects and special
revenue funds are not subject to this requirement since they are generally designed to accumulate funds
for later expenditure. The budget details are finalized and presented at a Public Hearing, and adopted by
the Village Board, typically during the month of April, so that the budget is completed and approved prior
to the start of the new fiscal year. The Village did not adopt any budget amendments applicable to fiscal
year 2012. On the following page is a table that reflects the original budget and the actual activity for the
revenues and expenditures for the General Fund.
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Table 3
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
(In millions)

Original and Final

General Fund Budget Actual
Revenues and Other Financing
Sources
Taxes $32.1 $31.3
Licenses/charges for services 1.9 2.3
Intergovernmental 4.9 5.3
Fines and penalties 0.8 12
Reimbursements/Other/Miscellaneous 0.5 0.5
Total 40.2 40.6
Expenditures and Other Financing
Uses
General government 6.4 5.3
Public works 6.1 4.9
Public safety 22.4 20.6
Social services 4.0 3.1
Other financing uses 1.2 6.5
Total 40.1 40.4
Change in Fund Balance $0.1 $02

As shown above, the General Fund budget was anticipated to have a surplus of $0.1 million; however,
actual results provided a $0.2 million surplus. Actual revenues were more than budget by $0.4 million,
and actual expenditures were more than budget by $0.3 million.

As noted earlier, the Village annually transfers a portion of the income tax distributions received from the
State of lllinois to a Capital Improvements (Projects) Fund for future expenditures to benefit the
community Additionally, it has also been a long established practice of the Village Board to make year-
end transfers of cash funds from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund, and other “reserve”
funds in excess of a predetermined cash balance (including investments) and fund balance. The desired
cash balance (including investments) is determined in consideration of a number of factors and has been
maintained well in excess of $1,000,000 for many years. The funds transferred to the Capital Projects
Fund are used to finance capital expenditures in subsequent fiscal years as well as certain contingency
reserves. It is these year end transfers, which are not specifically budgeted, that primarily contribute to
the unfavorable expenditure to budget variance noted earlier. This process provides the Village with
greater fiscal control over operating budgets and expenditures, plan for future capital expenditures, as
well as minimizing the need for frequent debt financing. This policy also minimizes the impact of
unanticipated contractions in the revenue stream during any given fiscal year on capital acquisitions and
replacements that had been scheduled and budgeted to occur within that fiscal year.

Capital Assets

At the end of the Fiscal Year 2012, the Village (primary government) had a combined total of capital
assets of $230.7 million (after accumulated depreciation of $89.9 million). This investment is found in a
broad range of capital assets including land, land improvements, buildings, vehicles, machinery and
equipment, furniture and fixtures, streets, bridges, water mains, storm sewers, and sanitary sewers.

The Net Capital Assets of the Village increased by about $10.5 million over Fiscal Year 2011. For more

detailed information on capital assets, refer to the table on the following page and Footnote 5 in the basic
financial statements found on pages 42 through 44.
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Table 4
Total Capital Assets at Year End
Net of Depreciation

(In millions)
Balance 4/30/11 Net Balance 4/30/12
Additions/Deletions

Land $118.0 $ 13 $119.3
Buildings and property 36.7 1.8 38.4
Machinery and Equipment 4.6 0.0 4.6
Waterworks and sewer system 32.2 (1.8) 30.4
Parking lot 1.1 0.0 1.1
Construction in Progress 27.6 9.3 36.9
(infrastructure)

Total Capital Assets $220.2 $10.5 $230.7

Debt Outstanding
During the fiscal year, the Village of Tinley Park retired about $3.9 million of debt.

The Village Board has a long established practice of abating a substantial portion of the annual debt
service requirements on the various outstanding general obligation bonds utilizing certain available funds
or funding sources to minimize the impact on the community's property owners. The abatements of the
debt service requirements for the 2011 tax year totaled over $5.7 million. All owners of real property in
Tinley Park receive the benefit of these abatements. Tinley Park property owners generally receive a
comparable or greater annual benefit through this abatement process than through tax rebate programs
that have become politically popular in other communities in the area. The Village's program of annual
abatements also benefits the business community which no other local tax rebate program considers. In
fact, most municipal rebate programs established by other communities are predominately financed at the
expense of the business community. The Village finds the concept of rebate programs to be generally
fiscally unsound and administratively costly and has absolutely no plans to implement such a tax rebate
program in the foreseeable future. The Village Board feels strongly that it is a better fiscal policy to have
only taxed for what is necessary in the first place, than to create false illusions of an extra property owner
benefit through a rebate program structure.

For more detailed information on the Village’s debt, refer to Footnote 6 in the basic financial statements
on pages 44 through 48.

Economic Factors

The financial condition of the Federal and State governments has had an effect on the Village of Tinley
Park during Fiscal Year 2012 and is expected to continue into Fiscal Year 2013. The State of lllinois’
financial condition has resulted in delayed payments for rent, utility services, grants, and other operating
expenses and reimbursements. The Village has often found it necessary to provide funding from other
sources to complete or continue certain capital projects which involve State funding, as the distribution of
the grant funds or other payments by the State agencies had been significantly delayed. New grant
assistance through the State has been substantially reduced and is extremely competitive. Previously
reliable State shared revenues (most notably the income taxes) have been delayed, and changes in the
State allocation formulas are periodically being proposed for legislative consideration. The Village has
long history of established fiscal policies, special revenue funds, and other reserves to provide for its
ability to continue operations for a period of time should changes in economy or its normal revenue
streams occur. While the financial issues particularly associated with the State of Illinois are yet to be
resolved, they have not caused insurmountable, immediate, or long-term concerns to the Village. It may
need to reevaluate its operations, consider increasing other revenue sources, and/or reduce expenditures
should there be significant or permanent changes in normal funding received through these sources in
the future.
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The llinois General Assembly imposed property tax legislation on municipalities and other taxing bodies
to give property taxpayers some tax relief by limiting the increase in tax levy dollars allowed each year.
The Property Tax Extension Limitation Law (PTELL) limits an annual levy increase to the lower of the
consumer price index (CPl) or five percent, plus new growth, and mandates the use of the prior year
equalized assessed valuation (EAV) amounts to provide additional limits on the tax extension. This “tax
cap” continues to limit the taxing authority of the majority of taxing bodies that overlap or share
boundaries with the Village of Tinley Park. Qualifying as a Home Rule Unit under the lllinois Constitution,
the Village of Tinley Park, inclusive of the Tinley Park Public Library as a component unit (which is
considered a direct part of the Village’s tax levy), is not subject to these State imposed tax cap
requirements. However, as previously noted, the Village Board has long adhered to its own self imposed
‘tax caps” since the early 1970s as part of its fiscal policies and practices. The Village’s “tax cap” policies
predate the State imposed formuia.

Contacting the Village’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the Village’s finances and to demonstrate the Village's accountability for the money it
receives. Questions concerning this report or requests for additional financial information should be
directed to:

Brad L. Bettenhausen, Treasurer
Village of Tinley Park
16250 Oak Park Avenue
Tinley Park, Illinois 60477
finance@tinleypark.org
708-444-5000
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Statement of Net Assets

April 30, 2012
Component
Governmental Business-Type Unit
Activities Activities Total Library
Assets
Current:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 63,653,981 $ 17225178 $ 80,879,159 $ 10,297,077
Land held for resale 1,350,505 - 1,350,505 -
Receivables:
Property taxes 11,687,289 - 11,687,289 3,312,509
Accounts 684,282 2,882 573 3,566,855 -
Intergovernmental 5,826,200 459,775 6,285,975 30,077
Other 1,511,508 302,727 1,814,235 6,011
Deposits 859,970 - 859,970 -
Total current assets 85,573,735 20,870,253 106,443,988 13,645,674
Noncurrent:
Net pension asset 1,157,159 - 1,157,159 -
Deferred charges 437,353 97,753 535,106 82,489
Advance to/from other funds (1,321,642) 1,321,642 - -
Capital assets, not being depreciated 154,281,418 1,867,497 156,148,915 -
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation 42,426,720 32,083,323 74,510,043 8,674,475
Total noncurrent assets 196,981,008 35,370,215 232,351,223 8,756,964
Total assets $ 282,554,743 $ 56,240,468  $ 338,795,211 $ 22,402,638

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Statement of Net Assets - Continued
April 30, 2012

Component
Governmental  Business-Type Unit
Activities Activities Total Library
Liabilities
Current:
General obligation bonds $ 3620622 $ 629,379 $ 4,250,001 445,000
Accounts payable 2,713,582 1,016,014 3,729,596 109,449
Accrued payroll 79,561 - 79,561 25,122
Accrued interest 393,800 87,729 481,529 87,400
Deposits 5,197 82,217 87,414 -
Capital leases - 52,860 52,860 -
Compensated absences 929,500 82,591 1,012,091 114,500
Deferred revenue 19,197,095 - 19,197,095 5,670,189
Total current liabilities 26,939,357 1,950,790 28,890,147 6,451,660
Noncurrent:
General obligation bonds, net of
unamortized bond premium and
deferred loss on refunding 33,091,048 7,197,317 40,288,365 6,409,640
Revenue bonds - 560,000 560,000 -
Special service area bonds 895,000 - 895,000 -
Other postemployment benefits 3,259,851 - 3,259,851 -
Capital leases - 111,099 111,099 -
Compensated absences 48,895 4,347 53,242 14,887
Total noncurrent liabilities 37,294,794 7,872,763 45,167,557 6,424,527
Total liabilities 64,234,151 9,823,553 74,057,704 12,876,187
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 161,244,471 26,058,168 187,302,639 1,819,835
Restricted for:
Custom seizures 775,579 - 775,579 -
Motor fuel tax 1,889,687 - 1,889,687 -
Enhanced 911 611,407 - 611,407 -
Debt service 2,510,826 - 2,510,826 -
Oak Park Avenue TIF 4,586,824 - 4,586,824 -
Main Street North TIF 2,906,435 - 2,906,435 -
Main Street South TIF 2,426,178 - 2,426,178 -
Unrestricted 41,369,185 20,358,747 61,727,932 7,706,616
Total net assets $ 218,320,592 § 46,416,915 $ 264,737,507 9,526,451

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Fund Financial Statements



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

April 30, 2012
Capital Nonmajor Total
General Improvements  Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $19,406,700 $ 26,436,507 $17,810,774  $ 63,653,981
Land held for resale - 1,350,505 - 1,350,505
Receivables
Property taxes 11,467,189 - 220,100 11,687,289
Accounts 684,282 - - 684,282
Intergovernmental 5,279,605 - 546,595 5,826,200
Other - 1,481,440 30,068 1,511,508
Deposits B 859,970 - 859,970
Due from other funds - - 29,921 29,921
Advance to other funds - 1,101,856 - 1,101,856
Total assets $ 36,837,776 $ 31,230,278 $ 18,637,458 $ 86,705,512
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1261026 $ 1396967 $ 55589 $ 2,713,582
Accrued payroll 79,561 - - 79,561
Deposits 5,197 - - 5197
Due to other funds 29,921 - - 29,921
Advance from other funds 2,423,498 - - 2,423,498
Deferred revenue 19,426,927 588,746 384,611 20,400,284
Total liabilities 23,226,130 1,985,713 440,200 25,652,043
Fund Balances
Nonspendable - 1,101,856 - 1,101,856
Unassigned 8,679,443 (143,725) 8,535,718
Assigned 4,932,203 - - 4,932,203
Restricted - - 15,940,759 15,940,759
Committed - 28,142,709 2,400,224 30,542,933
Total fund balances 13,611,646 29,244,565 18,197,258 61,053,469
Total liabilities and
fund balances $36,837,776 $ 31230278 $18637,458 $ 86,705,512

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Village of Tinley Park, Illinois

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Assets
April 30, 2012

Total fund balances-governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmentat activities are not financial resources

and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Certain assets reported in the Statement of Net Assets do not

result in current financial resources and therefore are
not reported as assets in governmental funds. This

activity consists of:
Net pension asset

Bond issuance costs that are an expenditure in the fund financial statements are an asset
amortized over the life of the bond in the government-wide financial statements

Bond premiums are other financing sources in the fund financial statements and a liability
amortized over the life of the bond in the government-wide financial statements

Losses on debt refundings that are other financing uses in the fund financial statements
are an asset that is amortized over the life of the bonds in the government-wide

financial statements

State income tax revenue is deferred in the fund financial statements because it is not
available but is recognized as revenue in the government-wide financial statements

Some liabilities reported in the Statement of Net Assets do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported as liabilities in governmental funds. These

activities consist of:
General obligation bonds
Special service area bonds
Accrued interest
Other postemployment benefits
Compensated absences

Net assets of governmental activities

See Notes to Financial Statements.

21

$ 61,053,469

196,708,138

1,157,159

437,353

(317,304)

323,102

1,203,189

$ 218,320,592




Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ~

Governmental Funds
Year Ended April 30, 2012

Revenues:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Interest
Fines, forfeitures and reimbursements
Licenses, permits and fees
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
General overhead
Police
Fire
Emergency management agency (EMA)
Road and bridge
Electrical
Municipal building and grounds
Community devetopment
Boards, commissions and committees
Senior bus service
Village bus services
Economic incentives
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fees
Bond issuance costs
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Bond issuance
Premium on bond issuance
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Payment to escrow agent
Total other financing sources (uses)

Changes in fund balances

Fund balances:
May 1, 2011, as restated

April 30, 2012

See Notes to Financial Statements

Capital Nonmajor Total
General Improvements  Governmental ~ Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
18,428,532 $ $ 5655081 $ 24,083,613
13,763,745 582,564 14,346,309
174,710 142,039 126,729 443,478
1,235,729 352,880 1,588,609
2,362,163 86,851 2,449,014
1,212,089 1,212,089
5,337,424 4,072,208 2,035,605 11,445,235
722,626 3,182,506 10,993 3.916.125
43,237,018 7,483,602 8,763,852 59,484,472
3,819,595 120,811 3,940,406
1,982,874 1,982,874
15,840,062 412,788 16,252,850
3,939,515 3,939,515
802,958 802,958
3,163,606 2,683,857 5,847,463
1,043,256 1,043,256
659,885 659,885
1,381,718 1,381,718
175,254 175,254
79,569 79,569
40,333 40,333
1,528,621 1,528,621
3,312,397 3,312,397
57,262 37,438 1,434,040 1,628,740
20,611 13,534 34,145
355,251 9,821,017 4,809,609 14,985,877
34,890,370 9,871,989 12,773,502 57.535,861
8,346,648 (2,388,387) (4,009,650) 1,948,611
1,570,500 1,031,295 2,601,795
60,443 39,691 100,134
222,670 10,130,309 9,652,241 19,905,220
(7,141,252) (675,403) (12,335,358) (20,152,013)
1 019 47 571
1,506,509 7,118,030 (6,792,767) 1,831,772
12,105,137 22,126,535 24,990,025 59,221,697
13611646 $ 29244565 ¢ 18197258 $ 61,053,469
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended April 30, 2012

Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while
governmental activities report depreciation expense to allocate
those expenditures over the lives of the assets.

Capital outlay

Depreciation

Loss on disposal of capital assets

Some general operations were financed through the issuance of long-term debt. In
governmental funds, long-term debt is considered other financing sources, but in the
Statement of Net Assets, debt is reported as a liability. In the current period, proceeds
were received from:

General obligation bonds

The following are expenditures in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. This is the amount in the current period
General obligation bonds

Losses on refunded debt are recorded as an expenditure in the fund financial statements,
but the loss is netted with general obligation bonds in the Statement of Net Assets and is amortized over
the life of the bonds.

Deferred loss on refunding

Amortization of deferred loss on refunding

Premium/discount on bonds is recorded as other financing uses/sources in the fund financial statements,
but the premium/discount is netted with general obligation bonds in the Statement of Net Assets
and is amortized over the life of the bonds. This is the amount in the current period:

Bond issuance premium

Amortization of bond premium/discount

Bond issuance costs are recorded as an expenditure in the fund financial statements, but
the cost is recorded as an asset in the Statement of Net Assets and amortized over
the life of the bonds These are the amounts in the current period:

Bond issuance costs

Amortization of bond issuance costs

State income tax revenue is deferred in the fund financial statements because it is not available but is
recognized as revenue in the government-wide financial statements

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. These
activities consist of:

Decrease in compensated absences

(Increase) in other postemployment benefits

Decrease in accrued interest

(Decrease) in net pension asset

Change in net assets of governmental activities $

1,831,772

14,661,403
(2,618,005)

(52,198)

(2,601,795)

5,884,372

37,632
(30,433)

(100,134)
26,475

64,246
(680,400)
47,000
(253,988)

16,155,819

See Notes to Financial Statements 03



Village of Tinley Park, Illinois

Statement of Net Assets - Enterprise Funds

April 30, 2012
Business-Type Activities
Waterworks Nonmajor
and Sewerage  Commuter
Fund Parking Lot Total
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,965,532 $ 3,259,646 §$ 17,225,178
Receivables:
Customer accounts 275,955 - 275,955
Unbilled service 2,606,618 - 2,606,618
Other receivables 302,727 - 302,727
Due from other governments 459,775 - 459,775
Total current assets 17,610,607 3,259,646 20,870,253
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Land 911,483 278,000 1,189,483
Construction in progress 678,014 - 678,014
Waterworks and sewerage system 88,101,694 - 88,101,694
Parking lot - 3,383,821 3,383,821
Equipment 1,724,801 696,041 2,420,842
Pedestrian crossing - 30,260 30,260
91,415,992 4,388,122 95,804,114
Less accumulated depreciation 58,799,658 3,053,636 61,853,294
Net capital assets 32,616,334 1,334,486 33,950,820
Advance to other funds 1,321,642 - 1,321,642
Deferred charges 97,753 - 97,753
Total noncurrent assets 34,035,729 1,334,486 35,370,215
Total assets $51646,336  $4,594,132 $ 56,240,468

See Notes to Financial Statements.

24



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Statement of Net Assets - Enterprise Funds - Continued

April 30, 2012
Business-Type Activities
Waterworks Nonmajor
and Sewerage  Commuter
Fund Parking Lot Total
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of bonds payable:

General obligation bonds $ 629,379 % - $ 629,379
Accounts payable 1,014,244 1,770 1,016,014
Accrued interest 87,729 87,729
Deposits 82,217 - 82,217
Capital lease 52,860 - 52,860
Compensated absences 66,307 16,284 82,591

Total current liabilities 1,932,736 18,054 1,950,790
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds payable, net of current maturities:
General obligation bonds,
net of unamotized bond premium 7,197,317 - 7,197,317

Revenue bonds payable 560,000 - 560,000
Capital lease 111,099 - 111,099
Compensated absences 3,490 857 4,347

Total noncurrent liabilities 7,871,906 857 7,872,763
Total liabilities 9,804,642 18,911 9,823,553
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt 24,723,682 1,334,486 26,058,168

Unrestricted 17,118,012 3,240,735 20,358,747
Total net assets $41841694 $4575221 $46,416,915

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets -

Enterprise Funds
Year Ended April 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities

Waterworks Nonmaijor
and Sewerage Commuter
Fund Parking Lot Total
Operating revenues:
Water sales and sewer services $ 16,610,534 $ - $ 16,610,534
Meter sales 26,037 - 26,037
Building impact fees 12,972 - 12,972
Parking fees - 714,415 714,415
Parking fines - 31,869 31,869
Other 504,273 - 504,273
Total operating revenues 17,153,816 746,284 17,900,100
Operating expenses:
Operations 13,701,615 546,469 14,248,084
Depreciation 2,439,586 50,998 2,490,584
Total operating expenses 16,141,201 597,467 16,738,668
Operating income 1,012,615 148,817 1,161,432
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Annexation recaptures 58,053 - 58,053
Development assessments and fees 339,991 - 339,991
Interest income 88,968 25,296 114,264
Interest (expense) (396,408) - (396,408)
Profit before transfers 1,103,219 174,113 1,277,332
Transfers in (out):
Transfers in 356,793 - 356,793
Transfers (out) (60,000) (50,000) (110,000)
296,793 (50,000) 246,793
Changes in net assets 1,400,012 124,113 1,524,125
Net assets:
May 1, 2011 40,441,682 4,451,108 44 892,790
April 30, 2012 $ 41841694 $ 4575221 $ 46,416,915

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Village of Tinley Park, Illinois

Statement of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds
Year Ended April 30, 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received for services
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by
operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Decrease in due to other funds
Increase in advance from other funds
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Net cash flows (used in) noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities
Capital assets purchased
Proceeds from general obligation bonds
Issuance costs paid on general obligation bonds issued
Premium on general obligation bonds issued
Developer fees received
Cash payments for interest
Receipts from other governments
Payments on capital lease
Principal payments, general obligation bonds
Principal payments, alternate revenue bonds
Annexation recapture proceeds
Net cash flows (used in) capital
and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash receipts from interest income
Net cash flows provided by
investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
May 1, 2011

April 30, 2012

See Notes to Financial Statements

Business-Type Activities

Waterworks
and Sewerage
Fund

$ 16,711,064
(1,741,901)
(11,775,134)

3,194,029

(143,761)
(1,321,642)
356,793
(60,000)

(1,168,610)

(1,002,155)
2,633,205
(73,237)
99,164
339,991
(428,779)
65,000
(51,039)
(3,265,628)
(65,000)
58,053

(1,690,425)

88,968

88,968

423,962

13,541,569

$ 13,965,531

Nonmajor
Commuter
Parking Lot
3 746,284
(296,960)

192,498

(50,000)

(50,000)

25,296

25,296

167,794

3,091,852

$ 3,259,646

Total

$ 17,457,348
(2,038,861)
(12,031,960)

3,386,527

(143,761)
(1,321,642)
356,793
(110,000)

(1,218,610)

(1,002,155)
2,633,205
(73,237)
99,164
339,991
(428,779)
65,000
(51,039)
(3,265,628)
(65,000)
58,053

(1,690,425)

114,264

114,264

591,756

16,633,421

$ 17,225,177
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Statement of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds - Continued
Year Ended April 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities

Waterworks Nonmajor
and Sewerage Commuter
Fund Parking Lot Total
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities
Operating income $ 1012615 $ 148,817 $ 1,161,432
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation 2,439,586 50,998 2,490,584
Amortization 41,652 - 41,652
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (450,430) - (450,430)
Deposits 7,678 - 7,678
Accounts payable 162,197 74 162,271
Accrued payroll and compensated absences (19,269) (7,391) (26,660)
Total adjustments 2,181,414 43,681 2,225,095
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 3,194,029 $ 192,498 § 3,386,527

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Pension Trust and Agency Funds
April 30, 2012

Pension Trust

Police
Pension Agency
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,178,703 4,836,560
Investments:
U.S. Government securities 16,309,297 -
Corporate equity instruments 25,542,049 -
Insurance annuity contracts 1,813,160 -
Interest and other receivable 214,855 172,280
Total assets 46,058,064 5,008,840
Liabilities
Accounts payable 7,602 1,134,089
Deposits - 3,874,751
Total liabilities 7,602 5,008,840
Net Assets
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 46,050,462

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Combining Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets

Pension Trust Funds
Year Ended April 30, 2012

Police
Pension
Additions
Contributions:
Employer $ 2,204,188
Plan members 948,904
Total contributions 3,153,092
Investment income (expense):
Net increase in fair value
of investments 580,324
Dividends 301,726
Interest 772,865
Less: investment expenses (132,266)
Net investment income 1,522,649
Total additions 4,675,741
Deductions
Benefits 2,090,656
Administrative expenses:
Other 32,187
Total deductions 2,122,843
Net increase 2,652,898
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits:
May 1, 2011 43,497,564
April 30, 2012 $ 46,050,462

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Activities

The Village of Tinley Park, lliinois, is located in Cook County, lllinois, is a home-rule municipality and was
incorporated in 1892 under the provisions of the constitution and general statutes of the State of Illinois.
The Village operates under the trustee-village form of government and provides a full range of services
including public safety, roads, planning, zoning, and general administrative services.

The accounting policies of the Village of Tinley Park conform to accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America as applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

(a) Financial Reporting Entity

As defined by generally accepted accounting principles established by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), the financial reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as
component units, which are legally separate organizations for which elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as:

(1) Appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's board, and either (a) the ability to
impose will by the primary government, or (b) the possibility that the component unit will provide a
financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary government; or

(2) Fiscal dependency on the primary government.

Based upon the application criteria, the Tinley Park Public Library (Library) has been included within the
reporting entity as a component unit. The Library provides library services to the residents of the Village
of Tinley Park and to the citizens of Orland Hills under a contract with the Orland Hills Public Library
District. The members of the Tinley Park Public Library Board are elected by the public. However, the
Library is fiscally dependent upon the Village because the Village's board approves the Library's budget
and tax levies and must approve any debt issuances. Financial data of the Library has been discretely
presented in the component unit column in the combined financial statements to emphasize that it is
separate from the Village. No separate financial statements have been issued for the Library.

(b) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements: The government-wide Statement of Net Assets and
Statement of Activities report the overall financial activity of the Village. Eliminations have been made to
minimize the double counting of internal activities of the Village. The financial activities of the Village
consist of governmental activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, and business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for services

The Statement of Net Assets presents the Village’s non-fiduciary assets and liabilities with the difference
reported in three categories:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds and other debt that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(b) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

Restricted net assets, if applicable, result when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that do not meet the criteria of the two preceding
categories.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Village’s policy to use
restricted resources first to finance qualifying activities, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function (i.e.
general services, public safety, etc.) are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by the recipients
of goods or services offered by the programs (including fines and fees), and (b) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not
classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements: Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary (agency) funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-
wide financial statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the Village’s funds.
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate
column. The Village has the following major governmental funds - General Fund and Capital
Improvements Fund. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor
governmental funds. The Village has the following major enterprise fund ~ Waterworks and Sewerage
Fund. The remaining enterprise fund is reported as a nonmajor enterprise fund.

The Village administers the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - This is the Village's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those accounted for in another fund. The services which are administered
by the Village and accounted for in the general fund include general services, public works and public
safety.

Capital Improvements Fund — This fund is used to account for all other major capital projects
transactions of the Village not financed through proprietary funds or other capital projects funds.

The Village administers the following major proprietary fund:

Waterworks and Sewerage Fund —Accounts for the provision of water and sewer services to the
residents of the Village. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund,
including but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt service
and billing and collection.

Additionally, the Village administers a fiduciary (police pension trust) fund for assets held by the Village in

a fiduciary capacity on behalf of its sworn police officers and agency trust funds (Special Assessment
Fund, Escrow Fund, and Payroll Fund) each holding assets for others in an agency capacity.
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(c) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and pension trust fund financial
statements. Revenues and contributions are recorded when earned and expenses including benefits and
refunds paid are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flow
takes place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the Village gives (or receives) value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include various taxes, State shared revenues and various
State, federal and local grants. On an accrual basis, revenues from taxes are recognized when the
Village has a legal claim to the resources. Grants, entitlements, State shared revenues and similar items
are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Village
considers revenues to be available if they are collected approximately within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal year.

Significant revenue sources which are susceptible to accrual include property taxes, other taxes, grants
and intergovernmental revenues, charges for services, and interest. All other revenue sources are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received.

Expenditures generally are recorded when the liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However,
compensated absences are recorded only when payment is due (upon employee retirement or
termination). General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent
that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the proprietary fund'’s
principal ongoing operations.

(d) Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Viilage considers cash and cash equivalents to be all cash on hand, demand deposits, time deposits,
all highly liquid investments, and all certificates of deposit.

2. Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted market prices, except for insurance
contracts which are carried at contract value which approximates fair value.
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(d) Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity
3. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Activity
The Village has the following types of transactions between funds:

Loans—amounts provided with a requirement for repayment. Interfund loans are reported as due from
other funds in lender funds and due to other funds in borrower funds for short-term borrowings and
advances to other funds in lender funds and advances from other funds in borrower funds for long-term
borrowings. Amounts are reported as internal balances in the government-wide statement of net assets.

Services provided and used—sales and purchases of goods and services between funds for a price
approximating their external exchange value. Interfund services provided and used are reported as
revenues in seller funds and expenditures or expenses in purchaser funds. Unpaid amounts are reported
as due to/from other funds in the fund balance sheets or fund statements of net assets.

Reimbursements—repayments from the funds responsible for particular expenditures or expenses to the
funds that initially paid for them. Reimbursements are reported as expenditures in the reimbursing fund
and as a reduction of expenditures in the reimbursed fund.

Transfers—flows of assets (such as cash or goods) without equivalent flows of assets in return and
without a requirement for repayment. In governmental funds, transfers are reported as other financing
uses in the funds making transfers and as other financing sources in the funds receiving transfers. In
proprietary funds, transfers in/out are reported as a separate category after non-operating revenues and
expenses.

4. Capital Assets

Capital assets which include land and improvements, current year purchases of streets and sidewalks,
buildings, storm sewers, sanitary sewers, water distribution system and machinery and equipment are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$15,000, and an estimated useful life of greater than one year. Additions or improvements that
significantly extend the useful life of an asset, or that significantly increase the capacity of an asset are
capitalized. Expenditures for asset acquisitions and improvements are stated as capital outlay
expenditures in the governmental funds.

These assets have been valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is reflected in
the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the
same period.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend the assets’ lives are not capitalized.
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

_Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(d) Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (Continued)

4. Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation of capital assets is recorded in the Statement of Activities with accumulated depreciation

reflected in the Statement of Net Assets and is provided on the straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Useful Lives
Buildings and property 20 - 40 years
Equipment and vehicles 5-15 years
Waterworks and sewerage system 10 - 40 years
Parking lot 20 - 30 years
Pedestrian crossing 30 years

Gains or losses from sales or retirements of capital assets are included in the operations on the
Statement of Activities.

5. Unearned / Deferred Revenue

The Village defers revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet
earned. Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that
are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.

6. Compensated Absences

Vacation leave is recorded in governmental funds when due (upon employee retirement or termination).
Vested or accumulated vacation leave of proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and liability of
those funds as the benefits accrue to employees.

7. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt
and other long-term obligations, including compensated absences, are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities and proprietary fund Statement of Net Assets. Bond
issuance costs are reported as noncurrent assets and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond issuance costs during the year the
bonds are sold. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances
are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

35



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(d) Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (Continued)
7. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

Debt service funds are specifically established to account for and service the long-term obligations for the
governmental funds debt. Long-term debt is recognized as a liability in a governmental fund when due, or
when resources have been accumulated for payment early in the following year.

8. Fund Balances

Effective May 1, 2011, the Village adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 54 (GASB 54), Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This
statement established fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the
extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources
reported in the governmental funds. In addition, GASB 54 modified certain fund type definitions and
provided guidance for classification of stabilization amounts on the face of the balance sheet.

Within the governmental fund types, the Village’s fund balances are reported in one of the following
classifications:

Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either a) not in
spendable form; or b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes, that is, when constraints
placed on the use of resources are either: a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through
debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or b)
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the Village's highest level of decision-making authority.
Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Village removes or
changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it employed to previously commit
those amounts. The Village’s highest level of decision-making authority rests with the Village's
Board of Trustees. The Village passes formal resolutions to commit their fund balances.

Assigned — Includes amounts that are constrained by the Village's intent to be used for specific
purposes, but that are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by: a) the Village’s
Board of Trustees itself; or b) a body or official to which the Board of Trustees has delegated the
authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. The Village's Board of Trustees
has authorized management to assign amounts for specific purpose within the General Fund.
Within the other governmental fund types (special revenue, debt service, capital projects)
resources are assigned in accordance with the established fund purpose and approved
budget/appropriation. Residual fund balances in these fund types that are not restricted or
committed are reported as assigned. Within these same funds, a residual deficit, if any, is
reported as unassigned.

Unassigned — includes the residual fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and
that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General
Fund.

It is the Village's policy for the General Fund to consider restricted resources to have been spent first
when an expenditure is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted (i.e. committed, assigned or
unassigned) fund balances are available, followed by committed and then assigned fund balances.
Unassigned amounts are used only after the other resources have been used.

For all other governmental funds, it is the Village’s policy to consider unrestricted resources (i.e. -
committed, assigned) to have been spent first, followed by restricted resources.
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(d) Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (Continued)

8. Fund Balances (Continued)

At April 30, 2012, the Village's Governmental Fund fund balances were classified as follows

Capital Nonmajor
General Improvements Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Total
Nonspendable
Advances $ $ 1.101.856 § $ 1.101.856
Assigned:
Commercial Development 1,234,192 1,234,192
Main Street Commission 1,600,000 1,600,000
Local Road Improvements 1,519,740 1,519,740
Fire Alarms 578.271 578,271
4.932.203 4,932,203
Restricted:
Custom Seizures 775579 775,579
Motor Fuel 1,889,687 1,889,687
Drug Enforcement 75,379 75,379
Enhanced 911 Services 611,407 611,407
Foreign Fire 231,381 231,381
Commuity Development 3,999 3,999
Special Service Area 275,862 275,862
Limited Sales Tax Bonds 9,227 9,227
Capital Projects 12,068,238 ,238
15,940,759 15,940,759
Committed:
Debt Service 2,369,462 2,369,462
Capital Projects 28.142.709 30.762 28,173,471
28.142.709 2.400.224 30.542.933
Unassigned 8.679.443 (143.725) 8,535,718
Total Fund Balances $ 13611646 $ 29244565 $ 18197258 $ 61.053.469
8. Capital Contributions

Capital contributions reported in the proprietary funds represent capital assets donated from outside
parties, principally developers.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(d) Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (Continued)
10. Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amount of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the period. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

11. Eliminations and Reclassifications

In the process of aggregating information for the Government Wide statements, some amounts reported
as interfund activity and/or interfund balances in the Fund Financial statements are eliminated or
reclassified.

Note 2. Cash and Investments

Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the Village's deposits may not be returned
to it. The Village does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of April 30, 2012, the carrying amount

of the Village's deposits was $66,246,964, with bank balances totaling $67,345,052, all of which are fully
insured and collateralized. The Village also had $2,300 in petty cash on hand at April 30, 2012.

As of April 30, 2012, the Village had $21,645,158 with lllinois Funds, which are considered to mature in
less than one year because the weighted average maturity of the pool is less than one year.

Investments

As of April 30, 2012, the Village had the following investments and maturities all of which were held by the
Tinley Park Police Pension Fund:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Less
Value Than 1 1-5 6-10

U.S. Government Backed Securities  $ 156,739 $ $ 878 % $
U.S. Government Bonds 2,314,862 1,209,617 1,105,245
U.S. agencies - FHLB 6,323,362 502,700 2,805,274 2,920,318
U.S. agencies - FNMA 959,342 959,342
U.S. agencies - FFCB 4,292,783 1,870,797 2,421,986
Local Government Bonds 2,262,209 423,575 1,110,909
Total investments with maturities 16,309,297 § 502,700 $ 7,269483 $ 7,558458 %
Corporate equity investments 25,542,049
Insurance annuity contracts 1,813,160

$ 43,664,506
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois
Notes to Financial Statements
Note 2.  Cash and Investments (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk — The Tinley Park Police Pension Fund's investment policy states that the investment
portfolio of the Fund shall be designed to attain a market-average rate of return throughout budgetary and
economic cycles, taking into account the Fund’s risk constraints, the cash flow characteristics of the
portfolio and legal restrictions for return on investments. As a means of managing its exposure to fair
value losses arising from increasing interest rates, the Fund’s investment policy specifically identifies
limits on investment maturities as follows:

Maturity Percentage

25%
15%
15%
15%
10%
5-10 10%

HWODN 2O
OO WN -

Credit Risk — State statutes authorize the Village to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S.
agencies, obligations of states and the their political subdivisions, repurchase agreements (under certain
statutory restrictions), commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two
standard rating services, the lllinois Funds and the lllinois Metropolitan Investment Fund. Pension funds
may invest as allowed by Hllinois Compiled Statutes. As of April 30, 2012, the Village's investments in
U.S. Government agencies were rated AAA by Standard & Poor's and AAA by Moody’s Investors
Service. The Village’s investments in the Local Government Bonds were rated AAA by Standard &
Poor’s.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The Tinley Park Police Pension Fund’s investment policy requires the
Fund to diversify its investments by security type and institutions with the exception of U.S. Treasury
Securities and authorized Pools for which there is no restriction as to percentage of portfolio. No more
than (50%) of the Fund's total portfolio at the time of the investment will be invested in a single security,
type of security or single financial institution. As of April 30, 2012, more than 5% of the Fund’s
investments are in U.S. Government Treasuries, FHLB, FFCB, and Local Government Bonds. These
investments are 5.3%, 14.5%, 9.8%, and 5.2%, respectively, of the Fund's total investments.

Custodial Credit Risk — For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of failure of the counterparty,
the Tinley Park Police Pension Fund will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in possession of an outside party. The Fund's investment policy states that all security
transactions, including collateral for any repurchase agreements, entered into by the Fund shall be
conducted on a delivery versus payment basis, which requires the delivery of securities with an exchange
of money for those securities. The policy also states that securities will be held by a third party custodian
designated by the Treasurer and evidenced by safekeeping receipts and reports. The U.S. Treasury
Notes and Strips, U.S. agency securities, local government bonds, annuity contracts, and certificate of
deposit are held by the Fund's agent in the Fund’s name.
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Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued)

The previously discussed deposits of $66,246,964, petty cash of $2,300, Illinois Funds of $21,645,158
and investments of $43,664,506 totaling $131,558,928 are reported in the financial statements as follows:

Governmental and business-type activities,
Cash and cash equivalents:

Subject to risk categorization $ 59,234,001
Not subject to risk categorization 21,645 158
Subtotal 80,879,159

Fiduciary Funds:
Cash and cash equivalents 7,015,263
Investments 43,664,506
Subtotal 50,679,769
Total $131,558,928

Component Unit Library
Deposits

State statutes authorize the Library to make deposits in interest bearing depository accounts in federally
insured and/or state chartered banks, savings and loan associations, and credit unions. As of April 30,
2012, the Library had deposits with federally insured financial institutions of $1,352,848 with bank
balances totaling $1,405,530, all of which are fully insured and collateralized.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of bank failure,
the Library’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Library does not have an investment policy for
custodial credit risk for deposits.

As of April 30, 2012, the Library had $8,944,229 with lllinois Funds, which are considered to mature in
less than one year because the weighted average maturity of the pool is less than one year.

The lllinois Funds investment Pool is not registered with the SEC. The pool is sponsored by the Treasurer
of the State of lllinois, in accordance with State law. The fair value of the position in the Pool is the same
as the value of the Pool shares.

Interest Rate Risk - The Library's investment policy does not limit the Library’s investment portfolio to
specific maturities.

Credit Risk - State statutes allow the Library to invest in direct obligations of, or obligations guaranteed
by, the United States Treasury or agencies of the United States, and short-term obligations of
corporations organized in the United States with assets exceeding $500,000,000. The Library is also
authorized to invest in the lllinois Funds. Investments in lllinois Funds were rated AAA by Standard and
Poor’s. The Library's investment policy does not address credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk - The Library's investment policy does not restrict the amount of investments
in any one issuer. All of the Library's investments are in the lllinois Funds.

Custodial Credit Risk — For an investment, this is the risk that in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Library will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that
are in the possession of an outside party. The lllinois Funds held by the Library are not subject to
custodial credit risk. The Library’s investment policy does not address custodial credit risk for
investments.
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Note 3. Property Taxes

The Village annually establishes a legal right to the property tax assessments upon the enactment of a
tax levy ordinance by the Village Board of Trustees. These tax assessments are levied in December and
attach as an enforceable lien on the previous January 1. Tax bills are prepared by Cook County and
issued on or about February 1 and August 1, and are payable in two instaliments which become due on
or about March 1 and September 1. Tax bills are prepared by Will County and issued on or about May 1,
and are payable in two equal installments which become due on or about June 1 and September 1. The
Counties collect such taxes and periodically remit them to the Village.

The 2011 property tax assessment, which was levied in December 2011, is to finance the budget for the
fiscal year beginning May 1, 2012, and the revenue to be produced from that assessment is to be
recognized during that period, provided the "available” criteria has been met. "Available" means when
due or receivable within the current period, and collected within that fiscal period or expected to be
collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For governmental fund
types, property taxes collected in advance of the fiscal year for which they are levied are recorded as
deferred revenue and recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied except for employee
pension taxes which are recognized as revenue in the year in which they are received. A reduction for
collection losses based on historical collection experience has been provided on uncollected tax levies.

Property taxes are billed and collected by the County Treasurers of Cook County and Will County, Hilinois.

Note 4. Due from Other Governmental Agencies

The Village of Tinley Park entered into an intergovernmental agreement with the Villages of New Lenox
and Mokena for bulk water supply services (providing Lake Michigan water to these communities). As
part of this agreement, the Village of Tinley Park issued revenue bonds to assist the Village of Mokena in
funding construction of improvements required to provide this water service to Mokena. The Village of
Mokena has agreed to pay for all principal and interest payments on the debt. The initial amount of the
debt was $1,000,000 and the balance receivable as of April 30, 2012 is $459,775.
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Note 5. Capital Assets

Governmental Activities

A summary of the changes in capital assets for governmental activities of the Village is as follows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and property
Equipment and vehicles:

General purpose
Public works
Public safety

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and property
Equipment and vehicles

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Balance
May 1, 2011

$ 116,839,337
27,263,881
144,103,218

52,703,336

818,056
4,848,833
8,210,580

66,580,805

16,170,864
9,796,221
25,967,085

40,613,720

$ 184,716,938
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$

$

Additions

1,299,373
12,170,002
13,469,375

3,741,661

19,519
407,251
264,461

4,432,892

1,730,264
887,741
2,618,005

1,814,887

15,284,262

Deletions

$ 50,311
3,240,864
3,291,175

30,536
297,959
185,401
513,896

512,009
512,009

1,887

$ 3,293,062

Balance
April 30, 2012

$ 118,088,399
36,193,019
154,281,418

56,444,997

807,039
4,958,125
8,289,640

70,499,801

17,901,128
10,171,953
28,073,081

42,426,720

$ 196,708,138
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 5. Capital Assets (Continued)

Business-Type Activities

A summary of changes in capital assets for business-type activities of the Village is as follows:

Balance
May 1, 2011
Business-type activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 1,189,483
Construction in progress 330,047
1,519,530
Capital assets being depreciated:
Waterworks and sewerage system 87,593,457
Parking lot 3,383,821
Equipment 2,458,735
Pedestrian crossing 30,260
93,466,273
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Waterworks and sewerage system 55,382,310
Parking lot 2,278,335
Equipment 1,857,649
Pedestrian crossing 30 260
59,546,554
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 33,919,719

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 35439249

Component Unit Library

Balance
May 1, 2011
Library building and equipment $ 11,211,666
Less accumulated depreciation 2,238,403

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 3 8.973.263
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$

$

$

3

Additions

722,878
722,878
547,979
106,209
654,188
2,344,302
50,999
95,283
2,490,584
(1,836,396)

(1113 518)

Additions

298,788
(298.788

$

3

Deletions

374,911

374,911

39,742
144,102

183,844

39,742
144,102

183,844

374.911

Deletions

$

$

Balance
April 30, 2012

$ 1,189,483
678,014
1,867,497

88,101,694
3,383,821
2,420,842

30.260

93,936,617

57,686,870
2,327,334
1,808,830

30 260

61,853,294

32,083,323

$ 33.950.820

Balance
April 30, 2012

11,211,666

2,537,191
8.674.475
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 5. Capital Assets (Continued)

Governmental Activities Depreciation Charged to Functions/Programs

Depreciation was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 411,617
Public safety 1,458,931
Public works 524,702
Social services 222 755

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 2,618,005

Business-type activities:

Waterworks and sewerage $ 2,439,586
Commuter parking lot 50,998
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 2,490,584

Note 6. Long-Term Obligations

Governmental Activities
The following is a summary of long-term obligation activity for the Village associated with governmental
activities for the year ended April 30, 2012:

Outstanding QOutstanding Due
Debt as of Debt as of within
May 1, 2011 Additions Reductions April 30, 2012 one vear
General obligation bonds financed
through governmental funds $ 40,000,045 $ 2,601,795 $ 5884372 $ 36,717,468 $ 3,620,622
Special service area bonds 895,000 895,000
Unamortized issuance costs (486,455) (34,145) (83,247) (437,353)
Unamortized bond premium 243,645 100,134 26,475 317,304
Deferred loss on refunding (316,003) (37,532) (30,433) (323,102)
Other postemployment benefits 2,579,451 680,400 3,259,851
Compensated absences 1,042,641 1,293,283 1,357,529 978,395 929,500
$ 43.958.324 $ 4603935 $ 7.154.696 $ 41.407. $ 4550122

Compensated absences and other postemployment benefits are historically retired by the Village’s
General Fund.

Business-Type Activities
The following is @ summary of long-term obligation activity for the Village with business-type activities for
the year ended April 30, 2012:

Outstanding Outstanding Due
Debt as of Debt as of within
May 1, 2011 Additions Reductions April 30, 2012 one vear
General obligation bonds financed
through enterprise funds $ 8359955 $ 2633205 $ 3265628 $ 7,727,532 $ 629,379
Unamortized issuance costs (66,168) (73,237) (41,652) (97,753)
Unamortized bond premium 101.343 2,179 99,164
Revenue bonds financed
through enterprise funds 625,000 65,000 560,000
Capital lease 214,998 51,039 163,959 52,860
Compensated absences 113,598 121,980 148,640 86,938 82,591
$ 9247383 $ 2783291 $§ 3490834 $ 8 $ 764 830
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Note 6. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)
Outstanding debt as of April 30, 2012, consists of the following:

General obligation bonds:

General obligation bonds dated October 5, 2004, of which original principal of
$4,250,350 is to be serviced by the Waterworks and Sewerage Fund, $2,535,000 is to
be serviced by the Storm Water Management Fund and $1,644,650 is to be serviced
by the Surtax Cap Fund, provides for the retirement of principal at the rate of $550,000
in 2013. Interest is payable on December 1 and June 1 of each year at a rate of
3.25%.

General obligation refunding bonds dated April 28, 2008 provide for the retirement of
principal of $480,000 in 2013, $495,000 in 2014, $515,000 in 2015, $535,000 in 2016,
$555,000 in 2017 and $580,000 in 2018. Interest is payable on December 1 and June
1 of each year at varying rates between 3.5% and 4.0%.

General obligation refunding and improvement bonds dated March 23, 2009 provide for
the retirement of principal of $755,000 in 2013, $780,000 in 2014, $685,000 in 2015,
$705,000 in 2016, $715,000 in 2017, $750,000 in 2018, $1,000,000 in 2019,
$1,050,000 in 2020, $1,050,000 in 2021 and $1,070,000 in 2022. Interest is payable
on December 1 and June 1 of each year at varying rates between 3.0% and 4.1%.

General obligation bonds dated December 30, 2009 provide for the retirement of
principal of $1,910,000 in 2013, $1,615,000 in 2014, $2,280,000 in 2015, $1,965,000 in
2016, $2,685,000 in 2017, and $2,865,000 in 2018. Interest is payable on December 1
and June 1 of each year at varying rates between 1.7% and 3.5%.

General obligation bonds dated December 22, 2010 provide for the retirement of
principal of $500,000 in 2013, $510,000 in 2014, $520,000 in 2015, $535,000 in 2016,
$550,000 in 2017, $565,000 in 2018, $590,000 in 2019, $615,000 in 2020, $640,000 in
2021, $670,000 in 2022, $705,000 in 2023, $745,000 in 2024, $780,000 in 2025,
$825,000 in 20286, $865,000 in 2027, $915,000 in 2028, $970,000 in 2029, $1,030,000
in 2030, and $1,090,000 in 2031. Interest is payable on December 1 and June 1 of
each year at varying rates between 1.75% and 6.2%.

General obligation refunding bonds dated February 15, 2012, of which the refunded
principal of $2,633,205 is to be serviced by the Waterworks and Sewerage Fund,
$1,670,500 is to be serviced by the Storm Water Management Fund and $1,031,295 is
o be serviced by the Surtax Cap Fund, provides for the retirement of principal at the
rate of $55,000 in 2013, $610,000 in 2014, $750,000 in 2015, $765,000 in 2016,
$780,000 in 2017, $790,000 in 2018, $725,000 in 2019 and a final installment of
$760,000 in 2020. Interest is payable on December 1 and June 1 of each year at a
rate of 2.00%.

Unamortized bond premium
Unamortized issuance costs

Total general obligation bonds
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$ 550,000

3,160,000

8,560,000

13,320,000

13,620,000

5,235,000
416,468
(535,106)

44,326,362
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 6. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

Special Service Area Bonds:

Limited sales tax revenue bonds dated November 1, 1988 provide for the retirement of
principal at the rate of $895,000 through 2003. Interest was payable May 1 and
November 1 at a rate of 10.25%. Bonds are to be paid solely from a specific portion of
the sales tax revenues generated in the special service area over the life of the bonds.
Incremental sales tax revenues have generated $89,416 in "Recapture Differential®
through April 30, 2012 that is applied to retire outstanding interest coupons and bonds
in serial order, respectively. Of this amount, $88,919 has been paid and reduced
outstanding interest coupons, and $497 is held as Unused Recapture Differential for
future debt service. The Village is not legally obligated to fund these payments except
from available incremental sales tax revenues. When future incremental revenues
become available bond maturity payments will be made.

Revenue Bonds:

Revenue bonds dated August 1, 2000 provide for the retirement of principal of $65,000
in 2014, $70,000 in 2015, $75,000 in 2016, $80,000 in 2017, $85,000 in 2018, $90,000
in 2019 and $95,000 in 2020. Interest is payable on May 1 and November 1 of each
year at rates varying from 5.25% - 5.5%.

Capital lease. Sewer jet machine dated August 25, 2010 with annual payments of
$58,710 (including interest at 3.57%). Matures in 2015.

Compensated Absences

Total long-term debt

895,000

560,000

163,959

1,065,333

$ 47,010,654

On February 15, 2012, the Village issued $5,235,000 in General Obligation Bonds with an average
interest rate of 2.00 percent to advance refund $5,175,000 of outstanding General Obligation Bonds,
Series 2004 with an average interest rate of 3.60 percent. $5,175,000 was deposited with an escrow
agent for the refunding. The refunding resulted in an economic loss of approximately $76,000 and had
the net effect of decreasing the life of the bonds by 1 year and decreasing future debt service by

approximately $500,000.
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Note 6.

Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

The future debt service requirements to amortize the outstanding debt other than the 1988 limited sales
tax bonds, unamortized issuance costs, unamortized bond premiums, compensated absences, and the
capital lease including interest of $9,777,972 are as follows:

Business-Type

Governmental
General General
Year Obligation Obligation
Ending Bonds Bonds
April 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2013 $ 3620622 $ 1,111,512 $ 629,378 $ 297,225
2014 3,367,353 958,559 642,647 193,095
2015 4,072,805 888,245 677,195 177,765
2016 3,810,657 799,398 694,343 161,537
2017 4,579,104 708,327 705,896 144,746
2018 4,823,876 593,172 726,124 126,370
2019 1,526,615 464,203 788,385 107,205
2020 1,598,654 415,613 826,346 84,804
2021 1,242,363 362,256 447,637 60,349
2022 1,282,482 317,523 457 518 44,362
2023 604,293 267,745 100,707 27,405
2024 638,579 245,921 106,421 25171
2025 668,579 222,859 111,421 22,811
2026 707,151 198,712 117,849 20,339
2027 741,437 173,173 123,563 17,725
2028 784,295 143,081 130,705 14,645
2029 831,438 111,249 138,562 11,387
2030 882,868 77,503 147,132 7,933
2031 934,297 39,848 155,703 4,079

$ 36717468 $ 8,098,899 § 7727532 $ 1,548,052

Revenue
Bonds

Principal Interest

$ $ 15193
65,000 28,679
70,000 25,118
75,000 21,256
80,000 17,050
85,000 12,512
90,000 7,700
95,000 2,613

$ 560,000 $ 130.121

Total

$ 5,673,931
5,255,333
5,911,128
5,562,191
6,235,123
6,367,054
2,984,108
3,023,030
2,112,605
2,101,885
1,000,150
1,016,092
1,025,670
1,044,051
1,055,899
1,072,726
1,092,636
1,115,436
1,133,927

$ 54,782,972

The Village has pledged revenues to repay certain bond issues. The pledges will remain until all bonds
are retired. The amount of pledges remaining as of April 30, 2012 is as follows:

Debt Issue Ple Revenue Source
2000 Water Sales and Sewer Services
2004 Water Sales and Sewer Services
2004 Storm Water Fees
2008 Property Taxes
2009 Water Sales and Sewer Services
2009 Property Taxes and Intergovernmental Receipts
2009A Property Taxes
2010 Water Sales and Sewer Services
2010 Property Taxes, Other Taxes and
Intergovernmental Receipts
2012 Water Sales and Sewer Services
2012 Property Taxes and Intergovernmental Receipts
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Pledge Commitment
Remainin Date
560,000 5/1/2019
276,650 12/1/2012
273,350 12/1/2012
3,160,000 12/1/2017
2,872,100 12/1/2021
5,687,900 12/1/2021
13,320,000 12/1/2017
1,945,577 12/1/2030
11,674,423 12/1/2030
2,633,205 12/1/2019
2,601,795 12/1/2019

Percentage
of Revenue

0.39%
17.26%
0.00%
14.70%
2.23%
17.10%
48.36%
0.81%

11.78%
0.00%
0.00%
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Note 6. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)
The secured debt was issued to provide for various Waterworks and Sewerage improvements and

Special Service Area Number 3 improvements. A comparison of the pledged revenues collected and the

related principal and interest expenditures for the fiscal year 2012 is as follows:

Pledge Principal and
PI Revenue Source Revenue Interest Retired
2000 Water Sales and Sewer Services $ 16,610,534 65,000
2004 Water Sales and Sewer Services 16,610,534 2,867,100
2004 Storm Water Fees 2,832,900
2008 Property Taxes 4,108,720 604,038
2009 Water Sales and Sewer Services 16,610,534 371,226
2009 Property Taxes and Intergovernmental Receipts 4,260,560 728,394
2009A Property Taxes 4,108,720 1,986,900
2010 Water Sales and Sewer Services 16,610,534 134,578
2010 Property Taxes, Other Taxes and
Intergovernmental Receipts 8,715,580 1,026,750
2012 Water Sales and Sewer Services 16,610,534
2012 Property Taxes and Intergovernmental Receipts 4,260,560

A summary of debt transactions of Tinley Park Public Library, a component unit, for the year ended
April 30, 2012, is as follows:

Outstanding Outstanding
Debt as of Debt as of
May 1, 2011 Additions Reductions April 30, 2012
General obligation bonds $ 6,850,000 $ 5,940,000 $ 6,850,000 $ 5,940,000
Unamortized bond issuance costs (26,189) (87,685) (31,385) (82,489)
Deferred gain on refunding 408,811 24,226 384,585
Unamortized bond premium 541,565 11,510 530,055
Compensated absences 116,052 117,379 104,044 129,387

$ 6939863 $ 6920070 $ 6958395 $ 6,901,538

Note 7. Capital Lease Obligation

The Village leases sewer equipment under capital lease, which expires in August 2014. Annual lease
payments, including interest at 3.57 percent are $58,710. The cost of the capital asset acquired under
the capital lease was $274,988. The book value of this asset at year-end is $242,915.
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Note 7. Capital Lease Obligation (Continued)

Minimum future lease payments under capital lease together with the present value of the net minimum
lease payments as of April 30, 2012 are as follows:

Year Ending April 30:

2013 $ 58,710

2014 58,710

2015 58,710
Total minimum lease payments 176,130
Less amount representing interest 12,171
Present value of future minimum lease payments 163,959
Less current portion 52,860
Long-term portion 3 111,099
Note 8. Pension and Retirement Plan Commitments

Substantially all Village employees are covered under one of the following employee retirement plans.
lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Plan Description. The Village’s defined benefit pension plan for regular employees provides retirement
and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
The Village’s plan is affiliated with the lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-
employer plan. Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by the General
Assembly of the State of lllinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained on-line at

www.imrf.org.

Funding Policy. As set by statute, the Village's regular plan members are required to contribute 4.50% of
their annual covered salary. The statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in
addition to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The Village's
actual contribution rates for calendar years 2012 and 2011 used by the Village were 13.81 percent and
13.88 percent, respectively, of annual covered payroll. The Village’s annual required contribution rates
for calendar years 2012 and 2011 were 13.88 and 13.65 percent, respectively. The Village also
contributes for disability benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are
pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of
Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

Annual Pension Cost. For fiscal year 2012, the Village’s annual pension cost of $1,568,325 was equal to
the required and actual contributions.
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Trend Information

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
04/30/12 $ 1,568,325 100% $
04/30/11 1,499 834 100%
04/30/10 1,364,158 100%

The required contribution for calendar year 2011 was determined as part of the December 31, 2009,
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at
December 31, 2009 included (a) 7.5%investment rate of return (net of administrative and direct
investment expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 4.00% a year, attributable to infiation, (c)
additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.4% to 10.0% per year depending on age and service,
attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) post retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The actuarial
value of the Village's regular plan assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of
short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period with a 20% corridor
between the actuarial and market value of assets. The Village's regular plan’s unfunded actuarial
accrued liability at December 31, 2009 is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an
open 30 year basis.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation
date, the regular plan was 61.35% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $30,024,056
and the actuarial value of assets was $18,420,498, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(UAAL) of $11,603,558. The covered payroll for calendar year 2011 (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $11,294,717 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 103%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following the
notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Police Pension Plan

Police sworn personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan which is a defined benefit single-
employer pension plan. Although this is a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and
employee and employer contribution levels are governed by lllinois Compiled Statutes and may be
amended only by the lllinois Legislature. The plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and
disability benefits. The Village presents the plan as a Pension Trust Fund within this report. No separate
report is issued for the pension trust fund.

Covered employees are currently required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Police Pension
Plan. The member rate is determined by State Statute. The Village is required to contribute at an
actuarially determined amount. The employer rate for fiscal year ended April 30, 2012, was 24.74% of
covered payroll. The employer contribution is funded by property taxes. Administrative costs are funded
by investment earnings. Contributions and benefits are recognized when due and payable and pursuant
to formal commitments, as well as statutory or contractual requirements rather than the period in which
employee services are performed. Refunds are recognized as paid.
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The Village's annual pension cost and net pension (asset) of the Plan for the year ended April 30, 2012,
were as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 1,964,280
Interest on net pension obligation (60,007)
Adjustment to annual requirement contribution 553,903
Annual pension cost 2,458,176
Contributions made 2,204,188
Decrease in net pension asset 253,988
Net pension (asset), beginning of year (1,411,147)
Net pension (asset), end of year $ (1,157,159)

The annual required contribution for the year ended April 30, 2012, was determined as part of the

April 30, 2011, actuarial valuation report using the entry age normal cost method. The actuarial
assumptions included (a) 7.0% investment rate of return, (b) projected salary increases of 5.5%, (c) 3.0%
per year cost of living adjustments. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.0%. The
actuarial value of Police Pension assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of
short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period. The Police Pension Plan's
unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a closed basis. The
remaining amortization period at April 30, 2011, was 22 years.

Trend Information - Schedule of Emplover Contributions

Fiscal Annual Annual Percentage Net Pension
Year Pension Contributions of APC Obligation
Endin Cost (APC) Made Contributed
04/30/12 $ 2,458,176 $ 2,204,188 89.7% $ (1,157,159)
04/30/11 1,941,556 1,684,771 81.6% (857,244)
04/30/10 1,447,429 1,441,809 99.6% (1,213,868)

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of April 30, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
Police Pension Plan was 71.9% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $60,478,664 and
the actuarial value of assets was $43,497,563, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
of $16,981,101. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$6,405,212 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 265.1%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following the
notes to the financial statements, present multi-year information about whether the actuarial values of
plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability
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Membership in the plan consisted of the following as of April 30, 2012:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 33
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 1
Active vested plan members 56
Active nonvested plan members 16

106

Note 9. Risk Management

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The Village participates in the Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA). IRMA is an
organization of municipalities and special districts in Northeastern lllinois, which have formed an
association under the lllinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Statute, to pool its risk management needs.
The Agency administers a mix of self-insurance and commercial insurance coverages; property/casualty
and workers' compensation claim administration/litigation management services; unemployment claim
administration; extensive risk management/loss control consulting and training programs; and a risk
information system and financial reporting service for its members.

The Village’s payments to IRMA are displayed on the financial statements as expenditures/expenses in
appropriate funds. Each member assumes the first $10,000 of each occurrence. IRMA has a mix of self-
insurance and commercial insurance at various amounts above that level.

Each member appoints one delegate, along with an alternate delegate, to represent the member on the
Board of Directors. The Village does not exercise any control over the activities of the Agency beyond its
representation on the Board of Directors.

Initial contributions are determined each year based on the individual member’s eligible revenue as
defined in the by-laws of IRMA, experience modification factors based on past member loss experience
and optional deductible credits. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of IRMA
attributable to a membership year during which they were a member. Supplemental contributions may be
required to fund these deficits.

The Village purchases commercial insurance to cover its employees for health and accident claims.

The Village has not had significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous fiscal year nor did
settlements exceed insurance coverage in any of the last three years.

52



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 10.  Other Fund Disclosures (FFS Level Only)

Other information related to individual funds includes the following:
(a) Interfunds

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances as of April 30, 2012, are as follows:

Due From

Fund Other Funds
Other Nonmajor Governmental

General $ 29,921

Due To

Fund Other Funds
General

Other Nonmajor Governmental $ 29,921

Interfund debt reflects operating loans which are expected to be repaid in the following fiscal year.

(b) Advances

Advance To
Fund Other Funds
Capital Improvements
General $ 1,101,856
Waterworks and Sewerage
General 1,321,642
Total 3 2,423,498

Advance From

Fund Other Funds
General
Capital Improvements $ 1,101,856
Waterworks and Sewerage 1,321,642
Total 3 2,423,498

Advances reflect loans between funds which are not expected to be repaid in the following fiscal year.
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Transfers for the year ended April 30, 2012 are as follows:

Transfer From

Fund Other Funds
General
Nonmajor Governmental $ 222,670

Capital Improvements

General Fund 5,840,897
Waterworks and Sewerage 60,000
Nonmajor Governmental 4,179,412
Commuter Parking Lot 50,000

Waterworks and Sewerage
General Fund 356,793

Nonmajor Governmental

General Fund 943,562
Capital Improvements 675,403
Other Nonmajor Governmental 7,933,276

Total $ 20,262,013

Transfer To

Fund Other Funds
General
Capital Improvements $ 5,840,897
Nonmajor Governmental 943,562
Waterworks and Sewerage 356,793

Capital Improvements
Nonmajor Governmental 675,403

Waterworks and Sewerage
Capital Improvements 60,000

Commuter Parking Lot
Capital Improvements 50,000

Nonmajor Governmental

Other Nonmajor Governmental 7,933,276
General Fund 222,670
Capital Improvements 4,179,412

Total $ 20,262,013

Interfund transfers are to assist with payment of debt and cover expenses incurred in funds where work is
related to other funds.
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In addition, the Village had the following transactions with its component unit, the Library:

Transfers From

Component Unit, Library
Capital Improvements 3 160,000

Transfers To

Capital Improvements
Component Unit, Library $ 150,000

Budget Overexpenditure

The following funds overexpended their budgets for the year ended April 30, 2012, by the following
amounts: the Drug Enforcement (Special Revenue) overexpended by $5,353, and the Library Special
Building (Component Unit) overexpended by $253,678.

Deficit Fund Balance

The following funds had deficit fund balances for the year ended April 30, 2012: 2009 General Obligation
Bonds (Debt Service) $143,725.

Note 11. Postemployment Healthcare Plan

Plan Description. The Village of Tinley Park (Village) provides limited health care insurance coverage for
its eligible retired employees. Dependent coverage is available to eligible retired employees at an
additional cost to the retiree. This is a singie-employer plan. The Retiree Health Plan does not issue a
publicly available financial report.

Funding Policy. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements.
Retirees receive coverage under the Village’s health plan with a limited employer contribution rate applied
towards the premiums for the coverage elected by the employee. For fiscal year 2012, the Village
contributed $527,276 to the plan.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The Village's annual other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45 The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years.
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The following table shows the components of the Village’'s annual OPEB cost for the year ended April 30,
2012, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Village’s net OPEB obligation to the
plan:

Annual required contribution $ 1,164,685
Interest on net OPEB obligation 128,973
Adjustment to annual requirement contribution (85,982)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 1,207,676
Contributions made 527,276
Increase in net OPEB obligation 680,400
Net OPEB liability, beginning of year 2,579,451
Net OPEB liability, end of year $ 3,259,851

The Village’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for 2012 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Percentage Net
Annual Annual OPEB OPEB
Year Ending OPEB Cost Cost Contributed  Obligation
04/30/12 $ 1,207,676 43.7% $ 3,259,851
04/30/11 1,331,407 24.5% 2,579,451
04/30/10 1,266,628 41.6% 1,573,706

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of April 30, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation data, the
plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $15,236,208, and the actuarial value
of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial liability (UAAL) of $15,236,208. The covered payroll
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $17,061,005, and the ratio of the UAAL to
the covered payroll was 89.30%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about the future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on
the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.
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In the April 30, 2012 actuarial valuation (the most recent available), the entry age actuarial cost method
was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 5.0% investment rate of return (net of administrative
expenses), which is the expected long-term investment returns on the employer's own investments
calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, 5.0% projected salary increases,
and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8.0% initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of
6.0%. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-
term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period. The UAAL is being amortized as
a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at April 30,
2012 was 30 years.

Note 12. Lake Michigan Water Project and Sanitary Sewer Services

In 1973, the Village entered into water service supply agreements with the Village of Oak Lawn, lilinocis
(Oak Lawn) whereby Oak Lawn constructed a water transmission line to provide Lake Michigan water to
the Village and to neighboring communities. The purpose of the transmission line, as well as the related
assets constructed by the Village was to provide, pump, and store Lake Michigan water. The project
began operations in 1974.

To finance the construction of the transmission line, which remains the property of Oak Lawn, Oak Lawn
issued general obligation bonds. As part of the current water supply agreements the Village was
responsible for a share of the costs related to the construction of the transmission line. In addition to the
transmission line costs, the Village was responsible for a portion of principal and interest on the bonded
debt incurred by Oak Lawn to finance the expansion of the pumping and storage system, and was to
make semiannual payments to Oak Lawn as the bonds are repaid through the fiscal year 2012.

Payments were in proportion to the Village’s water allocations. The final payment was made in fiscal year
2012.

The Village also pays Oak Lawn for the purchase of Lake Michigan water which is based upon water
consumption. During the year ended April 30, 2012, this additional amount totaled $7,825,369.

In 1982, the Village of Tinley Park entered into a water supply contract with Citizens Utilities (now lllinois
American Water, hereafter IAW). Under this contract, the Village supplies Lake Michigan water to this
private utility company that serves a portion of the Village of Orland Hills, and a small Orland Park
subdivision. For services provided under the agreement, the Village receives a handling fee toward the
maintenance and operation of the water system, calculated on gallons supplied to IAW. The contract, as
amended, has expired as of November 2006. Negotiations on a contract renewal are in process. The
Village has continued to supply water to JAW under terms of the amended contract previously noted.

Under a 1999 water supply contract, the Village of Tinley Park also supplies Lake Michigan water to the
Villages of New Lenox and Mokena. Similar to the IAW agreement, the Village receives a handling fee
toward the maintenance and operation of the water system calculated on the gallons supplied to New
Lenox and Mokena. The contract runs for a term of forty years (2039). Additionally, New Lenox and
Mokena are responsible for a portion of the Village's commitment to Oak Lawn for debt service and the
net amount paid by the Village is reflected in the table on the preceding page.

Sanitary Sewer Services
The portion of the Village of Tinley Park located within Cook County receives sanitary sewer treatment

and disposal services through the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District (MWRD). The District charges
for these services through a property tax against all property within its District.
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In 1978, the Village of Tinley Park entered into a service agreement with the MWRD to provide sanitary
sewer treatment and disposal services to a portion of Will County that was within the corporate limits, or
planning area, of the Village. The fee for these services is calculated on a basis similar to the property
tax the MWRD receives within its District boundaries assessed on all properties within the service area
that are incorporated into the Village, but includes a premium factor for service outside their normal
service area. These annual service fees are then charged to the individual properties as part of their
quarterly utility billings. During the year ended April 30, 2012, the Village paid $634,030 under this
agreement.

A portion of the Village of Tinley Park located in Will County receives sanitary sewer treatment and
disposal services under a 1994 bulk wastewater treatment service agreement with Illinois American Water
(formerly known as Citizen’s Utilities). The fee for these services are based on the tariff schedule
currently in effect as approved from time to time by the lllinois Commerce Commission. This agreement
runs for a term of forty years, with a provision for a ten-year extension. The Village's utility customers
within this service area are charged for these services as part of the quarterly utility billings. During the
year ended April 30, 2012, the Village paid $416,217 under this agreement.

Under a 1996 wastewater treatment service agreement, the Village of Frankfort (Frankfort) provides
sanitary sewer treatment and disposal services to a portion of the Village of Tinley Park located within Will
County. This agreement runs for a period of twenty years (2016), with provision for extension. Frankfort
receives a fee, based on water consumption, which is included as part of the utility bills to these property
owners. During the year ended April 30, 2012, the Village paid $227,880 under this agreement

Note 13. Commitments

The Village has agreements associated with the development of the Park Center Plaza to provide
economic assistance in the development of the shopping center. Under the 1988 amended agreement,
municipal sales taxes collected by the Village from this shopping plaza up to a maximum of the
incremental $150,000 in excess of $425,000 annually are to be set aside for remittance to the
bondholder(s) of limited sales tax bonds issued in conjunction with the agreement. The incremental taxes
generated are referred to as "Recapture Differential” under the agreement. The Unused Recapture
Differential is held until sufficient funds are accumulated to retire the next series of interest coupons.

After all the outstanding interest coupons have been retired, Recapture Differential is then applied to
retire outstanding bonds in serial order. The total amount to be provided under this agreement is not to
exceed $1,500,000 and the actual total commitment of $1,426,719 is less than the established maximum.
Unpaid bonds and interest coupons outstanding under the limited sales tax bond issue total $1,337,800
as of April 30, 2012. Through the year ended April 30, 2012, the annual sales taxes collected from the
development have exceeded the $425,000 minimum threshold in a total of four incentive based fiscal
years, and have generated a total of $89,416 in “Recapture Differential.” Of this amount, $88,919 has
been provided to the bond registrar for benefit of the bondholder(s) and retirement of the outstanding debt
service. The remaining unused Recapture Differential in the amount of $497 is held as of April 30, 2012.

The Village has an agreement with the developers of a commercial development known as 1-80 World to
provide possible future economic assistance in the development of this commercial complex. Under this
1997 agreement, which ran through April 2003, the Village agreed to remit to the developers a portion of
the municipal sales taxes collected by the Village from the businesses located within the development in
excess of a base amount each year. The initial base amount was $120,000 and increased by 8% each
year thereafter. The total contingent amount to be provided under this agreement was not to exceed
$1,600,000. The total economic assistance earned under this agreement through April 30, 2003 was
$1,600,000. As of April 30, 2012, $263,450 has been held and accrued pending completion by the
developer of certain public improvements as required under the agreement.
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Under the 1998 development agreement for the construction of a full service hotel adjacent to the
Village's Convention Center, the Village of Tinley Park agreed to pay an annual amount toward the costs
of maintenance and repair of the Convention Center to the hotel operator, who also manages and
operates the Convention Center facility on behalf of the Village. In December 2008, the hotel operator
and the Village entered into new development and management agreements due to the expansion of the
convention center and anticipated expansion of the hotel. Under the new management agreement, the
hotel operator receives the Facility Maintenance Cost Sharing payment in two equal installments each
year of $510,000 the first year and $675,000 each subsequent year of the 10 year agreement.
Additionally, the Village will support capital improvement expenditures benefiting the convention center
facility of $500,000 in the first year and $185,000 each subsequent year of the agreement. The Village
has agreed to a payment to hotel developer/operator of up to $3,700,000 as a TIF qualified
reimbursement for interest costs write-down in the final year of the TIF per the agreement contingent
upon the completion of the contemplated hotel expansion and the availability of TIF funds. As of April 30,
2012, the Village has paid a total of $2,197,500 to the hotel developer/operator under the new agreement.

The Village of Tinley Park entered into an intergovernmental agreement with Community Consolidated
School District 146 for the purchase of the former Central Middle School site located one block east of
Oak Park Avenue. The approximately three acre retired school site is located in the Main Street South
TIF District. Under the terms of this 2003 agreement, the Village paid $350,000 at closing, with an
additional $1,000,000 due within the five years after the transfer of title (December 2008). Additionally,
the School District would be entitled to 30% of any incremental taxes generated by the property from
December 2008 through the life of the TIF to a maximum of $1,650,000 ($3,000,000 overall total). The
Village intends to utilize the property for temporary parking and staging area for construction projects
contemplated in the Main Street South TIF District, and then sell the property for redevelopment, most
likely for town homes or similar density residential development. As such, the property remains tax
exempt and has not generated any incremental taxes. As of April 30, 2012, the Village has paid a total of
$1,350,000 under the agreement.

An intergovernmental agreement was established between the Village of Tinley Park and Community
Consolidated School District 146 associated with the Main Street North TIF District. Under this 2003
agreement and subject to some restrictions and priorities, 17% of the incremental taxes generated over
the life of the TIF or a maximum of $2,500,000 are to be set aside for possible future capital
improvements made by the School District within the Main Street North TIF District. A total of $627,325
has been accumulated in the aforementioned Cap Fund through April 30, 2012.

The Village has an agreement with the owner/developer of the Hilton Garden subdivision to provide
possible future economic assistance in the redevelopment of the property. Under this 2003 agreement,
the Village paid for the installation of certain public improvements on behalf of the developer. The
developer agreed to provide certain other site improvements and enhancements beyond normal Village
standards in an estimated amount not to exceed $450,000. The agreement, which runs for a ten year
period beginning with the completion of the first hotel (Hilton Garden Inn) on the property, the Village will
first recover its cost of the public improvements, plus interest at 3.46%, from hotel/motel taxes generated
from the development. Provided that the development has been fully completed, including the identified
enhancements, the Village would thereafter remit to the owner/developer a portion of the municipai
hotel/motel accommodations taxes generated up to a maximum of $450,000. The agreement provides
that the Village is not obligated to provide any financial assistance to the developer should the
development conditions not be met by September 30, 2005. The agreement was subsequently amended
to extend the developer’'s completion date to September 30, 2006. The agreement also provides that the
Village can provide a lesser pro-rated assistance amount at its discretion based on the amount expended
on identified enhancements that have been completed. The public improvements paid by the Village
totaled $640,796. Through the end of the April 30, 2012 fiscal year a total of $732,708 has been
recouped from the hotel/motel accommodations taxes generated from businesses located on the property
and represents the full recovery of the public improvements and related interest. As of April 30, 2012, this
commercial development had not completed all required site improvements, and the completion date has
passed, therefore, no other direct financial assistance payments are currently due.
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The Village has entered into an agreement with Menard, Inc. to provide economic assistance to
redevelop portions of what was formerly known as the Brementowne Mall in order to expand their Tinley
Park store location. Under the original 2004 agreement, the total economic assistance provided was
$21,050. This agreement was terminated in April 2011 as a new agreement was adopted in relation to a
proposed further expansion of their business location. Under the 2011 agreement with Menard, Inc., the
Village will provide economic assistance to the company to redevelop the former Gateley’s Department
Store building, most recently occupied by Midwest Suburban Publishing and the SouthtownStar
Newspaper corporate offices for a further expanded Menard’s retail center. Under this agreement, the
Village will remit 50% of the sales taxes generated by the local Menard’s business location in excess of
$288,000 annually commencing once the new expansion is completed and continuing for a total of ten
years. The maximum incentive to be provided under this revised agreement is $1,000,000. As of

April 30, 2012, the expansion/renovations had not commenced, and therefore, no financial assistance
payments are currently due.

The Village entered into a development agreement with Ryan Companies US, Inc. as owner/developer to
provide possible future economic assistance in association with the development of a commercial
shopping center known as Brookside Marketplace. Under this 2004 agreement, which runs for a ten year
period beginning with the opening of the key anchor store, the Village will provide a maximum of
$5,000,000 in financial assistance through sharing of sales tax revenues generated by the development.
In addition, the Village reimbursed the developer a total of $2,517,267 for certain development costs in
addition to certain infrastructure related costs paid for directly by the Village. The Village will remit a
portion of the sales taxes generated in excess of an annual amount of $75,000 in semi-annual payments
until either the maximum amount is achieved or the term expires (whichever occurs first). As of April 30,
2012, the total economic assistance provided through sales tax sharing under this agreement is
$3,683,707. Incentive dollars earned through April 30, 2012 have been accrued in the amount of
$393,000, but is not due and payable until after the conclusion of the semi-annual reporting periods of the
incentive year.

In February 2011, the Village entered into an inducement agreement with Ryan Companies US, Inc. to
provide possible future economic assistance in association with addition of new retail facilities in the
commercial shopping center known as Brookside Marketplace. Due to the recession, and changing
economic climate, the developer requested additional assistance to entice new retailers to construct or
occupy new stores in the Brookside Marketplace shopping center The agreement was predicated on
adding, at a minimum, HomeGoods and Old Navy stores to the shopping center. This agreement runs for
a ten year period beginning with the opening of the first store to occupy retail spaces constructed after
December 31, 2010. The Village will provide a maximum of $1,250,000 in financial assistance under this
agreement through sharing of sales tax revenues generated by the new store development. The Village
will provide the developer 54% of the sales taxes generated from the new retail spaces constructed post-
2010 in semi-annual payments until either the maximum amount is achieved or the term expires
(whichever occurs first). The developer (Ryan Companies US, Inc ) entered into an agreement with DDR
Brookside, LLC on January 16, 2012 in relation to the sale of the Brookside Marketplace properties. As
part of this agreement, Ryan Companies US, Inc. and DDR Brookside, LLC will each share a portion of
this incentive. The inducement agreement was amended on March 6, 2012 to provide for this change.

As of April 30, 2012, no payments had been made under the agreement. Incentive dollars earned
through April 30, 2012 have been accrued in the amount of $43,750, but is not due and payable until after
the conclusion of the semi-annual reporting periods of the incentive year.

The Village entered into an agreement with Sord Management, Inc. as owner/developer, to provide
possible future economic assistance in the development of a commercial shopping center known as Park
Hills. Under this 2004 agreement, which ran for a twenty year period beginning with the Village's
issuance of the first Certificate of Occupancy (June 2006), the Village would provide the developer 25%
of the sales taxes generated from businesses located on the site. All of the developer and development
commitments under the agreement have not been completed, and as such, no payments were yet
required. The shopping center was sold in August 2011 which terminated the developer’s right to receive
a share of sales taxes from the development.

60



Village of Tinley Park, lilinois
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 13. Commitments (Continued)

The Village has entered into an intergovernmental agreement with the Village of Orland Hills providing for
possible sales tax revenue sharing in association with development of a commercial shopping center
known as Park Hills. The site of this development was in the planning area for the Village of Tinley Park,
but had been annexed by Orland Hills. However, it was subsequently determined that the Village of
Orland Hills was unable to adequately provide certain public services necessary for the site to develop.
The property was subsequently de-annexed by Orland Hills and annexed to Tinley Park. The primary
storm water detention for this development is being provided by a nearby site within the corporate limits of
the Village of Orland Hills. In the spirit of inter-governmental cooperation, it was agreed that the two
communities would share in the sales tax revenues generated by the shopping center development.
Tinley Park was required to pay for the modification of a storm water detention pond located in Orland
Hills that would be utilized by this commercial development. Under this 2005 agreement, beginning with
the Village’s issuance of the first Certificate of Occupancy for the Park Hills Shopping Plaza, the Village of
Tinley Park will provide the Village of Orland Hills with 65% of the municipal sales taxes received from
businesses located on the site for the next twenty years. After the initial twenty year period, the Village of
Orland Hills will receive 55% of the municipal sales taxes received from the development. However,
Tinley Park would be allowed to retain a portion of the Orland Hills share of the sales taxes in repayment
of the costs associated with modification of the storm water facilities in Orland Hills. As of April 30, 2012,
approximately $213,800 in sales tax sharing has been determined. The Village of Tinley Park expended
$1,760,227 on the storm water detention facility ~As the costs of the detention pond modifications were
substantially greater than anticipated, by mutual agreement of the two municipalities, no payments have
been made.

The Village has entered into an agreement with Hanfer, Inc. (doing business as Hansen Development) to
provide possible future economic assistance in the redevelopment and construction of a mixed-use
commercial and residential project located on 183™ Street commonly referred to as Tinley Pointe. Under
this 2005 agreement, the Village will provide a maximum of $423,000 in financial assistance in the form of
reimbursement of eligible redevelopment costs including demolition, utilities, and roadwork The total of
qualified costs was determined to be $318,587. The incentive is payable over a maximum five year
period from tax increment financing (TIF) revenue generated by the redevelopment which is located in the
Oak Park Avenue TIF District. A total of $318,587 in TIF reimbursements have been paid as of April 30,
2012 and the agreement is concluded.

An agreement with JP Gallagher Building Corp was approved during 2005 to provide economic
assistance in redeveloping the former Lion's Pool site for eight (8) upscale single family wooded homes.
The redevelopment site, known as Forest Glen, is located within the Main Street North TIF District. Under
this agreement, the Village constructed a bridge over Midlothian Creek to allow Willow Lane (on the east)
to be improved and interconnected with Gaynelle Road (on the west) and providing a means of public
access through the development. This bridge was estimated to cost $250,000, with the developer
providing $90,000 toward the project as building permits were issued. This financial assistance was
provided from sources other than tax incremental financing (TIF) revenues generated by the project. The
Village has completed its commitment under the agreement and has expended $545,666 on the bridge
and roadway project. A total of one building permit has been issued for this development to date. No
other financial assistance has been provided.

An agreement with Family Hyundai and Suzuki, Inc. was approved during 2005 to provide possible future
economic assistance in development and construction of a new Hyundai automobile dealership location,
and the renovation and expansion of the existing Hyundai building for the Suzuki automobile dealership.
Under this 2005 agreement which was to run for a ten year period, the Village would provide a maximum
of $1,250,000 in financial assistance from sales taxes generated by the two automobile dealership
locations. This agreement was modified in April 2009 to provide for sharing of the economic assistance
with Community Motors, Inc. who would purchase and renovate the former Hyundai location (Suzuki
dealership under the original agreement) for a Pontiac and GMC dealership (the Pontiac brand was
subsequently retired by General Motors). The Village remits a portion of the sales taxes generated in
excess of a base amount over the life of the agreement, until either the maximum amount is achieved or
the term expires. The initial base amount was $437,000, and the base amount increases annually to a
maximum of $547,328 over the life of the agreement. During fiscal year 2009, the Village Board
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approved an extension of the term of the incentive agreement to a maximum of twelve years at the
request of the business owners/deveiopers. As of April 30, 2012 a total of $67,845 has been paid under
this agreement. Incentive dollars earned through April 30, 2012 have been accrued in the amount of
$84,347. In June 2012, Community Motors, Inc. sold its GMC dealership and the franchise was relocated
to another Tinley Park location. These transactions have put the inducement agreement in default.
Potential liquidating damages would be due to the Village in the form of return of a portion of the
previously paid incentives if the default is not cured.

A development agreement was approved between the Village of Tinley Park and Tinley Park Place LLC
to provide possible future economic assistance in the redevelopment and construction of a mixed-use
commercial and residential project encompassing Block 4 of the Village of Bremen (now Tinley Park), at
Oak Park Avenue and North Street commonly known as Tinley Park Place. The proposed redevelopment
project consisted of development of approximately 60,000 square feet of retail commercial and office
space, an 11 screen movie theater, and 115 residential condominiums. This 2008 agreement provided
for a maximum of $12,000,000 in financial assistance for demolition, professional services, and
construction payable from tax incremental financing (TIF) revenues generated by the project. This
incremental tax assistance is subject to priorities for statutorily required payments to school or other
districts and Village administrative expenses. Additionally, the developers are eligible to receive a
maximum of $1,300,000 in amusement taxes generated by the development over no more than a ten
year period after the cinema opens. The Village is committed to constructing, or reimbursing for
approximately $25,000,000 in public improvements including roadway, water, sanitary sewer, and storm
sewer improvements and construction of public parking. The redevelopment site is located within the
Main Street South TIF District. The developer has not met the conditions necessary to be eligible for any
payments under this agreement as of April 30, 2012. Likewise, the Village is not obligated to commence
any of the related public improvements at this time. This notwithstanding, the Village has proceeded with
the acquisitions and clearing of real estate associated with this development totaling $837,158. In
addition, the Village has authorized the engineering and design for the parking facilities (including
temporary parking) and has incurred $1,853,735 in retated expenses as of April 30, 2012.

Since approving the plans for the Tinley Park Place development and establishing the original
development agreement, certain properties had been vacated and were becoming a public nuisance and
blight on the community. To address this issue, in February 2011, the Village entered into an agreement
with Tinley Park Place, LLC providing for the reimbursement of demolition costs for certain identified
structures on North Street. This reimbursement would be treated as an advance on the qualified cost
reimbursements and deducted from the total financial assistance provided for in the 2008 development
agreement. The total of $122, 925 was incurred and paid as of April 30, 2012 and the related lien has
been filed against the affected properties.

The Village of Tinley Park entered into a preliminary development agreement with South Street
Development, LLC related to the construction of a mixed use development encompassing the majority of
Block 9 of the Village of Bremen (now Tinley Park) which fronts South Street across from the Tinley Park
Qak Park Avenue commuter station. This development is currently proposed to consist of retail
commercial space combined with residential apartments. Under the 2007 preliminary agreement, the
Village will provide a maximum of $2,200,000 in reimbursement of TIF eligible expenses. Although the
developer has not received any direct reimbursement payments, the developer has received benefit of
$637,430 in expenses paid by the Village for real estate acquisition, demolition, and other site related
costs under this agreement as of April 30, 2012. These costs will count toward the maximum financial
assistance to be provided.

In conjunction with the development of a new corporate world headquarters, the Village of Tinley Park
and Panduit Corporation entered into an agreement providing for certain financial assistance in May
2008. Under this agreement, the Village will rebate a portion of the Village's property taxes extended
against the property in excess of $26,000 each year for a maximum of $2,200,000 over twenty years.
The company moved into the new building in mid-2010. The initial incentive year begins the year that
the completed project is fully assessed for property tax purposes. As of April 30, 2012, a total of $61,469
has been paid under this agreement. Based on the 2011 property taxes (payable in calendar 2012), the
Company will be potentially eligible for a rebate of $69,447 The rebate is contingent on the Company
paying the total amounts due on the annual property tax bill, which has not occurred as of April 30, 2012.
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Related to the development of the Panduit Corporation world headquarters complex, the Village entered
into a sales tax sharing agreement with related Panduit Procurement LLC in April 2008 which provides for
the sharing of 50% of all sales taxes generated by the business for a ten year period with no maximum
limitation. As of April 30, 2012, a total of $212,419 had been paid under this agreement and an estimated
$8,943 has been accrued based on expected sales tax reporting through the end of the fiscal year.

An agreement between Temperature Equipment Corporation (TEC), the Village of Lansing, and the
Village of Tinley Park was approved in April 2010 to provide economic assistance to TEC in relocating its
sales office to a location in Tinley Park from Lansing, IL. Under lllinois statutes, this agreement was
required to provide compensation to Lansing for the loss of sales tax revenues due to the economic
incentive being offered in association with this type of sales relocation. This agreement, covering a ten
year period, provides for the sharing of sales taxes generated by the business in excess of $20,000
annually. The next $600,000 in sales taxes generated would be shared 50% to TEC and 25% to Lansing.
Sales taxes in excess of $620,000 are shared 25% to TEC, and 25% to Lansing with no maximum limit.
As of April 30, 2012, a total of $821,896 has been paid under the agreement and an estimated $188,856
has been accrued based on expected sales tax reporting through the end of the fiscal year.

The Village entered into an agreement with International Imports, LLC in April 2010 to provide economic
assistance in conjunction with the remodeling of facilities to accommodate a Subaru dealership. Under
this agreement, which runs for a ten year period, the Village will provide a maximum of $395,000 in
financial assistance through sales taxes generated by the new automobile dealership. As of April 30,
2012 a total of $27,833 has been paid under the agreement. Incentive dollars earned through April 30,
2012 have been accrued in the amount of $29,325, but is not due and payable until after the conclusion
of the incentive year.

In May 2010, the Village entered into an agreement with International Imports, LLC to provide economic
assistance associated with the purchase of a vacant dealership location, related renovations, and
relocation of a Mazda dealership. Under this ten year agreement, the Village would provide a maximum
of $805,000 in financial assistance through sales taxes generated by the new automobile dealership. In
March 2011, the agreement was amended to replace the Mazda dealership franchise with a MINI
dealership. As of April 30, 2012, no payments have been made under the agreement. Incentive dollars
projected to be earned through April 30, 2012 have been accrued in the amount of $26,000, but is not
due and payable until after the conclusion of the incentive year.

The Village entered into an agreement with Steiner Electric Co in February 2011 to provide economic
assistance associated with the renovation of a vacant industrial building for a manufacturing and
distribution division of the company. The agreement encompasses a ten year period beginning with
September 2011 and provides for sales tax sharing in an amount not to exceed $212,000 over the life of
the agreement. The company will receive 25% of the sales taxes generated on an annual basis in excess
of $5,000. As of April 30, 2012, no payments have been made under the agreement. Incentive dollars
projected to be earned through April 30, 2012 have been accrued in the amount of $14,250, but is not
due and payable until after the conclusion of the incentive year.

Apple Chevrolet, Inc. and the Village of Tinley Park entered into an agreement in June 2011 to provide
economic assistance associated with the renovation, remodeling, and other upgrades to their sales
facilities in Tinley Park The agreement encompasses a ten year period beginning no later than July 2012
and provides for sales tax sharing in an amount not to exceed $350,000 over the life of the agreement.
The company will receive 33% of any sales taxes generated on an annual basis in excess of $355,000.
As of April 30, 2012, the improvements had not been completed and therefore no payments have been
made under the agreement

In June 2011, the Village approved an assignment of a 2009 incentive with 183™ & Tinley, LLC to DK
Tinley Park, LLC in relation to the development of certain properties in the Oak Park Avenue Tax
Increment Financing District. Under this agreement, the Village would reimburse up to $1,000,000 in
qualified TIF reimbursable expenses for the substantial completion of at least two commercial structures.
$500,000 would be payable upon completion of the first building, with the balance paid after completion of
a second building. The TIF incentive is reduced by 33.33% per month for any project not substantially
completed by July 2, 2013. As of April 30, 2012 no new buildings have been proposed or approved for
construction, and therefore no payments are due.
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The Village of Tinley Park entered into an agreement with Kowalis Motors, Inc. in February 2012 to
provide economic assistance associated with the renovation, remodeling, and other upgrades to their
Orland Toyota sales facilities in Tinley Park. The agreement encompasses a ten year period beginning
no later than September 2012 and provides for sales tax sharing in an amount not to exceed $1,000,000
over the life of the agreement. The company will receive 33% of any sales taxes generated on an annual
basis in excess of $360,000. As of April 30, 2012, the improvements had not been completed and
therefore no payments have been made under the agreement.

The Village has several construction contracts for various Village improvements totaling $7,213,697 at
April 30, 2012.

Note 14. Pronouncements Issued But Not Yet Adopted

GASB Statement No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans,
will be effective for the Village with its year ended April 30, 2013. This statement addresses issues
related to the use of the alternative measurement method and the frequency and timing of measurements
by employers that participate in agent multiple-employer other postemployment benefit plan.

GASB Statement No. 80, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements, will
be effective for the Village beginning with its year ending April 30, 2013. The objective of this Statement is
to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to service concession arrangements (SCAs),
which are a type of public-private or public-public partnership. This Statement establishes recognition,
measurement, and disclosure requirements for SCAs for both transferors and governmental operators.

GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus—an amendment of GASB Statements
No. 14 and No. 34, will be effective for the Village beginning with its year ending April 30, 2014. The
objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity.
The requirements of Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and the related financial reporting
requirements of Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis—for State and Local Governments, were amended to better meet user needs and to address
reporting entity issues that have arisen since the issuance of those Statements.

GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, will be effective for the Village beginning with its
year ending April 30, 2013. The objective of this Statement is to incorporate into the GASB'’s authoritative
literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in the following
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements:

1. Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations
2. Accounting Principles Board Opinions

3. Accounting Research Bulletins of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ (AICPA)
Committee on Accounting Procedure

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position, will be effective for the Village with its year ended April 30, 2013. The
objective of this statement is to improve financial reporting by standardizing the presentation of deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources and their effects on a government’s net position.
It alleviates uncertainty about reporting those financial statement elements by providing guidance when
none previously existed.

GASB Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination
Provisions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 53, will be effective for the Village with its year
ended April 20, 2013. The objective of this statement is to enhance the comparability and improve
financial reporting by clarifying the circumstances in which hedge accounting should continue when a
swap counterparty, or a swap counterparty’s credit support provider, is replaced.
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GASB Statement No. 65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, will be effective for the
Village beginning with its year ending April 30, 2014. This Statement establishes accounting and financial
reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources,
certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of
resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities.

GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections—2012—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and
No. 62, will be effective for the Village beginning with its year ending April 30, 2014. The objective of this
Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity by
resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two pronouncements, Statements No.

54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements.

GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, will be effective for the Village beginning
with its year ended April 30, 2015. This statement builds upon the existing framework for financial reports
of defined benefit pension plans, which includes a statement of fiduciary net position (the amount held in
a trust for paying retirement benefits) and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. This
statement enhances note disclosures and RSI for both defined benefit and defined contribution pension
plans and requires the presentation of new information about annual money-weighted rates of return in
the notes to the financial statements and in 10-year RSI schedules.

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, will be effective for the Village
beginning with its year ended April 30, 2016. This statement requires governments providing defined
benefit pensions to recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability for the first time,
and to more comprehensively and comparably measure the annual costs of pension benefits. This
statement also enhances accountability and transparency through revised and new note disclosures and
required supplementary information (RSI).

Management has not yet completed its evaluation of the impact, if any, of the provisions of these
statements on its financial statements.

Note 15. Restatement

For the year ended April 30, 2012, the Village implemented GASB 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions.

As a result of implementing GASB 54, certain funds which were previously reported as special revenue
funds no longer meet the criteria for reporting as such and are now reported as part of the General Fund
These funds were Storm Water Management, Hotel/Motel Tax, Main Street Development, Local Road
Improvements, Train Station Operation and Maintenance, and Fire Alarm. The impact of implementing
this new standard is detailed as follows:

Fund Balances/

Net Assets

General Fund:
April 30, 2011, as previously reported $ 9,049,595
Adjustment for GASB 54 3,055,542
April 30, 2012, as restated $ 12,105,137
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation of Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
12/31/11 $ 18,420,498 $ 30,024,066 $ 11,603,558 61.35 % $ 11,294,717 102.73 9
1213110 16,896,654 28,116,663 11,220,009 60.09 10,904,953 102.89
12/31/09 15,476,915 27,121,699 11,644,784 57.06 11,050,083 105.38

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2011 is $17,335,987. On a

market basis, the funded ratio would be 57.74%.
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Police Pension Fund
Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial

Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation of Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) [(b-a)/c]
4/30/11 $ 43,497,563 $ 60,478,664 $ 16,981,101 719 % $ 6,405,212 26511 %
4/30/10 38,532,632 56,117,025 17,584,393 68.7 6,522,884 269.58
4/30/09 32,559,551 52,118,070 19,558,519 62.5 6,242,342 313.32
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Schedule of Emp’oner Contributions
Police Pension Fund

Actuarial Annual

Valuation Required Percentage

Date Contribution Contributed

Fiscal Year
2012 $ 1,964,280 112.21 %
2011 1,964,280 80.68
2010 1,472,463 97.92
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Schedule of Funding Progress
Postemployment Healthcare Plan

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation of Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) [(b-a)/c]
4/30/11 - $ 15236208 $ 15,236,208 0.0 % $ 17,061,005 89.30 %
4/30/10 - 14,285,906 14,285,906 0.0 16,459,219 86.80
4/30/09 - 14,108,935 14,108,935 0.0 14,999,067 94.07
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Combining Balance Sheet -
General Fund, by Accounts
Year Ended April 30, 2012

Storm
General Water Hotel/Motel
Agency Management Tax
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,770,638 $ 1,768339 § 1,188,604
Receivables:
Property taxes 11,467,189 - 5
Accounts 470,062 95,034 89,764
Intergovernmental 5,279,605 - g
Total assets $ 29987494 $ 1,863,373 $ 1,278,368
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,218,206 $ 16,635 $ 14,255
Accrued payroll 79,561 - -
Deposits 5,197 - -
Due to other funds - B 29,921
Advance from other fund - 2,423,498 -
Deferred revenue 19,426,927 - -
Total liabilities 20,729,891 2,440,133 44,176
Fund Balances (deficits)
Unassigned 9,257,603 (576,760) -
Assigned - - 1,234,192
Total fund balances 9,257,603 (576,760) 1,234,192
Total liabilities and
fund balances $ 29987494 $ 1,863,373 § 1,278,368
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Main Local Train Station
Street Road Operation & Fire
Development Improvements Maintenance Alarm Total
$ 1,604,700 $ 1,499,023 § 873 § 574,523 19,406,700
- - - - 11,467,189
- 20,717 - 8,705 684,282
- - - - 5,279,605
3 1,604,700 3 1,619,740 § 873 % 583,228 36,837,776
$ 4700 § - $ 2,273 % 4,957 1,261,026
B - - 79,561
% < - 5,197
- - - B 29,921
u - = 2,423,498
- - - - 19,426,927
4,700 - 2,273 4,957 23,226,130
- = (1,400) . 8,679,443
1,600,000 1,519,740 - 578,271 4,932,203
1,600,000 1,519,740 (1,400) 578,271 13,611,646
$ 1,604700 1,519,740 $ 873 § 583,228 36,837.776
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Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits) —

General Fund, by Accounts
Year Ended April 30, 2012

General Agency

Storm Water Management

Hotel/Motel Tax

Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 19438000 $ 18428532 § - . 3 = $ -
Other taxes 12,695,000 12,603,788 - - 1,020,000 1,159,957
Interest 120,000 124,496 18,000 19,953 12,000 9,002
Fines, forfeitures and reimbursements 787,800 1,214,608 - - - 404
Licenses, permits and fees 1,765,000 1,929,435 = - - =
Charges for services 181,450 354,767 503,000 491,023 - -
Intergovernmental 4,913,600 5,337,424 - - - =
Miscellaneous 321,400 639,234 15,413 -
Total revenues 40,222,250 40,632,284 521,000 526,389 1,032,000 1,169,363
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 3,575,535 3,335,204 - 6,202 197,720 185,549
General overhead 2,801,694 1,982,874 - - - -
Police 17,186,183 15,840,062 - - - =
Fire 4,342,491 3,945,797 - - -
Emergency management agency (EMA) 811,645 796,676 -
Road and bridge 4,199,680 3,163,606 - - - -
Electrical 1,105,985 1,043,256 - - -
Municipal building and grounds 793,650 659,885 - - -
Community development 1,423,656 1,381,718 = = = .
Boards, commissions and committees 168,765 175,254 -
Senior bus service 99,420 79,569 -
Village bus services 59,185 40,333 - - E -
Economic incentives 2,398,000 1,528,621
Debt service:
Interest and fees - 57,262
Bond issuance costs - - 20,611 - -
Capital outlay - - 412,278 342,454 - -
Total expenditures 38,965,889 33,972,855 412,278 426,529 197,720 185,549
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 1,256,361 6,659,429 108,722 99,860 834,280 983,814
Other financing sources (uses):
Bond isuance - - 1,570,500 -
Premium on bond issuance - - - 60,443 -
Transfers in 709,770 388,199 250,000 222,670 - -
Transfers (out) (1,863,860) (6,839,620) (316,958) (542,836) (845,924) (774,851)
Payment to escrow agent - - (2,259,980) (1,552,500) - -
Total other financing sources (uses) (1,154,090) (6,451,421) (2,326,938) (241,723) (845,924) (774,851)
Changes in fund balances $ 102,271 208,008 _§ (2.218.216) (141,863) _§ {11.644) 208,963
Fund balances (deficits):
May 1, 2011, as restated 9,049,595 (434,897) 1,025,229
April 30, 2012 $ 9,257,603 $ (576,760) $ 1,234,192
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73

Main Sireet Development Local Road Improvement Train Station O8M Fire Alarm Interfund Reclassifications Total

Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual
$ $ & $ $ - % $ $ 19,438,000 § 18,428,532
- - - - - - - - - 13,715,000 13,763,745
16,000 12,126 - 6,065 - 1,200 3,068 - 167,200 174,710
- - 20,717 - . = > = = 787,800 1,235,729
- - 295,000 432,728 - - - - 2,060,000 2,362,163
- - - - 357,150 366,299 = - 1,041,600 1,212,089
- - — - - - - - - 4,913,600 5,337,424
48,500 56,297 11,000 10,700 - 982 - - 380,800 722,626
64,500 68,423 295,000 459,510 11,000 10,700 358,350 370,349 - - 42,504,100 43,237,018
155,980 155,418 - - 73,380 37,514 269,621 99,708 - - 4,272,236 3,819,595
- - - - - - - 2,801,694 1,982,874
- - - - - - - 17,186,183 15,840,062
- - - - - - - - 4,342,491 3,945,797
. - = = - 811,645 796,676
- - - - - - - 4,199,680 3,163,606
- - - - 1,105,985 1,043,256
- - - - - - - 793,650 659,885
- - - - 1,423,656 1,381,718
z - - 168,765 175,254
- - - - - 99,420 79,569
- - - 59,185 40,333
- - - - - - - 2,398,000 1,528,621
- - - - - - 57,262
- = = - . - - 20,611
19,800 12,797 - - 432,078 355,251
155,980 155,418 73,380 37,514 289,421 112,505 - - 40,094,668 34,890,370
(91,480) (86,995) 295,000 459,510 (62,380) (26,814) 68,929 257,844 - 2,409,432 8,346,648
- - - - 1,670,500
- - - - - - - - 60,443
91,480 98,827 - 504,029 62,380 25,000 (659,784)  (1,016,055) 453,846 222,670
- {500,000) - - 659,784 1,016,055 (2,866,958) (7,141,252)
- - - - - - (2,259,980) {1,552,500)
91,480 98,827 (500,000) 504,029 62,380 25,000 - (4,673,092) (6,840,139)
1,588,168 556,201 414 320,427 = 12,105,137
$ 1,600,000 $ 1.519,740 $  (1,400) 578,271 - $ 13,611,646



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Schedule of General Agency Revenues - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2012

Original and Final

Budget Actual
Property taxes $ 19,438,000 $ 18,428,532
Other taxes:
Municipal occupation taxes 12,320,000 12,218,590
Amusement 375,000 385,198
Total other taxes 12,695,000 12,603,788
Interest 120,000 124,496
Fines, forfeitures and reimbursements:
Pace 30,000 26,505
State 35,400 112,487
Police grant 40,000 80,628
Custom seizures 10,000 5,607
Other reimbursements 138,800 198,665
Fines and penalties 483,600 581,170
Insurance 50,000 209,546
Total fines, forfeitures and reimbursements 787,800 1,214,608
Licenses, permits and fees:
Liquor 125,000 127,342
Vehicles 470,000 325,000
Business 120,000 137,320
Cable franchise 760,000 893,435
Building permits 225,000 359,352
Contractor 45,000 64,615
Pet 2,000 2,271
Crime free rental license 18,000 20,100
Total licenses, permits and fees 1,765,000 1,929,435

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Budget Actual
Charges for services:
Police security $ 110,000 $ 161,549
Rebillables 50,000 131,775
Fire protection - 35,437
Senior bus 6,450 6,746
Elevator inspection fees 15,000 19,260
Total charges for services 181,450 354,767
Intergovernmental:
Personal property replacement taxes 73,600 71,871
State income taxes 3,100,000 3,342,675
lllinois income tax surcharge 1,360,000 1,472,472
Telecommunication tax 380,000 450,406
Total intergovernmental 4,913,600 5,337,424
Miscellaneous 321,400 639,234
Total revenues $ 40222250 $ 40,632,284

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Budget Actual
General government:
Mayor and trustees:
Personal services:
Salaries $ 228,000 $ 228,067
Health and life 36,230 30,580
Social Security and IMRF 49,220 48,281
Contractual services and commodities:
Telephone communications 1,922 2,149
Travel 500 198
Meetings and conferences 5,500 1,910
Reception and meals 12,000 6,291
Dues and subscriptions 9,557 12,512
Office supplies 2,500 1,727
Repairs and maintenance - computer equipment 500 -
Total mayor and trustees 345,929 331,715
Village manager:
Personal services:
Salaries 662,500 679,194
Employee health and life 72,600 59 791
Social Security and IMRF 143,425 141,357
Contractual services and commodities:
Telephone communications 3,780 4,291
Meetings and conferences 1,600 2,517
Reception and meals 2,700 2,641
Dues and subscriptions 10,250 9,957
Gasoline 10,275 6,650
Travel 350 265
Office supplies 400 936
Repair motor vehicles 600 3,665
Other operating supplies 1,000 349
Total village manager 909,480 911,613
Finance:
Personal services:
Salaries 707,750 704,721
Employee health and life 116,100 92,664
Social Security and IMRF 149,620 146,302
Contractual services and commodities:
Telephone communications 4,260 4,261
Travel 1,000 375
Training 6,800 1,952
Employment costs 200 150
Meetings and conferences 5,000 2,223
Reception and meals 750 705
Dues and subscriptions 13,288 12,966
Reference 200 433
Office supplies 1,200 381
Other operating supplies 50 26
Total finance 1,006,218 967,159

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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General government: (continued)
Village clerk:
Personal services:
Salaries $ 323,250 301,503
Employee health and life 89,500 78,071
Social Security and IMRF 69,980 62,818
Contractual services and commodities:
Training 3,000 46
Meeting and conferences 2,500 250
Receptions and meals 2,500 1,966
Printing 2,000 1,107
Legal and classified advertising 1,000 585
Dues and subscriptions 11,304 7,165
Other contractual services 500 -
Codification 6,500 4,252
Postage 3,500 3,617
Uniforms 2,000 32
Telephone communications 300 295
Office supplies 3,250 3,250
Total village clerk 521,084 464,957
Economic Development:
Personal services:
Salaries 194,000 189,739
Employee health and life 19,000 12,393
Social Security and IMRF 42,200 40,643
Contractual services and commodities:
Travel 200 132
Meeting and conferences 2,500 2,438
Reception and meals 1,500 460
Employment costs - 275
Dues and subscriptions 16,005 15,798
Marketing 5,000 4,421
Programs 11,700 11,329
Telephone communications 1,070 1,044
Postage 250 538
Office supplies 400 244
Gasoline 1,875 1,253
Repair motor vehicles 200 264
Other contractual services 1,000 131
Total economic development 296,900 281,102

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Marketing/Communications:

Personal services:
Salaries 110,250 101,718
Employee health and life * 171
Social Security and IMRF 21,700 18,721

Contractual services and commodities:
Travel 1,800 1,430
Meeting and conferences 4,800 190
Reception and meals 1,000 1,571
Printing 25,000 6,400
Repairs and maintenance 5,000 4,593
Website 6,700 5,330
Employment costs - 2,495
Dues and subscriptions 3,914 3,158
Contract 14,000 15,040
Programs 165,900 99,134
Tourism grant 100,000 113,640
Telephone communications 1,860 1,232
Postage 3,000 2,674
Municipal TV station 5,500 -
Flags and banners 23,000 330
Office supplies 2,500 831

Total marketing/communications 495 924 378,658
Total general government $ 3.575,635 3,335,204
General overhead:

Personal services:
Employee health and life 3 12,350 12,295

Contractual services and commaodities:
Telephone communications 33,580 25,879
Wireless fire alarm 810 660
Printing 18,000 16,207
Liability insurance 1,000,000 695,702
Unemployment compensation 5,000 14,751
Insurance deductible 20,000 (1,629)
Maintenance operations 9,500 9,398
Dues and subscriptions 44 004 36,959
Other contractual service 316,710 180,628
Auditing services 37,000 34,305
Legal services 562,000 557,972

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Budget Actual
General overhead (continued):

lllinois state police fingerprint fee 300 3,181
Administrative fees 7,500 33,623
Postage 13,860 16,090
Office supplies 10,000 11,757
Items for resale 59,680 45,972
Confectionery supplies 4,500 5278
Other operating supplies 800 1,427
Repair motor vehicles 700 746
Exchange 70,680 78,502
Engineering rebillable 125,000 31,530
Appraisal services 5,000 2,000
Refunds - 3,222
Property taxes 3,000 12,308
Miscellaneous 291,200 56,419
Fuel supplied to others 150,520 97,692

Total general overhead $ 2801694 $ 1,982,874

Police:
Personal services:
Salaries $ 10,716,925 $ 10,178,856
Employee recognitions 7,000 1,923
Employee health and life 2,524,450 1,957,316
Social Security and IMRF 613,095 542,633
Contractual services and commodities:

Telephone communications 87,416 84,402
Travel 500 385
Training 37,967 52,708
Meetings and conferences 6,466 2,084
Reception and meals 2,050 923
Prisoner care 4,490 3,722
Employment costs 7,200 724
Tuition reimbursement 5,000 -
Animal care 11,875 12,386
Printing 16,800 11,337
Legal and classified advertising 5,200 1,207
Photography 1,400 1,035
Microfilming 4,500 3,066
Repair to machinery and equipment 42,445 21,308
Repair motor vehicles 80,740 85,398
Insurance deductible 40,000 83,219
Radio maintenance 22,080 5,901
Radio changeover 2,500 720
Machine rental 7,200 2,400
Towel and laundry service 1,000 735
Dues and subscriptions 113,828 109,819
Service contract by agreement 87,942 48,373

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Police co
Wireless fire alarm $ 810 % 813
Towing service 2,025 1,922
Medical services 3,050 360
Vehicle licenses 2,500 2,468
Postage 13,000 9,085
Office supplies 26,450 22,525
Confectionery supplies 1,500 1,432
Expendable tools 500 183
Gasoline 337,500 253,863
Oil 4,500 4,459
Miscellaneous fuels 600 356
Chemical supplies 11,550 6,807
Tires and tubes 18,500 14,126
Electric supplies 1,650 893
Books/manuals/brochures 27,950 31,975
Police operating supplies 26,965 26,343
Uniforms 11,791 22,549
Ammunition and targets 19,630 19,022
Signs and sign material 500 185
Grant expenditures 4,365 440
Training 5,878 3,485
Travel expenses 5,000
Pension contribution 2,210,000 2,204,191
Total police $ 17,186,183 $§ 15,840,062
Fire:
Fire suppression;
Personal services:
Salaries 3 2,612,750 $ 2,363,437
Employee health and life 3,292
Deferred compensation contribution 135,705 112,766
Social Security and IMRF 209,755 188,345
Employee recognition 1,000
Disability insurance 5,110 5,292
Insurance deductible 10,000 3,663
Contractual services and commodities
Telephone communications 89,681 85,465
Liability insurance 3,500 3,491
Training 30,650 29,135
Medical exams 2,200
Meetings and conferences 3,500 4,254
Employment costs 7,100 4,455
Reception and meals 2,000 2,426
Printing 3,075 1,606

See Note to Required Supplementary Information
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Fire (continued):
Fire suppression:
Contractual services and commodities (continued):

Microfilm/digital imaging $ 3,000 % 1,969
Repair machinery and equipment 25,000 25,876
Repair motor vehicles 65,000 84,539
Radio maintenance 5,000 2,341
Repairs tires/tubes 12,000 5,731
Repair/maintenance airpaks 24,660 24,882
Equipment rental 10,454 6,600
Towel and laundry services 500 551
Service contracts 1,014 1,022
Testing services 4,725 1,434
Dues and subscription 23,5682 16,882
Postage 917 912
Wireless fire alarm 3,240 3,254
Office supplies 7,500 5,607
Expendable tools 10,000 3,277
Gasoline 18,750 15,128
Diesel 39,500 39,004
Miscellaneous fuels 400 102
Chemical supplies 1,000 555
Hazardous material supplies 2,500 1,213
Janitorial supplies 5,000 5,626
Uniforms 40,000 41,807
Bunker gear 48,005 44 516
Hose 10,000 9,832
Other operating supplies 13,000 9,795

Total fire suppression 3,489,773 3,161,082

Fire prevention:
Personal services:

Salaries $ 550,650 $ 518,130
Employee health and life 120,000 99,920
Social Security and IMRF 115,100 106,715

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Budget Actual
Fire (continued):
Contractual services and commodities:

Accreditation expenses - 6,282
Travel 450 337
Training 7,505 5,660
Meetings and conferences 1,450 787
Reception and meals 2,500 1,856
Printing 4,000 4,199
Photography 4,200 3,411
Blueprinting and mapping 2,000 2,254
Repair motor vehicles 2,500 2,326
Repair office equipment 2,000 321
Radio maintenance 500 -
Other contractual services 2,530 2,528
Dues and subscription 12,838 10,825
Postage 2,200 2,229
Office supplies 1,500 899
Gasoline 7,500 7,087
Pamphlets 1,000 499
Fire safety/ed program supplies 6,296 6,249
Uniforms 3,150 1,141
Fire investigations equipment 1,500 667
Signs and sign material 100 20
Other operating supplies 1,250 393

Total fire prevention 852,719 784,715

Total fire

See Note to Required Supplementary Information,
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Schedule of General Agency Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2012

Original and Final

Budget Actual
Emergency management agency (EMA):
Personal services:
Salaries 3 105,200 $ 106,344
Employee health and life = 190
Social Security and IMRF 21,405 22,679
Contractual services and commodities:

Telephone communications 11,440 9,752
Travel 1,050 358
Medical exams / drug tests 500 -
Training 3,000 333
Meetings and conferences 3,000 1,589
Reception and meals 3,000 1,962
Printing 1,000 189
Repair machinery and equipment 3,680 2,709
Repair motor vehicles 7,400 6,442
Radio maintenance 3,000 1,764
Repair sirens 6,500 6,210
Computer maintenance 550 697
Dues and subscriptions 6,048 5714
Ambulance service 606,000 605,699
Marketing/recruitment 4.000 1,306
Emergency disaster plan 4,000 2,167
Postage 300 101
Office supplies 800 669
Gasoline 10,500 12,799
Uniforms 3,000 3,136
Grant expenditures 2,952 2,389
Service contracts 1,320 1,478
Pamphlets 2,000 -

Total emergency management agency (EMA) $ 811645 % 796,676

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Road and bridge:
Personal services:
Salaries
Employee health and life
Employee recognitions
Social Security and IMRF
Contractual services and commodities

Telephone communications
Training
Employment costs
Meetings and conferences
Reception and meals
Vehicle inspection
Printing
Photography
Blueprinting and mapping
Electricity
Water and sewer
Utility locating service
Maintenance lift station
Contract services - rebillables
Drainage maintenance
Repair machinery and equipment
Repair motor vehicles
Insurance deductible
Radio maintenance
Computer maintenance
Machine rental
Towels and laundry service
Dues and subscriptions
Drug testing
Service contract by agreement
Contract snow removal
Contract landscape maintenance
Other contractual services
Engineering services
Vehicle license
Soil testing
Refuse disposal
Duplicating
Advertising and legal notices
Postage
Office supplies
Confectionery supplies
First aid supplies
Expendable toois
Kerosene and LP gas
Gasoline
Oil
Diesel

See Note to Required Supplementary information

(continued)

Original and Final
Budaet

$ 1,866,550
441,200

397,080

7,900
3,000
500
700
1,000
2,150
1,000
400
200
3,000

1,750
5,000
4,000
25,000
62,000
60,000
50,000
1,000
500
6,000
1,000
21,250
1,000
2,000
40,000
254,000
38,500
125,000
500
6,000
50,000
700
750
2,500
2,000
1,300
500
5,000
200
54,600
4,000
91,050

84

Actual

1,555,464
361,009
805
323,325

7,521
617
700
244
208

1,921
940

19

3,264
1,173
1,782

10,103
31,147
34,026
20,9803
25,533
340
667
4,865
514
20,718
315
1,653
61,060
96,905
17,665
134,113
750

39,796
1,426
1,378

124
1,633
982
198
4,970
181

45,081
3,464
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Budget Actual
Road and bridge (continued):

Chemical supplies 9,000 542
Tires and tubes 10,000 10,124
Electrical supplies 100 46
Books/manuals/brochures 500 133
Uniforms 16,000 11,895
Paint supplies 10,000 7,319
Thermo lane marking 2,000 1,973
Plumbing supplies 100 25
Landscaping materials 20,000 14,860
Retention maintenance 16,000 1,625
Lumber supplies 1,000 64
Welding supplies 700 863
Concrete and masonry supplies 20,000 14,774
Asphalt/road oil and tar 19,000 8,018
Sewer tile culvert and related supplies 12,500 4,071
Ice control for roads 250,000 109,784
Signs and sign material 40,000 14,544
Hardware 3,000 2,542
Safety supplies 7,000 7,816
Steel supplies 1,000 -
Sand/gravel/rock 20,000 12,182
Sidewalk repair 90,000 63,172
Other operating supplies 10,000 9,159

Total road and bridge $ 4,199,680 3,163,606

Electrical:
Personal services:
Salaries $ 414,900 430,994
Employee health and life 153,500 122,002
Social Security and IMRF 88,400 92,105
Contractual services and commodities:

Telephone communications 6,450 3,911
Training 2,000 328
Meetings and conferences 100 -
Receptions and meals 500 83
Vehicle inspection 1,100 919
Printing 175 -
Utility locating service 1,750 1,782
Repair machinery and equipment 2,000 4,132
Repair motor vehicles 10,000 5,548
Towel and laundry service 750 514
Insurance deduction 10,000 6,922
Radio maintenance 1,500 170
Machine rental 500 -
Duplicating 400 393
Dues and subscriptions 3,010 2,961
Drug testing 250 150

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Budget Actual
Electrical: (continued)

Service contract by agreement $ 1,350 & 971
Traffic signal maintenance 42,000 31,538
Other contractual services 1,000 460
Vehicle license 200 125
Electricity 265,000 230,508
Office supplies 500 475
Confectionery supplies 500 425
First aid supplies 200 44
Expendable tools 1,100 826
Kerosene and LP gas 50 47
Gasoline 15,500 10,995
Qil 1,800 656
Diesel fuel 5,700 5,149
Tires and tubes 1,000 832
Electrical supplies 63,000 79,252
Uniforms 3,500 2,293
Paint supplies - 376
Welding supplies 100 99
Concrete and masonry supplies 1,000 1,026
Hardware 200 140
Safety supplies 3,500 3,702
Other operating supplies 700 305
Books, manuals, brochures 700 -
Sand, gravel and rock - 24
Chemical supplies 100 74

Total electrical $ 1,105,985 $ 1,043,256

Municipal buildings and grounds:
Personal services:
Salaries 3 282,000 $ 264,671
Employee health and life 75,400 56,053
Social Security and IMRF 58,790 53,184
Contractual services and commodities:

Printing 100 595
Repair buildings and structures 64,000 50,118
Employment costs 700 125
Dues and subscriptions 3,650 3,539
Custodial services 52,000 44,990
Insurance deductible 10,000 230
Maintenance contract 19,000 8,750
Phone system maintenance 35,000 22,552
Other contractual services 38,000 34,078
Engineering 3,000 2,579
Planning services - 2,000
Repairs and maintenance - computer equipment - 242
Inspection fees 700 -
Wireless fire alarm 810 813
Telephone communications 2,000 1,837
Gas 37,000 29,764

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Municipal buildings and grounds:
Electricity $ 3,000 2,808
Water and sewer 24,000 21,765
Confectionery supplies 500 634
Expendable tools 2,000 1,984
Diesel fuel 400 740
Chemical supplies 1,000 266
Electrical supplies 8,000 5,960
Janitorial supplies 18,000 8,385
Paint supplies 1,500 554
Plumbing supplies 1,800 3,026
Landscaping maintenance 27,000 22,699
Landscaping materials 4,000 24
Lumber supplies 300 55
Concrete 1,000 988
Hardware 1,500 1,060
Other operating supplies 9,000 4,596
Furniture repair 3,500 3,448
Office supplies 1,000 628
Uniforms 1,500 2,200
Flags and banners 500 1,945
Asphalt 2,000 -
Total municipal buildings and grounds $ 793,650 659,885
Community development:
Building:
Personal services:
Salaries $ 487,950 477,400
Employee health and life 167,500 142,299
Social Security and IMRF 105,100 101,282
Contractual services and commodities:
Telephone communications 6,050 5,529
Travel 500 706
Training 5,155 1,550
Meetings and conferences 810 215
Reception and meals 500 414
Printing 2,566 2,045
Repair motor vehicles 6,900 4,322
Repair office equipment 1,800 269
Towel and laundry services - 147
Dues and subscriptions 9,851 9,238
Architectural fees 30,000 26,592
Elevator inspection 19,000 16,141
Engineering services 20,000 12,349
Postage 2,160 1,832
Office supplies 3,800 2,886
Gasoline 11,625 8,748
Books/manuals/brochures 240 219
Uniforms 1,550 678
Service contracts 900 600
Other operating supplies 1,500 839
Total building 885,457 816,300

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Actual
Planning:
Personal services:
Salaries $ 310,750 % 299,734
Employee health and life 68,700 53,771
Social Security and IMRF 67,840 63,670
Contractual services and commodities:
Telephone communications 1,500 1,222
Travel 300 735
Training 1,470 605
Employment costs 100
Tuition reimbursement 13,000 12,440
Grant expenditures 80,819
Meetings and conferences 3,390 2,423
Reception and meals 1,000 829
Printing 4,500 6,241
Repair motor vehicles 300 140
Dues and subscriptions 7,386 7,292
Engineering services 25,500 21,216
Planning services 25,000 8,484
Office equipment 1,000 465
Postage $ 1,000 % 784
Office supplies 1,600 1,888
Gasoline 1,313 616
Books/manuals/brochures 300 71
Service contracts 600 600
Other supplies 1,750 1,273
Total planning 538.199 565,418
Total community development 3 1423656 $ 1381718
Boards, commissions and committees:
Civil service commission:
Personal services:
Salaries $ 7950 % 7,774
Social Security and IMRF 615 592
Contractual services and commodities:
Reception and meals 300 165
Legal and classified advertising 8,000 2,230
Dues and subscriptions 400 375
Other contractual services 500
Testing services 15,000 36,764
Printing 100
Legal services 3,000
Postage 800 174
Office supplies 200 106
Total civil service commission 36 865 48 180

See Note to Required Supplementary Information

(continued) 88



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Schedule of General Agency Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2012

Original and Final

Budget Actual
Boards, commissions and committees: (continued)
Environmental control board:
Personal services:
Salaries $ 1,600 3 310
Social Security and IMRF 125 24
Contractual services and commodities:
Clean up program 1,200 815
Postage 100 -
Other operating supplies 250 365
Total environmental control board 3,275 1,514
Community resource commission:
Personal services:
Salaries $ 2450 % 1,552
Social Security and IMRF 185 114
Contractual services and commodities:
Meetings and conferences 300 300
Other contractual services 1,020 1,006
Receptions and meals 575 409
Discover Tinley television production 19,600 27,406
Scholarships 6,500 6,463
Printing 5,000 3,767
Youth in Government 725 561
Postage 1,000 698
Other operating supplies 850 731
Total community resource commission 38,205 43,007
Zoning board of appeals:
Personal services:
Salaries $ 850 % 121
Social Security 65 9
Contractual services and commodities:
Legal and classified advertising 500 629
Postage 500 151
Other operating supplies - 221
Total zoning board of appeals 1,915 1,131

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Boards, commissions and committees: (continued)
Long range planning commission:

Personal services:
Salaries $ 3,175 1,012
Social Security and IMRF 240 77

Contractual services and commodities:
Legal and classified advertising 2,500 10,916
Receptions and meals 500 1,858
Other contractual services - 1,925
Training - 150
Postage 500 1,516

Total long range planning commission 6,915 17,454
Veterans commission:

Personal services:
Salaries $ 1,600 1,578
Employee health and life - 72
Social Security 100 123

Contractual services and commodities:
Receptions and meals 250 -
Flagpole maintenance 50 -
Other contractual services 1,380 1,262
Awards and scholarships 600 -
Armed service reunion 3,500 3,674
Vet welcome home reception 2,750 1,243
Art public building education 1,200 627
Community support 500 -
Overseas support 1,000 -
Postage 3,500 -
Flags/banners 750 1,625

Total veterans commission 17,180 10,004

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Boards, commissions and committees: (continued)
Historical preservation commission:

Personal services:
Salaries 3 500 -
Social Security and IMRF 40 -

Contractual services and commodities:
Other contractual services 3,000 -
Printing 100 -
Dues and subscriptions 500 395
Donations and support 5,000 5,000
Architect/planning service 3,000 E
Office supplies 100 -
Postage 25 138

Total historical preservation commission 12,265 5533

Senior services commission:

Personal services:
Salaries $ 14,300 12,351
Social Security and IMRF 2,785 1,580

Contractual services and commodities:
Printing 300 -
Community center 13,300 17,216
Meetings and conferences - 55
Office supplies 1,000 849
Service contracts 310 -
Postage 700 1,379

Total senior services commission 32,695 33,430

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Boards, commissions and committees: (continued)
Sister cities commission:
Personal services:
Salaries $ B $ 232
Social Security and IMRF - 84
Contractual services and commodities:
Reception and meals 1,000 B
Dues and subscriptions 750 1,395
Promotional brochures 150 -
Other contractual services 600 35
Awards/Scholarships 200 -
German exchange visit 1,500 -
Other exchange visits 150 -
Postage 150 -
Total sister cities commission 4,500 1,746
Economic / Commercial Commission
Personal services:
Salaries $ 2975 % 2,054
Social Security and IMRF 225 149
Contractual services and commodities:
Reception and meals 3,500 4,128
Programs 4,250 5,075
Printing 2,000 1,030
Postage 2,000 819
Total economic / commercial commission 14,950 13,255
Total boards, commissions and committees $ 168,765 3 175,254
Senior bus service:
Personal services:
Salaries $ 69,725 § 59,124
Social Security and IMRF 11,425 9,419
Contractual services and commodities:
Telephone and pagers 450 278
Repair motor vehicles 2,000 2,312
Radio maintenance 100 B
Medical services 1,000 476
Postage 10 4
Diesel fuel 9,085 7,829
Tires and tubes 500 -
Vehicle inspections 75 47
Other operating supplies 50 80
Insurance deductible 5,000 -
Total senior bus service $ 99420 % 79.569

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
(continued)
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Schedule of General Agency Expenditures - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2012

Original and Final

Budget Actual
Village bus services:
Personal services:
Salaries 37650 % 26,060
Social security and IMRF 7,225 4 401
Contractual services and commodities:
Telephone communications 250 182
Vehicle inspection 50 47
Repair motor vehicles 1,500 1,200
Repair radios 100 -
Tires and tubes 200 1,269
Qil 7,110 7,150
Other operating supplies 100 24
Insurance deductible 5,000 -
Total village bus services 59,185  § 40,333
Economic incentives 2398000 $ 1,528,621
Total expenditures 38,965889 $ 33,972,855

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Note to Required Supplementary Information

Note 1. Budgetary Information
Budgetary Basis of Accounting

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. The original
budget was not amended during the current year.

Budgetary Process

The Village follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1. The Village Manager submits to the Village Board of Trustees a proposed operating budget
ordinance, which serves as a budget, for the fiscal year commencing the following May 1. The
operating budget ordinance includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. Public hearings are conducted by the Village to obtain taxpayer comments.
3. Subsequently, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

4. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the
general, certain special revenue (excluding Drug Enforcement and Local Road Improvement), and
capital projects funds. Formal budgetary integration is not employed for debt service funds
because effective budgetary control is alternatively achieved through general obligation bond
indenture provisions.

5. Budgets for the general, special revenue, and capital projects funds are adopted on a basis
consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

6. Budgetary authority lapses at year-end.

7. State law requires that "expenditures be made in conformity with appropriation/budget."” As under
the Budget Act, transfers between line items and departments may be made by administrative
action. Amounts to be transferred between funds would require Village Board approval. Legal
budgetary control is maintained at fund level.

8. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted.
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111 West Monroe Street
Chicago, lllinois 60603

T 312.845.3000
F 312701 2361
www chapman.com

PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL
[LETTERHEAD OF CHAPMAN AND CUTLER LLP]

[TO BE DATED CLOSING DATE]

We hereby certify that we have examined certified copy of the proceedings (the
“Proceedings”) of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and
Will Counties, Illinois (the “Village ) passed preliminary to the issue by the Village of its fully
registered General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 (the “Bonds”), to the amount of $11,340,000
dated the date hereof, of the denomination of $5,000 or authorized integral multiple thereof, due
and payable on December | of the years and in the amounts and bearing interest at the rates
percent per annum as follows:

YEAR AMOUNT (3) RATE (%)
2014 405,000 3.00
2015 425,000 4.00
2016 445,000 4.00
2017 470,000 4.00
2018 500,000 4.00
2019 525,000 4.00
2020 555,000 4.00
2021 585,000 4.00
2022 625,000 4.00
skoskok k 3k ok %k ok ok
2024 1,370,000 5.00
% ok ok %k k % koK
2026 1,570,000 5.00
%ok sk %%k * ok ok
2028 1,795,000 5.00
%ok ok $ok * % %
2030 2,070,000 5.00

and issued for the purpose of refunding certain of the outstanding Taxable General Obligation
Bonds, Series 2010 (Build America Bonds - Direct Payment), of the Village. Each of the Bonds
bears interest from the later of its dated date as stated above or from the most recent interest
payment date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, until the principal amount of
each such Bond, respectively, is paid or duly provided for, such interest (computed upon the
basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) being payable on June 1 and December 1 of
each year, commencing on December 1, 2013.



Those of the Bonds due on December 1, 2024, 2026, 2028 and 2030 are subject to
mandatory redemption prior to maturity at a price of par and accrued interest, without premium,
on December 1 of the years and in the amounts as follows:

FOR THE 2024 TERM BOND

YEAR AMOUNT(S)
2023 665,000
2024 705,000 (stated maturity)
For THE 2026 TERM BOND
YEAR AMOUNT(S)
2025 760,000
2026 810,000 (stated maturity)

FORr THE 2028 TERM BOND

YEAR AMOUNT(S)
2027 865,000
2028 930,000 (stated maturity)

FoR THE 2030 TERM BOND

YEAR AMOUNT(S)
2029 1,000,000
2030 1,070,000 (stated maturity)

The Bonds due on or after December 1, 2024, are subject to redemption prior to maturity
at the option of the Village as a whole or in part in any order of their maturity as determined by
the Village, on December 1, 2023, or on any date thereafter, at the redemption price of par plus
accrued interest to the redemption date, as provided in the Proceedings.

Based upon such examination, we are of the opinion that the Proceedings show lawful
authority for the issuance of the Bonds under the laws of the State of Illinois now in force.

We further certify that we have examined the form prescribed for the Bonds and find the
same in due form of law, and in our opinion the Bonds, to the amount named, are valid and
legally binding upon the Village, and all taxable property in the Village is subject to the levy of
taxes to pay the same without limitation as to rate or amount, except that the rights of the owners
of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency,
moratorium, reorganization and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights and by equitable
principles, whether considered at law or in equity, including the exercise of judicial discretion.

2.



It is our opinion that, subject to the Village’s compliance with certain covenants, under
present law, interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income of the owners thereof for
federal income tax purposes and is not included as an item of tax preference in computing the
alternative minimum tax for individuals and corporations under the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended. Failure to comply with certain of such Village covenants could cause interest
on the Bonds to be includible in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactively to
the date of issuance of the Bonds. Ownership of the Bonds may result in other federal tax
consequences to certain taxpayers, and we express no opinion regarding any such collateral
consequences arising with respect to the Bonds.

We express no opinion herein as to the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of the
Official Statement relating to the Bonds.

In rendering this opinion, we have relied upon certifications of the Village with respect to
certain material facts within the Village’s knowledge. Our opinion represents our legal judgment
based upon our review of the law and the facts that we deem relevant to render such opinion and
is not a guarantee of a result. This opinion is given as of the date hereof and we assume no
obligation to revise or supplement this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may
hereafter come to our attention or any changes in law that may hereafter occur.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE INFORMATION
UNDER SECTION (b)(5) OF RULE 15¢2-12

This Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the “Agreement”) is executed and delivered by
the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois (the “Village ), in connection with
the issuance of $11,340,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 (the “Bonds”). The Bonds
are being issued pursuant to an ordinance adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the
Village on the 4th day of June 2013, as supplemented by a Bond Order executed in connection
with the sale of the Bonds (collectively, the “Ordinance”).

In consideration of the issuance of the Bonds by the Village and the purchase of such
Bonds by the beneficial owners thereof, the Village covenants and agrees as follows:

1.  PURPOSE OF THis UNDERTAKING. This Agreement is executed and delivered by the
Village as of the date set forth below, for the benefit of the beneficial owners of the Bonds and in
order to assist the Participating Underwriters in complying with the requirements of the Rule (as
defined below). The Village represents that it will be the only obligated person with respect to
the Bonds at the time the Bonds are delivered to the Participating Underwriters and that no other
person is expected to become so committed at any time after issuance of the Bonds.

2.  DEFINITIONS. The terms set forth below shall have the following meanings in this
Agreement, unless the context clearly otherwise requires.

Annual Financial Information means the financial information and operating data
described in Exhibit 1.

Annual Financial Information Disclosure means the dissemination of disclosure
concerning Annual Financial Information and the dissemination of the Audited Financial
Statements as set forth in Section 4.

Audited Financial Statements means the audited financial statements of the Village
prepared pursuant to the standards and as described in Exhibit I.

Commission means the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Dissemination Agent means any agent designated as such in writing by the Village and

which has filed with the Village a written acceptance of such designation, and such agent’s
successors and assigns.



EMMA means the MSRB through its Electronic Municipal Market Access system for
municipal securities disclosure or through any other electronic format or system prescribed by
the MSRB for purposes of the Rule.

Exchange Act means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
MSRB means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

Participating Underwriter means each broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer
acting as an underwriter in the primary offering of the Bonds.

Reportable Event means the occurrence of any of the events with respect to the Bonds set
forth in Exhibit 11.

Reportable Events Disclosure means dissemination of a notice of a Material Event as set
forth in Section 5.

Rule means Rule 15¢2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the
Exchange Act, as the same may be amended from time to time.

State means the State of Illinois.
Undertaking means the obligations of the Village pursuant to Sections 4 and 5.

3. CUSIP NUMBER/FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT. The CUSIP Numbers of the Bonds
are attached as Exhibit III. The Final Official Statement relating to the Bonds is dated June 5,
2013 (the “Final Official Statement”). The Village will include the CUSIP Numbers in all
disclosure materials described in Sections 4 and 5 of this Agreement.

4. ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION DISCLOSURE. Subject to Section 8 of this
Agreement, the Village hereby covenants that it will disseminate its Annual Financial
Information and its Audited Financial Statements (in the form and by the dates set forth in
Exhibir I) to EMMA 1n such manner and format and accompanied by identifying information as
is prescribed by the MSRB or the Commission at the time of delivery of such information and by
such time so that such entities receive the information by the dates specified. MSRB Rule G-32
requires all EMMA filings to be in word-searchable PDF format. This requirement extends to all
documents to be filed with EMMA, including financial statements and other externally prepared
Ieports.

If any part of the Annual Financial Information can no longer be generated because the
operations to which it is related have been materially changed or discontinued, the Village will
disseminate a statement to such effect as part of its Annual Financial Information for the year in
which such event first occurs. If any amendment or waiver is made to this Agreement, the
Annual Financial Information for the year in which such amendment or waiver is made (or in
any notice or supplement provided to EMMA) shall contain a narrative description of the reasons
for such amendment or waiver and its impact on the type of information being provided.

-



5. REPORTABLE EVENTS DISCLOSURE. Subject to Section 8 of this Agreement, the
Village hereby covenants that it will disseminate in a timely manner (not in excess of ten
business days after the occurrence of the Reportable Event) Reportable Events Disclosure to
EMMA in such manner and format and accompanied by identifying information as is prescribed
by the MSRB or the Commission or the State at the time of delivery of such information. MSRB
Rule G-32 requires all EMMA filings to be in word-searchable PDF format. This requirement
extends to all documents to be filed with EMMA, including financial statements and other
externally prepared reports. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of optional or unscheduled
redemption of any Bonds or defeasance of any Bonds need not be given under this Agreement
any earlier than the notice (if any) of such redemption or defeasance is given to the Bondholders
pursuant to the Ordinance.

6. CONSEQUENCES OF FAILURE OF THE VILLAGE TO PROVIDE INFORMATION. The
Village shall give notice in a timely manner to EMMA of any failure to provide Annual
Financial Information Disclosure when the same is due hereunder. In the event of a failure of the
Village to comply with any provision of this Agreement, the beneficial owner of any Bond may
seek mandamus or specific performance by court order, to cause the Village to comply with its
obligations under this Agreement. A default under this Agreement shall not be deemed a default
under the Ordinance, and the sole remedy under this Agreement in the event of any failure of the
Village to comply with this Agreement shall be an action to compel performance.

7.  AMENDMENTS; WAIVER. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,
the Village by ordinance authorizing such amendment or waiver, may amend this Agreement,
and any provision of this Agreement may be waived, if: (a) (i) the amendment or waiver is made
in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements,
including without limitation, pursuant to a “no-action” letter issued by the Commission, a change
in law, or a change in the identity, nature, or status of the Village, or type of business conducted;
or (ii) this Agreement, as amended, or the provision, as waived, would have complied with the
requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering, after taking into account any
amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and (b) the
amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests of the beneficial owners of the
Bonds, as determined by parties unaffiliated with the Village (such as Bond Counsel).

In the event that the Commission or the MSRB or other regulatory authority shall
approve or require Annual Financial Information Disclosure or Reportable Events Disclosure to
be made to a central post office, governmental agency or similar entity other than EMMA or in
licu of EMMA, the Village shall, if required, make such dissemination to such central post
office, governmental agency or similar entity without the necessity of amending this Agreement.

8. TERMINATION OF UNDERTAKING. The Undertaking of the Village shall be
terminated hereunder if the Village shall no longer have any legal liability for any obligation on
or relating to payment of the Bonds under the Ordinance. The Village shall give notice to
EMMA in a timely manner if this Section is applicable.

9. DISSEMINATION AGENT. The Village may, from time to time, appoint or engage a
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Agreement, and may



discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination
Agent.

10.  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to prevent
the Village from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth
in this Agreement or any other means of communication, or including any other information in
any Annual Financial Information Disclosure or notice of occurrence of a Reportable Event, in
addition to that which is required by this Agreement. If the Village chooses to include any
information from any document or notice of occurrence of a Reportable Event in addition to that
which is specifically required by this Agreement, the Village shall have no obligation under this
Agreement to update such information or include it in any future disclosure or notice of
occurrence of a Reportable Event.

11.  BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement has been executed in order to assist the
Participating Underwriters in complying with the Rule; however, this Agreement shall inure
solely to the benefit of the Village, the Dissemination Agent, if any, and the beneficial owners of
the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

12. RECORDKEEPING. The Village shall maintain records of all Annual Financial
Information Disclosure and Reportable Events Disclosure including the content of such
disclosure, the names of the entities with whom such disclosure was filed and the date of filing
such disclosure.

13. ASSIGNMENT. The Village shall not transfer its obligations under the Ordinance
execute an Undertaking under the Rule.

14. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State.

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
CoOOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS

Its President

Date: June 20, 2013



ExHiBITI

ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND TIMING AND AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Annual Financial Information means the financial information and operating data of the
type contained in the Official Statement under the sections:

“REAL PROPERTY ASSESSMENT, TAX LEVY AND COLLECTION
PROCEDURES” and “VILLAGE DEBT” (excluding Overlapping Debt).

All or a portion of the Annual Financial Information and the Audited Financial
Statements as set forth below may be included by reference to other documents which have been
submitted to EMMA or filed with the Commission. If the information included by reference is
contained in a Final Official Statement, the Final Official Statement must be available on
EMMA; the Final Official Statement need not be available from the Commission. The Village
shall clearly identify each such item of information included by reference.

Annual Financial Information exclusive of Audited Financial Statements will be
submitted to EMMA by 210 days after the last day of the Village’s fiscal year (currently such
fiscal year ends April 30). Audited Financial Statements as described below should be filed at
the same time as the Annual Financial Information. If Audited Financial Statements are not
available when the Annual Financial Information is filed, unaudited financial statements shall be
included.

Audited Financial Statements will be prepared according to Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles as applicable to governmental units (i.e., as subject to the pronouncements
of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board) and subject to any express requirements of
State law. Audited Financial Statements will be submitted to EMMA within 30 days after
availability to the Village.

If any change is made to the Annual Financial Information as permitted by Section 4 of
the Agreement, the Village will disseminate a notice of such change as required by Section 4.

EXHIBITI
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ExHiBiT I1
EVENTS FOR WHICH REPORTABLE EVENTS DISCLOSURE IS REQUIRED

Principal and interest payment delinquencies

Non-payment related defaults, if material

Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties
Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties
Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform
Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final
determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other
material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or other
material events affecting the tax status of the security

Modifications to the rights of security holders, if material

Bond calls, if material, and tender offers

Defeasances

Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the securities, if material
Rating changes

Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Village*

The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Village or the
sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Village, other than in the ordinary course
of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to
its terms, if material

, 1f

material

This event is considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal
agent or similar officer for the Village in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other
proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction
over substantially all of the assets or business of the Village, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by
leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision
and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of
reorganijzation, arrangement or Jiquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Village.

ExHiBITI1
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CUSIP NUMBERS
| i -
' YEAR OF MATURITY | CUSIP NUMBER
' (December 1) BASE (887547)
2014 PA9
2015 PB7
2016 PC5
[ 2017 . PD3
2018 ~ PEl |
2019 PF§8
2020 PG6
____________________ 2021 PH4
2022 PJO
2024 PL5
T * 3k ok N
2026 PN1
gk xkk
2028 P4
* 3k ok ok -
2030 ] PSO
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Information on debt issuance

Debt service schedule



Village of Tinley Park, IL

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013
Dated/Delivery: June 20, 2013
Winning Bid: Mesirow Financial, Inc.
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Village of Tinley Park, IL

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013
Dated/Delivery: June 20, 2013
Winning Bid: Mesirow Financial, Inc.

Debt Service Comparison

Date Total P+| Net New D/S Old Net D/S Savings
12/01/2013 231,482.22 231,482.22 211,410.07 (20,072.15)
12/01/2014 922,600.00 922,600.00 935,858.64 13,258.64
12/01/2015 930,450.00 930,450.00 942,408.64 11,958.64
12/01/2016 933,450.00 933,450.00 947,323.88 13,873.88
12/01/2017 940,650.00 940,650.00 950,168.88 9,518.88
12/01/2018 951,850.00 951,850.00 961,213.38 9,363.38
12/01/2019 956,850.00 956,850.00 969,722.88 12,872.88
12/01/2020 965,850.00 965,850.00 976,734.14 10,884.14
12/01/2021 973,650.00 973,650.00 988,014.14 14,364.14
12/01/2022 990,250.00 990,250.00 1,000,150.38 9,900.38
12/01/2023 1,005,250.00 1,005,250.00 1,016,092.26 10,842.26
12/01/2024 1,012,000.00 1,012,000.00 1,025,669.14 13,669.14
12/01/2025 1,031,750.00 1,031,750.00 1,044,051.64 12,301.64
12/01/2026 1,043,750.00 1,043,750.00 1,055,898.50 12,148.50
12/01/2027 1,058,250.00 1,058,250.00 1,072,725.76 14,475.76
12/01/2028 1,080,000.00 1,080,000.00 1,092,635.50 12,635.50
12/01/2029 1,103,500.00 1,103,500.00 1,115,436.00 11,936.00
12/01/2030 1,123,500.00 1,123,500.00 1,133,927.00 10,427.00

Total $17,255,082.22 $17,255,082.22 $17,439,440.83 $184,358.61

PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net)

Gross PV Debt Service Savings 2,782,771.61
Effects of changes in Credit Enhancement Expenses (2,148,473.02)
Net PV Cashflow Savings @ 2.914%(User Defined) 634,298.59
Transfers from Prior Issue Debt Service Fund (510,000.00)
Contingency or Rounding Amount 4,621.33
Net Present Value Benefit $128,919.92
Net PV Benefit / $13,120,000 Refunded Principal 0.983%
Net PV Benefit / $11,340,000 Refunding Principal 1.137%

Refunding Bond Information

Refunding Dated Date 6/20/2013
Refunding Delivery Date 6/20/2013
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Village of Tinley Park, IL

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013
Dated/Delivery: June 20, 2013
Winning Bid: Mesirow Financial, Inc.

Sources & Uses

Dated 06/20/2013 | Delivered 06/20/2013

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Par Amount of Bonds $11,340,000.00
Reoffering Premium 1,522,158.50
Transfers from Prior Issue Debt Service Funds 510,000.00
TOTAL SOURCES $13,372,158.50

USES OF FUNDS

To Redeem the 2010 Bonds 13,186,856.17
Underwriter's Discount 85,050.00
Bond Counsel Fee (est) 37,531.00
Financial Advisor Fee 28,350.00
Rating Agency Fee 14,000.00
Local Counsel Fee 11,750.00
Rounding Amount 4,621.33
POS/Official Statement (est.) 2,500.00
Paying Agent Fee 1,000.00
Ideal Prospectus 500.00
TOTAL USES $13,372,158.50
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Village of Tinley Park, IL

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013
Dated/Delivery: June 20, 2013
Winning Bid: Mesirow Financial, Inc.

Debt Service Schedule

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+l Fiscal Total
06/20/2013 - - - - -
12/01/2013 - - 231,482.22 231,482.22 231,482.22
06/01/2014 - - 258,800.00 258,800.00 -
12/01/2014 405,000.00 3.000% 258,800.00 663,800.00 922,600.00
06/01/2015 - - 252,725.00 252,725.00 -
12/01/2015 425,000.00 4.000% 252,725.00 677,725.00 930,450.00
06/01/2016 - - 244,225.00 244,225.00 -
12/01/2016 445,000.00 4.000% 244,225.00 689,225.00 933,450.00
06/01/2017 - - 235,325.00 235,325.00 -
12/01/2017 470,000.00 4.000% 235,325.00 705,325.00 940,650.00
06/01/2018 - - 225,925.00 225,925.00 -
12/01/2018 500,000.00 4.000% 225,925.00 725,925.00 951,850.00
06/01/2019 - - 215,925.00 215,925.00 -
12/01/2019 525,000.00 4.000% 215,925.00 740,925.00 956,850.00
06/01/2020 - - 205,425.00 205,425.00 -
12/01/2020 555,000.00 4.000% 205,425.00 760,425.00 965,850.00
06/01/2021 - - 194,325.00 194,325.00 -
12/01/2021 585,000.00 4.000% 194,325.00 779,325.00 973,650.00
06/01/2022 - - 182,625.00 182,625.00 -
12/01/2022 625,000.00 4.000% 182,625.00 807,625.00 990,250.00
06/01/2023 - - 170,125.00 170,125.00 -
12/01/2023 665,000.00 5.000% 170,125.00 835,125.00 1,005,250.00
06/01/2024 - - 153,500.00 153,500.00 -
12/01/2024 705,000.00 5.000% 153,500.00 858,500.00 1,012,000.00
06/01/2025 - - 135,875.00 135,875.00 -
12/01/2025 760,000.00 5.000% 135,875.00 895,875.00 1,031,750.00
06/01/2026 - - 116,875.00 116,875.00 -
12/01/2026 810,000.00 5.000% 116,875.00 926,875.00 1,043,750.00
06/01/2027 - - 96,625.00 96,625.00 -
12/01/2027 865,000.00 5.000% 96,625.00 961,625.00 1,058,250.00
06/01/2028 - - 75,000.00 75,000.00 -
12/01/2028 930,000.00 5.000% 75,000.00 1,005,000.00 1,080,000.00
06/01/2029 - - 51,750.00 51,750.00 -
12/01/2029 1,000,000.00 5.000% 51,750.00 1,051,750.00 1,103,500.00
06/01/2030 - - 26,750.00 26,750.00 -
12/01/2030 1,070,000.00 5.000% 26,750.00 1,096,750.00 1,123,500.00

Total $11,340,000.00 - $5,915,082.22 $17,255,082.22 -

Yield Statistics

Bond Year Dollars $123,686.50
Average Life 10.907 Years
Average Coupon 4.7823184%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 3.6204224%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 3.3234699%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.9144067%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 3.4114180%

IRS Form 8038
Net Interest Cost 3.1119415%
Weighted Average Maturity 10.975 Years
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Village of Tinley Park, IL

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013
Dated/Delivery: June 20, 2013
Winning Bid: Mesirow Financial, Inc.

Pricing Summary

Maturity Type of Bond Coupon Yield Maturity Value Price Dollar Price
12/01/2014 Serial Coupon 3.000% 0.500% 405,000.00 103.600% 419,580.00
12/01/2015 Serial Coupon 4.000% 0.625% 425,000.00 108.183% 459,777.75
12/01/2016 Serial Coupon 4.000% 0.900% 445,000.00 110.498% 491,716.10
12/01/2017 Serial Coupon 4.000% 1.250% 470,000.00 111.859% 525,737.30
12/01/2018 Serial Coupon 4.000% 1.500% 500,000.00 113.029% 565,145.00
12/01/2019 Serial Coupon 4.000% 1.875% 525,000.00 112.847% 592,446.75
12/01/2020 Serial Coupon 4.000% 2.150% 555,000.00 112.667% 625,301.85
12/01/2021 Serial Coupon 4.000% 2.400% 585,000.00 112.166% 656,171.10
12/01/2022 Serial Coupon 4.000% 2.625% 625,000.00 111.437% 696,481.25
12/01/2024 Term 1 Coupon 5.000% 2.950% 1,370,000.00 118.314% c 1,620,901.80
12/01/2026 Term 2 Coupon 5.000% 3.200% 1,570,000.00 115.875% c 1,819,237.50
12/01/2028 Term 3 Coupon 5.000% 3.375% 1,795,000.00 114.204% c 2,049,961.80
12/01/2030 Term 4 Coupon 5.000% 3.500% 2,070,000.00 113.029% c 2,339,700.30

Total - - - $11,340,000.00 - - $12,862,158.50

Bid Information

Par Amount of Bonds $11,340,000.00
Reoffering Premium or (Discount) 1,522,158.50
Gross Production $12,862,158.50
Total Underwriter's Discount (0.750%) $(85,050.00)
Bid (112.673%) 12,777,108.50
Total Purchase Price $12,777,108.50
Bond Year Dollars $123,686.50
Average Life 10.907 Years
Average Coupon 4.7823184%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 3.6204224%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 3.3234699%
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Village of Tinley Park, IL

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013
Dated/Delivery: June 20, 2013
Winning Bid: Mesirow Financial, Inc.

Proof of Premium Bond Selection of Call Dates/Prices

PV at Bond
Maturity Call Date Call Price Yield Lowest?
12/01/2024 - - 1,636,410.03 No
12/01/2024 12/01/2023 100.000% 1,625,775.25 Yes
12/01/2026 - - 1,921,337.20 No
12/01/2026 12/01/2023 100.000% 1,863,114.71 Yes
12/01/2028 - - 2,246,380.18 No
12/01/2028 12/01/2023 100.000% 2,130,121.59 Yes
12/01/2030 - - 2,644,524.12 No
12/01/2030 12/01/2023 100.000% 2,456,463.34 Yes
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Village of Tinley Park, IL

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013
Dated/Delivery: June 20, 2013
Winning Bid: Mesirow Financial, Inc.

Proof of D/S for Arbitrage Purposes

Date Principal Interest Total
06/20/2013 - - -
12/01/2013 - 231,482.22 231,482.22
06/01/2014 - 258,800.00 258,800.00
12/01/2014 405,000.00 258,800.00 663,800.00
06/01/2015 - 252,725.00 252,725.00
12/01/2015 425,000.00 252,725.00 677,725.00
06/01/2016 - 244,225.00 244,225.00
12/01/2016 445,000.00 244,225.00 689,225.00
06/01/2017 - 235,325.00 235,325.00
12/01/2017 470,000.00 235,325.00 705,325.00
06/01/2018 - 225,925.00 225,925.00
12/01/2018 500,000.00 225,925.00 725,925.00
06/01/2019 - 215,925.00 215,925.00
12/01/2019 525,000.00 215,925.00 740,925.00
06/01/2020 - 205,425.00 205,425.00
12/01/2020 555,000.00 205,425.00 760,425.00
06/01/2021 - 194,325.00 194,325.00
12/01/2021 585,000.00 194,325.00 779,325.00
06/01/2022 - 182,625.00 182,625.00
12/01/2022 625,000.00 182,625.00 807,625.00
06/01/2023 - 170,125.00 170,125.00
12/01/2023 6,805,000.00 170,125.00 6,975,125.00

Total $11,340,000.00 $4,602,332.22 $15,942,332.22
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Village of Tinley Park, IL

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013
Dated/Delivery: June 20, 2013
Winning Bid: Mesirow Financial, Inc.

Proof Of Bond Yield @ 2.9144067%

Date Cashflow PV Factor Present Value Cumulative PV
06/20/2013 - 1.0000000x - -
12/01/2013 231,482.22 0.9871435x 228,506.18 228,506.18
06/01/2014 258,800.00 0.9729655x 251,803.46 480,309.64
12/01/2014 663,800.00 0.9589910x 636,578.23 1,116,887.86
06/01/2015 252,725.00 0.9452173x 238,880.03 1,355,767.90
12/01/2015 677,725.00 0.9316414x 631,396.64 1,987,164.54
06/01/2016 244,225.00 0.9182604x 224,262.15 2,211,426.69
12/01/2016 689,225.00 0.9050717x 623,798.04 2,835,224.73
06/01/2017 235,325.00 0.8920724x 209,926.94 3,045,151.67
12/01/2017 705,325.00 0.8792598x 620,163.91 3,665,315.58
06/01/2018 225,925.00 0.8666312x 195,793.66 3,861,109.24
12/01/2018 725,925.00 0.8541840x 620,073.53 4,481,182.76
06/01/2019 215,925.00 0.8419156x 181,790.62 4,662,973.39
12/01/2019 740,925.00 0.8298234x 614,836.88 5,277,810.27
06/01/2020 205,425.00 0.8179048x 168,018.10 5,445,828.37
12/01/2020 760,425.00 0.8061575x 613,022.31 6,058,850.68
06/01/2021 194,325.00 0.7945789x 154,406.54 6,213,257.22
12/01/2021 779,325.00 0.7831665x 610,341.25 6,823,598.47
06/01/2022 182,625.00 0.7719181x 140,971.54 6,964,570.01
12/01/2022 807,625.00 0.7608313x 614,466.34 7,579,036.35
06/01/2023 170,125.00 0.7499036x 127,577.36 7,706,613.71
12/01/2023 6,975,125.00 0.7391330x 5,155,544.79 12,862,158.50

Total $15,942,332.22 - $12,862,158.50 -

Derivation Of Target Amount

Par Amount of Bonds $11,340,000.00
Reoffering Premium or (Discount) 1,522,158.50
Original Issue Proceeds $12,862,158.50
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Village of Tinley Park, IL

Taxable General Obligation Bonds, Series 2010A (BABS)
Dated/Delivery: December 22, 2010

Winning Bidder: BMO Capital Markets

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call

Refunded Refunded

Date Bonds Interest D/S To Call Principal Coupon Interest Refunded D/S
06/20/2013 - - - - - - -
07/08/2013 13,120,000.00 66,856.17 13,186,856.17 - - - -
12/01/2013 - - - 510,000.00 2.100% 325,246.25 835,246.25
06/01/2014 - - - - - 319,891.25 319,891.25
12/01/2014 - - - 520,000.00 2.500% 319,891.25 839,891.25
06/01/2015 - - - - - 313,391.25 313,391.25
12/01/2015 - - - 535,000.00 2.900% 313,391.25 848,391.25
06/01/2016 - - - - - 305,633.75 305,633.75
12/01/2016 - - - 550,000.00 3.400% 305,633.75 855,633.75
06/01/2017 - - - - - 296,283.75 296,283.75
12/01/2017 - - - 565,000.00 3.800% 296,283.75 861,283.75
06/01/2018 - - - - - 285,548.75 285,548.75
12/01/2018 - - - 590,000.00 4.300% 285,548.75 875,548.75
06/01/2019 - - - - - 272,863.75 272,863.75
12/01/2019 - - - 615,000.00 4.500% 272,863.75 887,863.75
06/01/2020 - - - - - 259,026.25 259,026.25
12/01/2020 - - - 640,000.00 4.500% 259,026.25 899,026.25
06/01/2021 - - - - - 244,626.25 244,626.25
12/01/2021 - - - 670,000.00 5.250% 244,626.25 914,626.25
06/01/2022 - - - - - 227,038.75 227,038.75
12/01/2022 - - - 705,000.00 5.250% 227,038.75 932,038.75
06/01/2023 - - - - - 208,532.50 208,532.50
12/01/2023 - - - 745,000.00 5.250% 208,532.50 953,532.50
06/01/2024 - - - - - 188,976.25 188,976.25
12/01/2024 - - - 780,000.00 5.250% 188,976.25 968,976.25
06/01/2025 - - - - - 168,501.25 168,501.25
12/01/2025 - - - 825,000.00 5.250% 168,501.25 993,501.25
06/01/2026 - - - - - 146,845.00 146,845.00
12/01/2026 - - - 865,000.00 5.900% 146,845.00 1,011,845.00
06/01/2027 - - - - - 121,327.50 121,327.50
12/01/2027 - - - 915,000.00 5.900% 121,327.50 1,036,327.50
06/01/2028 - - - - - 94,335.00 94,335.00
12/01/2028 - - - 970,000.00 5.900% 94,335.00 1,064,335.00
06/01/2029 - - - - - 65,720.00 65,720.00
12/01/2029 - - - 1,030,000.00 6.200% 65,720.00 1,095,720.00
06/01/2030 - - - - - 33,790.00 33,790.00
12/01/2030 - - - 1,090,000.00 6.200% 33,790.00 1,123,790.00

Total $13,120,000.00 $66,856.17 $13,186,856.17 $13,120,000.00 - $7,429,908.75 $20,549,908.75

Yield Statistics

Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 6/20/2013
Average Life 10.193 Years
Average Coupon 5.5299180%
Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) 10.193 Years

Refunding Bond Information

Refunding Dated Date 6/20/2013
Refunding Delivery Date 6/20/2013

2010 Bonds Final Numbers | SINGLE PURPOSE | 6/5/2013 | 3:00 PM

Robert W. Baird & Co.

Public Finance - DJW




Village of Tinley Park, Illinois
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 dated 20 June 2013

Debt Service Schedule

OPA TIF and/or Hotel/Motel Tax
(Note: OPA TIF ends with tax year 2017,
Reserve or Hotel/Motel Tax financed thereafter)
Convention Center

Surtax

Train Station (80th Ave)
Village Hall addition

Water & Sewer

Sanitary Sewer projects

Stormwater

Detention 175th St & 71st Ave

Main Street South TIF
(Note: MSS TIF ends with tax year 2025,
Reserve or Surtax Tax financed thereafter)

Street realignment 67th Ave

4,536,000 40.000% 4,859,644 42.854% 1,619,919 14.285% 202,646 1.787% 121,792 1.074%

Date Coupon Principal Interest Total P+| Net Fiscal Total Principal Net Interest Total P+| Fiscal Total Principal Net Interest Total P+| Fiscal Total Principal Net Interest Total P+| Fiscal Total Principal Net Interest Total P+| Fiscal Total Principal Net Interest Total P+| Fiscal Total
1-Dec-13 231,482.22 231,482.22 231,482.22 0.00 92,592.89 92,592.89 92,592.89 0.00 99,199.38 99,199.38 99,199.38 0.00 33,067.24 33,067.24 33,067.24 0.00 4,136.59 4,136.59 4,136.59 0.00 2,486.12 2,486.12 2,486.12
1-Jun-14 - - 258,800.00 258,800.00 103,520.00 103,520.00 110,906.15 110,906.15 36,969.58 36,969.58 4,624.76 4,624.76 2,779.51 2,779.51
1-Dec-14 3.000% 405,000.00 258,800.00 663,800.00 922,600.00 162,000.00 103,520.00 265,520.00 369,040.00 173,558.70 110,906.15 284,464.85 395,371.00 57,854.25 36,969.58 94,823.83 131,793.41 7,237.35 4,624.76  11,862.11 16,486.87 4,349.70 2,779.51 7,129.21 9,908.72
1-Jun-15 - - 252,725.00 252,725.00 101,090.00 101,090.00 108,302.76 108,302.76 36,101.77 36,101.77 4,516.20 4,516.20 2,714.27 2,714.27
1-Dec-15 4.000% 425,000.00 252,725.00 677,725.00 930,450.00 170,000.00 101,090.00 271,090.00 372,180.00 182,129.50 108,302.76 290,432.26 398,735.02 60,711.25 36,101.77 96,813.02 132,914.79 7,594.75 4,516.20 12,110.95( 16,627.15 4,564.50 2,714.27 7,278.77 9,993.04
1-Jun-16 - - 244,225.00 244,225.00 97,690.00 97,690.00 104,660.18 104,660.18 34,887.54 34,887.54 4,364.30 4,364.30 2,622.98 2,622.98
1-Dec-16 4.000% 445,000.00 244,225.00 689,225.00 933,450.00 178,000.00 97,690.00 275,690.00 373,380.00 190,700.30 104,660.18 295,360.48 400,020.66 63,568.25 34,887.54 98,455.79 133,343.33 7,952.15 4,364.30 12,316.45( 16,680.75 4,779.30 2,622.98 7,402.28| 10,025.26
1-Jun-17 - - 235,325.00 235,325.00 94,130.00 94,130.00 100,846.17 100,846.17 33,616.18 33,616.18 4,205.26 4,205.26 2,527.39 2,527.39
1-Dec-17 4.000% 470,000.00 235,325.00 705,325.00 940,650.00 188,000.00 94,130.00 282,130.00 376,260.00 201,413.80 100,846.17 302,259.97 403,106.14 67,139.50 33,616.18 100,755.68 134,371.86 8,398.90 4,205.26  12,604.16 16,809.42 5,047.80 2,527.39 7,575.19| 10,102.58
1-Jun-18 - - 225,925.00 225,925.00 90,370.00 90,370.00 96,817.90 96,817.90 32,273.39 32,273.39 4,037.28 4,037.28 2,426.43 2,426.43
1-Dec-18 4.000% 500,000.00 225,925.00 725,925.00 951,850.00 200,000.00 90,370.00 290,370.00 380,740.00 214,270.00 96,817.90 311,087.90 407,905.80 71,425.00 32,273.39 103,698.39 135,971.78 8,935.00 4,037.28 12,972.28( 17,009.56 5,370.00 2,426.43 7,796.43| 10,222.86
1-Jun-19 - - 215,925.00 215,925.00 86,370.00 86,370.00 92,532.50 92,532.50 30,844.89 30,844.89 3,858.58 3,858.58 2,319.03 2,319.03
1-Dec-19 4.000% 525,000.00 215,925.00 740,925.00 956,850.00 210,000.00 86,370.00 296,370.00 382,740.00 224,983.50 92,532.50 317,516.00 410,048.50 74,996.25 30,844.89 105,841.14 136,686.03 9,381.75 3,858.58 13,240.33( 17,098.91 5,638.50 2,319.03 7,957.53| 10,276.56
1-Jun-20 - - 205,425.00 205,425.00 82,170.00 82,170.00 88,032.84 88,032.84 29,344.96 29,344.96 3,670.94 3,670.94 2,206.26 2,206.26
1-Dec-20 4.000% 555,000.00 205,425.00 760,425.00 965,850.00 222,000.00 82,170.00 304,170.00 386,340.00 237,839.70 88,032.84 325,872.54 413,905.38 79,281.75 29,344.96 108,626.71 137,971.67 9,917.85 3,670.94 13,588.79( 17,259.73 5,960.70 2,206.26 8,166.96| 10,373.22
1-Jun-21 - 194,325.00 194,325.00 77,730.00 77,730.00 83,276.03 83,276.03 27,759.33 27,759.33 3,472.59 3,472.59 2,087.05 2,087.05
1-Dec-21 4.000% 585,000.00 194,325.00 779,325.00 973,650.00 234,000.00 77,730.00 311,730.00 389,460.00 250,695.90 83,276.03 333,971.93 417,247.96 83,567.25 27,759.33 111,326.58 139,085.91| 10,453.95 3,472.59  13,926.54 17,399.13 6,282.90 2,087.05 8,369.95| 10,457.00
1-Jun-22 - - 182,625.00 182,625.00 73,050.00 73,050.00 78,262.12 78,262.12 26,087.98 26,087.98 3,263.51 3,263.51 1,961.39 1,961.39
1-Dec-22 4.000% 625,000.00 182,625.00 807,625.00 990,250.00 250,000.00 73,050.00 323,050.00 396,100.00 267,837.50 78,262.12 346,099.62 424,361.74 89,281.25 26,087.98 115,369.23 141,457.21| 11,168.75 3,263.51 14,432.26 17,695.77 6,712.50 1,961.39 8,673.89| 10,635.28
1-Jun-23 - - 170,125.00 170,125.00 68,050.00 68,050.00 72,905.37 72,905.37 24,302.36 24,302.36 3,040.13 3,040.13 1,827.14 1,827.14
1-Dec-23 5.000% 665,000.00 170,125.00 835,125.00( 1,005,250.00 266,000.00 68,050.00 334,050.00 402,100.00 284,979.10 72,905.37 357,884.47 430,789.84 94,995.25 24,302.36 119,297.61 143,599.97 11,883.55 3,040.13  14,923.68 17,963.81 7,142.10 1,827.14 8,969.24| 10,796.38
1-Jun-24 - - 153,500.00 153,500.00 61,400.00 61,400.00 65,780.88 65,780.88 21,927.48 21,927.48 2,743.05 2,743.05 1,648.59 1,648.59
1-Dec-24 5.000% 705,000.00 153,500.00 858,500.00( 1,012,000.00 282,000.00 61,400.00 343,400.00 404,800.00 302,120.70 65,780.88 367,901.58 433,682.46 100,709.25 21,927.48 122,636.73 144,564.21| 12,598.35 2,743.05 15,341.40( 18,084.45 7,571.70 1,648.59 9,220.29| 10,868.88
1-Jun-25 - - 135,875.00 135,875.00 54,350.00 54,350.00 58,227.87 58,227.87 19,409.74 19,409.74 2,428.09 2,428.09 1,459.30 1,459.30
1-Dec-25 5.000% 760,000.00 135,875.00 895,875.00( 1,031,750.00 304,000.00 54,350.00 358,350.00 412,700.00 325,690.40 58,227.87 383,918.27 442,146.14 108,566.00 19,409.74 127,975.74 147,385.48 13,581.20 2,428.09 16,009.29( 18,437.38 8,162.40 1,459.30 9,621.70| 11,081.00
1-Jun-26 - - 116,875.00 116,875.00 46,750.00 46,750.00 50,085.61 50,085.61 16,695.59 16,695.59 2,088.56 2,088.56 1,255.24 1,255.24
1-Dec-26 5.000% 810,000.00 116,875.00 926,875.00( 1,043,750.00 324,000.00 46,750.00 370,750.00 417,500.00 347,117.40 50,085.61 397,203.01 447,288.62 115,708.50 16,695.59 132,404.09 149,099.68| 14,474.70 2,088.56 16,563.26( 18,651.82 8,699.40 1,255.24 9,954.64| 11,209.88
1-Jun-27 - - 96,625.00 96,625.00 38,650.00 38,650.00 41,407.68 41,407.68 13,802.88 13,802.88 1,726.69 1,726.69 1,037.75 1,037.75
1-Dec-27 5.000% 865,000.00 96,625.00 961,625.00( 1,058,250.00 346,000.00 38,650.00 384,650.00 423,300.00 370,687.10 41,407.68 412,094.78 453,502.46 123,565.25 13,802.88 137,368.13 151,171.01| 15,457.55 1,726.69 17,184.24| 18,910.93 9,290.10 1,037.75 10,327.85| 11,365.60
1-Jun-28 - - 75,000.00 75,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 32,140.50 32,140.50 10,713.75 10,713.75 1,340.25 1,340.25 805.50 805.50
1-Dec-28 5.000% 930,000.00 75,000.00 1,005,000.00| 1,080,000.00 372,000.00 30,000.00 402,000.00 432,000.00 398,542.20 32,140.50 430,682.70 462,823.20 132,850.50 10,713.75 143,564.25 154,278.00( 16,619.10 1,340.25 17,959.35| 19,299.60 9,988.20 805.50 10,793.70| 11,599.20
1-Jun-29 - - 51,750.00 51,750.00 20,700.00 20,700.00 22,176.94 22,176.94 7,392.49 7,392.49 924.77 924.77 555.80 555.80
1-Dec-29 5.000% 1,000,000.00 51,750.00 1,051,750.00| 1,103,500.00 400,000.00 20,700.00 420,700.00 441,400.00 428,540.00 22,176.94 450,716.94 472,893.88 142,850.00 7,392.49 150,242.49 157,634.98( 17,870.00 924.77  18,794.77| 19,719.54 10,740.00 555.80 11,295.80| 11,851.60
1-Jun-30 - - 26,750.00 26,750.00 10,700.00 10,700.00 11,463.44 11,463.44 3,821.24 3,821.24 478.02 478.02 287.30 287.30
1-Dec-30 5.000% 1,070,000.00 26,750.00 1,096,750.00| 1,123,500.00 428,000.00 10,700.00 438,700.00 449,400.00 458,537.80 11,463.44 470,001.24 481,464.68 152,849.50 3,821.24 156,670.74 160,491.98| 19,120.90 478.02  19,598.92| 20,076.94| 11,491.80 287.30 11,779.10| 12,066.40

Totals 11,340,000.00 5,915,082.22 17,255,082.22| 17,255,082.22 4,536,000.00 2,366,032.89 6,902,032.89 6,902,032.89| 4,859,643.60 2,534,849.26  7,394,492.86| 7,394,492.86| 1,619,919.00 844,969.54 2,464,888.54| 2,464,888.54| 202,645.80 105,702.55 308,348.35| 308,348.35| 121,791.60 63,527.98 185,319.58| 185,319.58
17-00-000-96140 33-00-000-96140 60-00-000-96140 65-00-000-96140 19-00-000-96140
Original Projects recap Project 41-00-000-96140

5,662,000.00 Convention Center

6,066,000.00 80th Train Station

2,022,000.00 Sewer projects
253,000.00 Detention 175th/71st
152,000.00 Street align 67th/173rd

14,155,000.00
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Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Main Street South Tax Increment Redevelopment
Project Area Fund

Financial and Compliance Report
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Independent Auditor's Report on Supplementary Information

To the Honorable Village President and
Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Village of Tinley Park, lllinois (Village), as of and for the year ended April 30, 2013, which collectively
comprise the Village’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 16,
2013 which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for
the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. We have not performed any
procedures with respect to the audited financial statements subsequent to December 16, 2013.

The accompanying supplementary information is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

%c% Y

Chicago, Illinois
December 16, 2013



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

Main Street South Tax Increment Redevelopment Project Area Fund
Balance Sheet
April 30, 2013

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,642,885

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 4,176

Fund Balance
Restricted 2,638,709

Total liabilities and
fund balance $ 2,642,885




Village of Tinley Park, Illinois

Main Street South Tax Increment Redevelopment Project Area Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended April 30, 2013

Revenues:
Property taxes
Interest
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current, general government:
Other contractual services
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other financing (uses):
Transfers (out)

Change in fund balance

Fund balance:
May 1, 2012

April 30, 2013

221,262
16,472

237,734

2,035
13,197

15,232

222,502

(9,971)

212,531

2,426,178

$

2,638,709
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Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance

To the Honorable Village President and
Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

We have audited the Village of Tinley Park, Illinois' (Village) compliance with the provisions of subsection
(q) of Section 11-74.4-3 of the lllinois Tax Increment Redevelopment Allocation Act (lllinois Public Act
85-1142) applicable to the Village’s Main Street South Tax Increment Redevelopment Project Area Fund
for the year ended April 30, 2013. Compliance with the requirements referred to above is the
responsibility of the Village's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Village’'s
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a material effect on the Village’'s Main Street South Tax Increment Redevelopment
Project Area Fund occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Village’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination of the Village’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Village complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that are applicable to the Village's Main Street South Tax Increment Redevelopment Project Area
Fund for the year ended April 30, 2013.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Village President and Board
of Trustees, each governmental entity within the Project Area, the State Comptroller and others within the
State of Illinois and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

%c% Y

Chicago, lllinois
December 16, 2013
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Attachment M

Main Street South TIF District
Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois
Statement of Activities

Fiscal year ended April 30, 2013

In accordance with 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5(d)(10), the following summarizes the
intergovernmental agreements in effect during the fiscal year and the amounts of money
paid during the fiscal year:

Intergovernmental agreement entered into with Community Consolidated School
District 146 in 2003 providing for certain payments out of the TIF fund for purchase of
real estate.

No payments made during the fiscal year under this agreement.
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